Township of Mount Laurel
Agenda

Regular Council Meeting
Monday, April 12, 2021
Via Zoom

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL

4. PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Moved by: Seconded by:

6. APPROVAL OF BILL LIST
Moved by: Seconded by:

7. RESOLUTIONS

21-R-74: AMENDING 21-R-32 SETTING MEETING LOCATIONS BECAUSE OF THE COVID-19
PANDEMIC

21-R-75: RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL DECLARING SOLIDARITY WITH
THE ASIAN AMERICAN COMMUNITY AND ALL COMMUNITIES, AND REAFFIRMING THE
TOWNSHIP’S COMMITMENT TO COMBATING RACISM AND DISCRIMINATION IN ALL FORMS

21-R-76: AUTHORIZATION TO INSTALL A FENCE WITHIN A 30 FOOT WIDE ACCESS EASEMENT
AREA FOR BLOCK 1302.01, LOT 9

21-R-77: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
BLOCK 1110.02 LOT 15

21-R-78: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
BLOCK 1003.07 LOT 59

21-R-79: AUTHORIZATION FOR THE MOUNT LAUREL TOWNSHIP COUNCIL TO APPLY FOR AND
ACCEPT A SUBGRANT AWARD OF THE FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2020 OF DEPARTMENT OF
HOMELAND SECURITY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT PROGRAM
FUNDING AND FOR THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER TO AMEND THE BUDGET AND CERTIFY THE
AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

21-R-80: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN MOUNT
LAUREL TOWNSHIP AND EVESHAM TOWNSHIP FOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER SERVICES




21-R-81: GOVERNING BODY CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE UNITED STATES
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION’S “ENFORCEMENT GUIDANCE ON THE
CONSIDERATION OF ARREST AND CONVICTION RECORDS IN EMPLOYMENT DECISIONS UNDER
TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964”

21-R-82: RESOLUTION TO ANTICIPATE MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES IN THE 2021 BUDGET
USING THE THREE-YEAR AVERAGE OF REALIZED REVENUES FROM THE PRIOR THREE YEARS

21-R-83: 2021 LOCAL MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
(Public Hearing on May 10, 2021)

21-R-84: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
BLOCK 1509 LOT 26

21-R-85: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
BLOCK 803.09 LOT 3

21-R-86: RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2021 CLICK IT OR TICKET SEAT BELT MOBILIZATION
MAY 24 - JUNE 6, 2021

ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING

ORDINANCE #2021-10: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL, COUNTY OF
BURLINGTON, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 43,
ARTICLE 1, SECTION 43-2 OF THE MOUNT LAUREL TOWNSHIP CODE (“POLICE DEPARTMENT -
QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT”)

Publication Date: APRIL 15, 2021
Public Hearing Date: APRIL 26, 2021

ORDINANCE #2021-11: AUTHORIZING A SHORT TERM LEASE WITH VOLUNTEERS FOR PAWS
FARM, INC. TO ALLOW VOLUNTEERS TO CLEAN, MAINTAIN AND UPGRADE THE FACILITIES AT
BLOCK 402, LOT 2, FORMERLY KNOWN AS DISCOVERY MUSEUM AT PAWS FARM

Publication Date: APRIL 15, 2021
Public Hearing Date: APRIL 26, 2021

ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING

ORDINANCE #2021-7: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL, COUNTY OF
BURLINGTON AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
MOUNT LAUREL TO DELETE IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 22 ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION
AND TO REPLACE IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 22 ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION AS SET FORTH
HEREIN PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40:56A-1 ET. SEQ.

Moved by: Seconded by:




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

ORDINANCE #2021-8: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2021-6, ARTICLE i1,
CONCERNING CONTINUING CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY
Moved by: Seconded by:

ORDINANCE #2021-9: AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
Moved by: Seconded by:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

COMMENTS BY COUNCIL

RESOLUTION

21-R-87: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CLOSED SESSION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT
LAUREL TO DISCUSS PENDING OR ANTICIPATED LITIGATION, CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS
AND/OR PERSONNEL MATTERS

RETURN TO OPEN

ADJOURNMENT



Township of Mount Laurel
Regular Council Meeting
March 8, 2021
Via Zoom

Mayor Steglik called the meeting to order.
Pledge of Allegiance & Traditional Moment of Silence

ROLL CALL

Councilwoman Karen Cohen — present, Councilwoman Fozia Janjua — present,
Councilman Nick Moustakas — present, Deputy Mayor Kareem Pritchett - present, Mayor
Stephen Steglik - present, George Morris, Township Solicitor — present, Meredith
Tomczyk, Township Manager/Township Clerk - present

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT

The Public Announcement, which is required by the “Open Public Meetings Act” of the
State of New Jersey and read at every meeting of the Township Council was read by the
Municipal Clerk.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Motion to Move: Councilwoman Cohen, 2™ Deputy Mayor Pritchett

APPROVAL OF BILL LIST IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,219,569.61
Motion to Move: Councilwoman Cohen, 2" Councilwoman Janjua
Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #59-2021: AMENDING 21-R-32 SETTING MEETING LOCATIONS
BECAUSE OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #59-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2" Deputy Mayor
Pritchett

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #60-2021: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR
CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES BLOCK 304.01, LOT 36

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #60-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2™ Councilwoman
Janjua

Roll Call 5 yes votes




RESOLUTION #61-2021: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR
CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES BLOCK 202.05, LOT 20

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #61-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2™ Deputy Mayor
Pritchett

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #62-2021: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SHARED SERVICES
AGREEMENT WITH THE MOUNT LAUREL TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
AUTHORITY (“MLTMUA”) FOR GRASS CUTTING SERVICES

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #62-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 24 Councilwoman
Janjua

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #63-2021: AUTHORIZATION TO INSTALL A FENCE WITHIN A
DRAINAGE EASEMENT AREA FOR BLOCK 907.01, LOT 23

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #63-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2™ Deputy Mayor
Pritchett

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #64-2021: AUTHORIZATION TO INSTALL A FENCE WITHIN A
LANDSCAPE BUFFER EASEMENT AREA FOR BLOCK 401.08, LOT 10

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.
Motion to Move Resolution #64-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilman

Moustakas
Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #65-2021: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PLACING OF A
LIEN AGAINST A CERTAIN PROPERTY PER CHAPTER 65 OF THE CODE OF
THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #65-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2™ Councilwoman
Cohen

Roll Call 5 yes votes

ORDINANCES FOR SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING

ORDINANCE #5-2021: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 66-3 OF THE
TOWNSHIP CODE TO AMEND UNIFORM CONSTRUCTION CODE PERMIT FEES




Clerk read Ordinance as entitled.
Mayor opened public participation.
Linda Bobo — Asked what the percentage of the increase for the fees is.

Bryant Curry, Construction Code Official - Explained that the fees were adjusted to
compensate for the amount of time it takes the employees, not by a percentage.

Andrew Gaus — Questioned where the money from the increased fees will go and what
will happen if there’s a surplus.

Jackie — Questioned the satellite dish portion of the ordinance.
Mayor closed public participation.

Motion to move Ordinance #5-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilwoman Cohen
Roll Call 5 yes votes

ORDINANCE #6-2021: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 89 OF THE
CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL ENTITLED “HOUSING
STANDARDS”

Clerk read Ordinance as entitled.
Bryant Curry and Manager explained the ordinance.
Mayor opened public participation.

Stephen Schlags, 308 Keatley Drive — Questioned if it is the buyer or seller’s
responsibility to obtain a CO. Also wanted to know examples of what issues could be
found during an inspection and how soon before selling could an inspection be done.

James Hogan, 105 Yorktown Drive — Asked if there is a statistic of how many buyers
have come into the town recently and if more employees would need to be hired to keep
up with all of the inspections. Stated that he did not know it was code enforcement’s job
to make sure assessments are fair.

Matthew Verney, 50 Watson Drive — Mentioned that he appreciates the need for safety,
but is concerned with the disclosure statement responsibilities. Feels that this is not
making Mount Laurel a friendly place to move to.

Heather/David Schor — Stated that they are not getting a response from the building
department and are skeptical that the employees will be able to handle the increase in
inspections. Also feels that this is unfair to residents.



Richard Bathke, 1 Wood Lark Drive — Understands that these inspections are necessary,
but concerned about older homes and issues being found right before a scheduled closing.
Requested that homeowners from a certain period be grandfathered in.

June Bilenky — Asked for the different rates to be explained and how the system works.
Inquired what other towns have this same requirement.

Deputy Mayor Pritchett — Explained that this is about safety.
Manager — Gave a list of the other towns in the area.

Harriette Cohen, 10 Alderton Lane — Stated that she feels this will show that Mount
Laurel is more concerned, not unfriendly. Appreciates that the fees have been lowered
and agrees with the ordinance.

Jean Capece, 221 Amberfield Drive — Confirmed that this only applies to homes that are
for sale. Questioned if there are intentions of requiring an inspection for every
homeowner, not just homes for sale.

Linda Bobo, 47 Abington Road — Concerned about the re-inspection rate and feels that
the fees are double dipping. Wishes Council would reconsider the ordinance.

Dean Pappas, 104 Wellesley Court — Questioned the need for a separate heating
certification, along with a survey, and expressed concerns on the extra costs and
additional fees.

Linda Aquino — Stated that a seller should not have to pay for a survey and feels that this
is a lot to ask of sellers. Thinks that improvements should be negotiated between the
buyer and seller, not the Township.

Dawn Hogan — Discussed all of the inspections required when selling a home and feels
that this is costly and outrageous, and would like the ordinance to be voted down.

George Haeuber, 13 Eddystone Way — Considers the fee changes to be major
amendments and thinks the ordinance should be re-advertised.

Margie Haeuber — Explained that she feels the ordinance is unfair to sellers and the buyer
should have more responsibility.

Harriet Insler, 4 Witherod Court — Stated that she thinks we need this ordinance to protect
people and make sure houses are safe.

Maria Giarratano, 32 Crows Nest Court — Questioned if the Township is trying to alter
existing contracts between buyers and sellers. Thinks this is putting too much
responsibility on the seller.



Mike Johnson, 264 Saint David Drive — Expressed concern with the inspection process
and obtaining a survey.

Harriette Cohen - Asked why the ordinance is coming up now.
Andrew Gaus, 154 Kettlebrook Drive — Explained his concerns with contracts that are
currently in effect and when the ordinance will go into effect. Suggested that Council

come up with a working session with realtors, as it seems to him that their concerns are
being dismissed.

Cynthia Astrom, 165 Memorial Lane — Asked for an example of what changes can be

made with the CO. Questioned fines, time element for inspections, and handling
inspections during COVID. Requested that the reinspection fees be reconsidered.

Louis Antosh, 8 Hanover Court — Commended Council for wanting to protect the people.
Questioned the inspection process and cost to the homeowner.

Rickie Cohen — Thinks the buyer should be responsible for the survey. Asked about the
date of when the ordinance goes into effect.

Maria Giarratano — Asked about mold inspectors and the cleanliness aspect of the home
inspection. Questioned the financial difficulty on sellers with low-income housing.

Mayor closed public participation.

Motion to move Ordinance #6-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilwoman Cohen
Roll Call 5 yes votes

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Cynthia Astrom — Wanted verification on the grass cutting shared service with the MUA.

Jackie — Expressed her disappointment that Council already made up their mind on the
ordinance.

Andrew Gaus — Asked if the inspection in the ordinance could be done by anyone else
besides the Township.

COMMENTS BY COUNCIL

Mayor Steglik — Thanked everyone for attending and for speaking. Encouraged anyone
with further questions to reach out.

Deputy Mayor Pritchett — Thanked everyone for their comments and appreciated the
suggestions. Continue to be safe.



Councilwoman Cohen — Thanked everyone for participating. Thanked George, Meredith
and Bryant for caring about the Township. Everyone needs to follow codes. Stay safe.

Councilwoman Janjua — Explained that she is here because she loves Mount Laurel and
wants what is best for the town. Thanked everyone for speaking. Be safe.

Councilman Moustakas — Thanked everyone for their participation. Thanked everyone
working in the pandemic for the amazing work they do. Acknowledged National
Women’s Day.

Motion to adjourn: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilman Moustakas
All in favor.

Respectfully submitted,

Meredith Tomczyk, RMC
Township Clerk




Township of Mount Laurel
Regular Council Meeting
March 22, 2021
Via Zoom

Mayor Steglik called the meeting to order.
Pledge of Allegiance & Traditional Moment of Silence

ROLL CALL

Councilwoman Karen Cohen — present, Councilwoman Fozia Janjua — present,
Councilman Nick Moustakas — present, Deputy Mayor Kareem Pritchett - present, Mayor
Stephen Steglik - present, George Morris, Township Solicitor — present, Meredith
Tomczyk, Township Manager/Township Clerk - present

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT
The Public Announcement, which is required by the “Open Public Meetings Act” of the
State of New Jersey and read at every meeting of the Township Council was read by the

Municipal Clerk.

APPROVAL OF BILL LIST IN THE AMOUNT OF $884,755.41
Motion to Move: Councilwoman Cohen, 2"! Deputy Mayor Pritchett
Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #66-2021: PROCLAMATION EXPRESSING COMMENDATION TO
ROB AUSTIN FOR HIS QUTSTANDING SERVICE IN THE COMMUNITY

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #66-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilwoman
Cohen

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #67-2021: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR
CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES BLOCK 903.07, LOT 37

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #67-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2" Councilwoman
Janjua

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #68-2021: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OR
CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES BLOCK 302.09, LOT 13

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.



Motion to Move Resolution #68-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilman
Moustakas
Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #69-2021: RESOLUTION EXTENDING TEMPORARY BUDGET
APPROPRIATIONS FOR 2021

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #69-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2™ Councilwoman
Cohen

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #70-2021: RESOLUTION APPOINTING ALTERNATE FUND
COMMISSIONER TO THE BURLINGTON COUTY MINICIPAL JOINT
INSURANCE FUND

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #70-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilwoman
Cohen

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #71-2021: AUTHORIZING THE DISBURSEMENT OF FUNDS
FROM THE AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND PURSUANT TO COURT
ORDER

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #71-2021: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2" Councilwoman
Cohen

Roll Call 5 yes votes

RESOLUTION #72-2021: RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING BUS STOPS IN MOUNT
LAUREL

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #72-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2"¢ Councilwoman
Janjua

Roll Call 5 yes votes

ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING

ORDINANCE #7-2021: AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT
LAUREL, COUNTY OF BURLINGTON AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY
AMENDING THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL TO DELETE
IN ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 22 ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION AND TO
REPLACE IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 22 ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION AS
SET FORTH HEREIN PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A. 40:56A-1 ET SEQ.




Clerk read Ordinance as entitled.
Motion to move Ordinance #7-2021: Councilman Moustakas, 2" Councilwoman Cohen

Roll Call 5 yes votes

ORDINANCE #8-2021: AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2021-6,
ARTICLE 1II, CONCERNING CONTINUING CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY

Clerk read Ordinance as entitled.
Motion to move Ordinance #8-2021: Councilwoman Cohen, 2" Deputy Mayor Pritchett
Roll Call 5 yes votes

ORDINANCE #9-2021: AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT

Clerk read Ordinance as entitled.
Motion to move Ordinance #9-2021: Councilwoman Cohen, 2" Deputy Mayor Pritchett

Roll Call 5 yes votes
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Linda Bobo, 47 Abington Road — Ms. Bobo questioned the fair share housing payout.
She expressed concern with Environmental Commission expenses and other aspects of it.
Explained that she was happy to see recommendations were incorporated into Ordinance
8-2021, but still has concerns with it. The Township attorney explained there is a public
hearing for the ordinances at the next meeting.

Andrew Gaus — Mr. Gaus asked why the minutes were not posted. The Township Clerk
explained they are not completed at this time. Mr. Gaus stated his concerns about the
fees for Ordinance 8-2021. He also asked why the Environmental Commission is being
replaced. The Township Attorney explained.

Maria Giarratano — Thanked Council for revisiting the CCO Ordinance and asked them to
provide a list on the website.

Dawn Hogan, 105 Yorktown Drive — Thanked Council for reconsidering issues from the
previous meeting. Concerned about cleanliness of homes and gray areas with inspection
requirements.

Cynthia Astrom, 165 Memorial Lane — Ms. Astrom questioned the process of inspections
with condos and townhomes.

Linda Bobo — Ms. Bobo asked about the cost of the Environmental Commission.

Peter Bilazarian — Requested an update on the amount the Township will receive for the
American Rescue Plan Act.



Sean Murphy, 13 Devonshire Road — Mr. Murphy asked if there have been any updates
on the Route 38 ramp to 295.

Jackie Tsiartas, 169 Memorial Lane — Ms. Tsiartas expressed appreciation for the
changes made with Ordinance 8-2021, but is concerned with why it was passed during a
difficult time with Covid.

Tracy Sullivan, 45 Brookwood Road — Ms. Sullivan expressed that she wants to get kids
back to school full time and asked if the Township has had any dialogue with the
elementary school district.

Andrew Gaus — Asked the Attorney to clarify whether the international property code
applies to Ordinance 8-2021. Mr. Gaus also questioned what reimbursements
Environmental Commission members will receive.

Linda Bobo — Expressed concerns with inspection schedules.

Maria Giarratano - Ms. Giarratano explained that she has noticed more littering lately and
asked what could be done about this. Councilwoman Cohen explained that the Green
Team is planning various community cleanups.

Robin Marino, Preamble Drive — Expressed concern with the school district, online
learning, and the impact it is having on students.

James Hogan, 105 Yorktown Drive — Mr. Hogan asked about the decrease in tax revenue,
along with the hiring/reduction of employees.

David Marques, 499 Garden Way — Mr. Marques stated that inspections can sometimes
take 2 to 3 weeks and requested an inspection checklist.

Barbara Firrera, 22 Wembly Drive — Ms. Firrera stated that she opposes Ordinance 8-
2021. She also expressed concerns with safety at the intersection at Union Mill and Ark
Road and requested a sidewalk there.

Cynthia Astrom — Requested a copy of the updated spread sheet.

Linda Bobo — Questioned new hires, along with hiring police and the budget.

COMMENTS BY COUNCIL

Mayor Steglik — Thanked everyone for coming and for speaking. Congratulated and
thanked the Larchmont Jogger.

Deputy Mayor Pritchett — Thanked everyone for participating. Enjoy your loved ones
and continue to stay safe.



Councilwoman Janjua — Thanked everyone for coming. Urged residents to reach out to
Asian American neighbors.

Councilwoman Cohen — Reiterated to residents to reach out to Asian residents or anyone
feeling hatred at this time. Congratulated the Green Team on becoming certified by
Sustainable Jersey. Announced that tree saplings will be distributed at Laurel Acres on
May 8. Explained pizza box recycling. Thanked everyone for participating.

Councilman Moustakas — Thanked everyone for their participation and expressed that
residents’ opinions matter. Acknowledged the Asian American attacks.

RESOLUTION #73-2021: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CLOSED SESSION OF
THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL TO DISCUSS PENDING OR
ANTICIPATED LITIGATION, CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS AND/OR
PERSONNEL MATTERS

Township Clerk read Resolution as entitled.

Motion to Move Resolution #73-2020: Councilwoman Cohen, 2" Councilman
Moustakas

Roll Call 5 yes votes

Return to Open

Motion to adjourn: Deputy Mayor Pritchett, 2"! Councilwoman Janjua

All in favor.

Respectfully submitted,

Meredith Tomeczyk, RMC
Township Clerk



TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution
MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER

Resolution No.21-R-74

REGULAR MEETING April 12,2021

AMENDING 21-R-32 SETTING MEETING LOCATIONS
BECAUSE OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC

WHEREAS, by Resolution 21-R-32, the Township Council established its meeting dates
for the Year 2021, in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 10:4-18, and now wishes to
revise the schedule to change the meeting location to be held virtually, utilizing technology as
the Township has been using since April; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to recent amendments to the Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A.
10:4-1 et seq., and consistent with recent Executive Orders issued by the Governor of the State of
New Jersey, the Township Council will continue to conduct its meetings electronically, with the
municipal building being closed, but the meetings being opened to members of the public, via
access to the meetings remotely using Zoom. Upon registering with the Township Clerk for a
meeting, members of the public can participate by clicking on the “Join” tab at the top, and
entering the applicable Meeting ID number; and

WHEREAS, once a member of the public registers for one meeting, the person will be
automatically notified for future meetings the remainder of the year; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township
of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey that Resolution 21-R-32 be and the
same is hereby amended to change the meeting to change the location of council meetings from
the municipal building, to Zoom with Meeting IDs and passwords to be provided to those
members of the public that request the same from the Township Clerk in advance of the meeting
for the following meetings:

April 12, 2021 and April 26, 2021
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that notice of this amendment to the original schedule

of meetings shall be noticed in accordance with the provisions of the N.J.S.A, 10:4-18.




This resolution was ado

and shall take effect immediate

pted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12,2021

ly.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE

NAY

ABSTAINED | ABSENT

TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik




TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 21-R-75

REGULAR MEETING April 12,2021

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
DECLARING SOLIDARITY WITH THE ASIAN AMERICAN COMMUNITY AND
ALL COMMUNITIES, AND REAFFIRMING THE TOWNSHIP’S
COMMITMENT TO COMBATING RACISM AND DISCRIMINATION IN ALL FORMS

WHEREAS, fostering a welcoming and inclusive environment for all people, regardless of ethnicity,
race, nationality, religion, disability, gender, or sexual orientation is a core value and priority of the
Township of Mount Laurel; and

WHEREAS, Mount Laurel is a community that celebrates its differences and embraces tolerance,
recognizing that our diversity is our strength; and

WHEREAS, Mount Laurel Township is a thriving, multicultural, and welcoming collection of tightknit
inclusive neighborhoods where families and residents of all backgrounds feel safe and are treated with
respect and dignity; and

WHEREAS, fear, misinformation, and ignorance about COVID-19 has led to anti-Asian American
sentiment, manifesting in reports of hateful rhetoric, false accusations, bullying, harassment and violence
directed at people of Asian heritage, in Atlanta, around the country, and worldwide; and

WHEREAS, in light of recent attacks and tragedies, any attack driven by hatred—of an ethnicity, race,
nationality, religion, disability, tender or sexual orientation—is an attack on all Americans and the core
values we strive to uphold; and

WHEREAS, all persons are encouraged to report any such discriminatory or hateful incidents to the
proper authorities for investigation.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Council of the Township of Mount Laurel
do hereby condemn the acts of violence and hate against Asian Americans and all marginalized groups
across the country; and

BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington,
State of New Jersey that the Mayor and Township Council do hereby declare Mount Laurel Township
committed to combating xenophobia, racism, and discrimination in al forms, and is further committed to
recognizing all families, residents, and visitors for their contributions toward an even stronger and more
vibrant community.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12,2021
and shall take effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett
LSteglik




»Q\};»,é: fff?p TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

‘i‘wg’ j?l\)‘,‘%r' MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER

b y "‘f’ Resolution No. 21-R-76
REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12, 2021

AUTHORIZATION TO INSTALL A FENCE WITHIN A
30 FOOT WIDE ACCESS EASEMENT AREA FOR BLOCK 1302.01, LOT 9
117 Apple Lane

WHEREAS, the Township of Mount Laurel is the grantee of an easement contiguous to Block
1302.01, Lot 9, 117 Apple Lane; and

WHEREAS, the property owner for Block 1302.01, Lot 9, 117 Apple Lane, has requested
permission to install a fence within a 30 foot wide access easement; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council may give permission to individuals to utilize its easement
areas and said request must be reviewed by the Township Solicitor;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township of
Mount Laurel, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey that the Township Council grants a license for
the above referenced to utilize a 30 foot wide access easement area subject to the recommendations of
the Township Engineer and Township Planner; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that after review and approval of said easement by the
Township Solicitor that the Township Council hereby directs the Township Mayor and Clerk to execute
any and all contract documents which are necessary to effectuate the terms of this resolution,

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12,2021
and shall take effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomczyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik




Richard A. Alaimo Associates
200 High Street, Mt. Holly, New Jersey 08060 Tel: 609-267-8310 Fax: 609-267-7452

March 31, 2021

Ms. Carol Modugno, Deputy Clerk
Mount Laurel Township

100 North Mount Laurel Road
Mount Laurel, NJ 08054

RE: Mount Laurel Township
Countryside Farms
Block1302.01, Lot 9
117 Apple Lane
Jackson-Reed License Agreement
Qur File No. M-0170-0326-000

Dear Carol:

We have received the submitted License Agreement application and corresponding
survey for the referenced property. The parcel is located within Countryside Farms. The parcel
contains a 2-story single-family residential dwelling with associated improvements. A 30’ wide
access easement traverses the applicant’s side yard property with adjoining Lot 8.

The applicant is proposing to install a fence to enclose the rear yard. The proposed fence
location is shown at the rear property line, and from the dwelling to the side yard property lines.
Since the proposed fence location infringes upon the aforementioned easement, a License
Agreement is necessary.

Based on a site inspection as well as our review of the development plans, tax map
information and submitted survey, we offer the following comments:

1. Our review of the water, sewer and storm sewer as-built plans show no piping
within the easements.

2. The access easement provides access from Apple Lane to Lot 51 to the rear of the
subject property. An existing church is located on Lot 51 which has a separate
driveway access on Apple Lane. It appears the access easement is no longer
utilized. In the future the access easement is to be used, the fences within the
easement will need to be moved outside the easement. It should be noted
adjoining Lot 8 already has a fence within the access easement.

- Consulting Engineers -

Civil e Structural ® Mechanical @ Electrical © Environmental ® Planners




Ms. Carol Modugno, Deputy Clerk -2- March 31, 2021

6.

As the proposed fence location may not be concurrent with the applicant’s
property lines, the applicant is notified that the maintenance responsibilities exist
within the property as surveyed and not solely within the rear yard area created by
the fence line.

The application does not note the height of the proposed fence. It should be noted
that the maximum fence height permitted without obtaining a variance is 6°.

The fence should be installed to allow stormwater to run under the fence
unobstructed.

The first plan submitted was proposing to install part of the fence on adjacent Lot
8. The plan was revised to remove the fence from Lot 8.

On this basis and subject to the above conditions, we recommend that a License
Agreement be granted for this property. The applicant should however, coordinate with the
Township Zoning Officer and governing Homeowner’s Association (if applicable) regarding the
obtainment of all necessary approvals and/or permits.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact our

office.

WRL/DV

Very truly yours,

RICHARD A. ALAIMO ASSOCIATES

Lt BONL
274

William R. Long, PE S

Senior Associate

cc: Erin Chavis, Zoning Officer, Mount Laurel Township
Shakira Jackson, Braheem Reed (117 Apple Lane, Mount Laurel, NJ 08054)

WAGFS01\m_proj\Projects\M0 1 700326000\acksom Docs\ ackson-Reed-Lic. Agmt.doc

Richard A. Alaimo Associates
- Consulting Engineers -




TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 2]1-R-77

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12,2021

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
REFUND or CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
Block 1110.02 Lot 15
228 Amberfield Drive]

[100% Totally & Permanently Disabled Veterar]

WHEREAS, N.J.S A. 54:4-3.30 permits the exemption from property taxes for any citizen and
resident of the State who is a 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled Veteran.

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Veteran A ffairs has classified the veteran,
Indongesit O. Antia, as 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled.

WHEREAS, this status grants the veteran the right to be exempt from paying property taxes as
of the date of eligibility by application. (N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a)

WHEREAS, the 2021 taxes on the following property have been cancelled as of the date of
exemption and any taxes paid by the owner have been refunded.

Block Lot Owner Date of Exemption Amount
1110.02 15 Indongesit O. Antia January 20, 2021 $2557.80

WHEREAS, the Burlington County Board of Taxation requires a resolution for the cancellation
of property taxes in order to credit to the Municipality in the Abstract of Ratables the amount of
County Taxes and County Open Space Taxes refunded or cancelled for this property. This
resolution will be submitted to the Burlington County Board of Taxation with the Application &
Approval of Assessment Debit and Credit for the property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Township Council of the
Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington that the 2021 taxes due on the above noted
property have been cancelled.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12, 2021
and shall take effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

e MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik

" Calculation: 2021 Taxes $6667.86 / 182.5 days = $36.54 per day x 70 days exempt = $2557.80



TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution
MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER

Resolution No. 21-R-78

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12, 2021

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
REFUND or CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
Block 1003.07 Lot 59
1685 Cornwallis Drive]

[100% Totally & Permanently Disabled Veteran|

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30 permits the exemption from property taxes for any citizen and
resident of the State who is a 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled Veteran.

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Veteran Affairs has classified the veteran, Jason
R. Doyle, as 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled.

WHEREAS, this status grants the veteran the right to be exempt from paying property taxes as
of the date of eligibility by application. (N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a)

WHEREAS, the 2021 taxes on the following property have been cancelled as of the date of
exemption and any taxes paid by the owner have been refunded.

Block Lot Owner Date of Exemption Amount!
1003.07 59 Jason R. Doyle December 13, 2020 $4539.87

WHEREAS, the Burlington County Board of Taxation requires a resolution for the cancellation
of property taxes in order to credit to the Municipality in the Abstract of Ratables the amount of
County Taxes and County Open Space Taxes refunded or cancelled for this property. This
resolution will be submitted to the Burlington County Board of Taxation with the Application &
Approval of Assessment Debit and Credit for the property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Township Council of the
Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington that the 2021 taxes due on the above noted
property have been cancelled.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12, 2021
and shall take effect immediately.
A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik

 Calculation: 2020 Taxes $8264.70 / 365 days = $22.64 per day x 18 days exempt = $407.52 + $4132.87 (2021
Preliminary) = $4539.87




o

SEL>

Q > Lﬁ:;%s@ TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

N ‘ifTi ‘zj\m,",r‘ MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
' ,*(}:{\//)’ l' Resolution No. 21-R-79

REGULAR MEETING April 12, 2021

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE MOUNT LAUREL TOWNSHIP COUNCIL TO

APPLY FOR AND ACCEPT A SUBGRANT AWARD OF THE FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR
2020 OF

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

PERFORMANCE GRANT PROGRAM F UNDING AND FOR THE CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER TO AMEND THE BUDGET AND CERTIFY THE

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS.

WHEREAS, the Township of Mount Laure] Office of Emergency Management has been
awarded State Homeland Security Grant Program Subgrant ALN #97.042, Award #FF Y20-EMPG-
EMAA-0324 from the New Jersey State Police Office of Emergency Management. The Subgrant,
consisting of up to $10,000.00 Federal Award, is for the purpose of enhancing Mount Laurel Township’s
ability to prevent, protect against, respond to and recover from acts of terrorisim, natural disasters and
other catastrophic events and emergencies; and the funds will be used for €mergency management
purposes; and

WHEREAS, the subgrant award incorporates all conditions and representations contained or
made in application and notice of award #FFY20-EMPG-EMAA-0324 and subaward period 7/1/2020 -
6/30/2021; and

WHEREAS, the Mount Laure! Township Office of Emergency Management, designated by the
New Jersey State Police, Office of Emergency Management, has submitted an Application for Subgrant
Award that has been required by the said New Jersey State Police Office of Emergency Management; and

NOw, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Council of Mount Laurel
Township here with accepts the award of the FFY20 Homeland Security Emergency Management
Performance Grant Program, Emergency Management Agency Assistance (EMAA) Subgrant in the
amount of up to $10,000.00 Federal Funds from the New Jersey State Police, Office of Emergency
Management; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Director of the Division of Local Government Services
is requested to approve the insertion of an item of revenue in the budget of the year 2020 in the sum of up
to $10,000.00, which is now available from the New Jersey State Police, Office of Emergency
Management in the like amount of up to $10,000.00 from the aforementioned grant; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the like sum of $10,000.00 is hereby appropriated under
the caption FFY20 Homeland Security Emergency Management Performance Grant; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mount Laurel Township Manager, Chief Financial
Officer and the Emergency Management Coordinator are authorized to sign the appropriate subgrant
award documents; and

Services; the Township Manager Meredith Tomczyk; the Township Chief Financial Officer Tara Krueger
and the Township Emergency Management Coordinator Jay Appleton.



This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12,2021
and shall take effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen
Janjua
Moustakas
Pritchett
Steglik




TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 21-R-80

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12,2021

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN
MOUNT LAUREL TOWNSHIP AND EVESHAM TOWNSHIP FOR CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act, N.J.S.A. 40A:65-
1 et seq. (hereinafter the “Shared Services Act™), authorizes local public entities to enter into
a contract with other local public entities for the joint provision of any service which any
party to the agreement is empowered to render within its own Jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Mount Laurel (“Mount Laurel”) and the Township of
Evesham (“Evesham™) are public entities organized under the laws of the State of New
Jersey and located in the County of Burlington; and

WHEREAS, Evesham has a temporary need for a Chief Financial Officer while it
undertakes a search for candidates to serve as Evesham’s Chief Financial Officer on a full-
time basis; and

WHEREAS, Mount Laurel and Evesham wish to enter into a Shared Services
Agreement (“Agreement”) pursuant to the Shared Services Act whereby Mount Laurel would
share the services of its Chief Financial Officer with Evesham; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the
Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, that the
Township Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the attached Shared
Services Agreement with the Township of Evesham to contract for the temporary
provision of services by Mt. Laurel’s Chief Financial Officer according to the terms of
said Agreement unti} expiration of said Agreement or its termination following
Evesham Township’s appointment of another qualified individual to fill the vacancy in
the office of Chief Financial Officer on a full-time basis,

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomczyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik




SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT
by and between
THE TOWNSHIP OF MT LAUREL
and
THE TOWNSHIP OF EVESHAM

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the TOWNSHIP OF
MOUNT LAUREL, a public body corporate and politic, with its principal offices located
at 100 Mount Laurel Road, Mount Laure] NJ 08054 (hereinafter “Mt. Laurel”), and the
TOWNSHIP OF EVESHAM, a public body corporate and politic, with its principal offices
located at 984 Tuckerton Road, Marlton, New Jersey 08053 (hereinafter “Evesham”); and

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, Evesham desires to contract with Mt. Laurel for the temporary
furnishing of the services of a Chief Financial Officer as required by N.J.S.A. 40A:9-140.10
et seq., and as hereafter set forth, while it undertakes a search for the appointment of a
qualified individual to serve as Evesham’s full-time Chief Financial Officer; and

WHEREAS, the municipalities are located adjacently to one another and have both
- the proximity and size that makes sharing Chief Financial Officer services feasible; and

WHEREAS, the municipalities are empowered to provide the services described
herein within their respective jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the municipalities are authorized by N.J.S.A. 40A:9-140.10 et seq. and
- N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1 et seq. to enter into this Shared Services Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual promises and
covenants contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration received, the

parties hereby agree as follows:

\\Etmb-£5018\clerks\PEAK ~ UPLOAD MEETING FOLDER\2021\3-24-21 mtg\SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT-CFO
with Mt Laurel.docxl




I SCOPE OF SERVICES

1. Mount Laurel shall provide the services of a certified Chief Financial Officer to
Evesham, under the terms and conditions as herecinafter set forth.

2. Evesham will designate the Chief Financial Officer of Mt. Laurel, Tara Krueger, as
the Chief Financial Officer of Evesham pursuant to this agreement. The Chief Financial
Officer of Mt. Laurel shall assist Evesham with the proper administration of Evesham’s
Department of Finance, advise and assist Evesham regarding its municipal budget and
compliance with N.J.S.A. 40A:4-1 et seq. and shall perform any other such duties of a Chief
Financial Officer as required by statute or regulation of the State of New Jersey.

3. The Chief Financial Officer shall remain the sole employee of Mt. Laurel and Mt.
Laurel shall be responsible for the administration and payment of the Chief Financial
Officer’s salary and benefits.

4. The Chief Financial Officer shall provide approximately ten (10) to fifteen (15)
hours of service to Evesham per week, from 8:30 A.M. until 4:30 P.M. during regular work
days per Township Manager’s discretion. The Chief Financial Officer will otherwise remain
“on-call” to provide the agreed upon services to Evesham on an as-needed basis.

5. All records produced by the Chief Financial Officer regarding the administration
of the Evesham Department of Finance shall be retained solely in the Evesham Municipal
Complex.

IL TERM OF AGREEMENT

1. Mit. Laurel shall provide the services of the Chief Financial Officer to Evesham
during the term of this Agreement which shall commence on March 25, 2021 and terminate
on June 30, 2021. Either party may terminate this Agreement prior to the expiration of the
term upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to the other party. Either party may seek

to extend the term of this agreement by mutual agreement in writing.

\\Etmb-£s5018\clerks\PEAK - UPLOAD MEETING FOLDER\2021\3-24-21 mtg\SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT-CFO
with Mt Laurel.docx2




III. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES

1. Evesham shall pay Mt. Laurel the rate of $62.77 per hour for each hour of Chief
Financial Officer services provided during the term of this Agreement.

2. The Chief Financial Officer shall keep an accurate record of hours for services
performed on behalf of Evesham each work week and shall timely provide record of the same
to the Township Managers of Evesham and Mt. Laurel following the conclusion of each work
week.

3. At the conclusion of each calendar month, Mt. Laurel shall invoice Evesham for
the provision of such services, which shall be payable by Evesham within thirty (30) days
following presentation of such invoice for payment and supporting documentation to
Evesham’s Township Manager.

IV. MODIFICATIONS
1. The terms of this Shared Services Agreement may only be modified by the
subsequent written agreement of the parties.
V. INDEMNFICATION AND DEFENSE OF PERSONNEL
1. Evesham shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Mt. Laurel, its elected officials,
employees, officers and agents, from and against all liability, actions, claims, suits, losses,
damages, costs, and demands, on account of bodily injury, including death, or for loss or
damage to property arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Chief
Financial Officer services provided under this Agreement.
VI. NOTICES
1. All notices given pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be sent by certified
mail, return receipt requested, and electronic mail to the following addresses:
If to the Township of Mount Laurel:
Meredith Tomczyk
Township Manager
Township of Mount Laurel

100 Mount Laure]l Rd.

\\Etmb-£s018\clerks\PEAK ~ UPLOAD MEETING FOLDER\2021\3-24-21 mtg\SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT-CFEO
with Mt Laurel.docx3




Mount Laurel, New Jersey 08054
mtomezyk@mountlaurel.com

If to the Township of Evesham:

Robert Corrales
Township Manager
Township of Evesham
984 Tuckerton Road
Marlton, New Jersey 08053
corralesr@evesham-nj.gov

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals on the

day and year first above written:

Attest: TOWNSHIP OF EVESHAM
Name: Mary Lou Bergh Name: _Robert Corrales
Township Clerk Township Manager
- Aftest: TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
Name: Name:

\\Etmb-£s018\clerks\PEAK - UPLOAD MEETING FOLDER\2021\3-24-21 mtg\SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT~CFO
with Mt Laurel.docx4




TOWNSHIP OF EVESHAM
RESOLUTION 114-2021

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE

TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL FOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Uniform Shared Services and Consolidation Act,
N.J.S.A. 40A:65-1 et seq. (hereinafter the “Shared Services
Act”), authorizes local public entities to enter into a contract
with other local public entities for the joint provision of any
service which any party to the agreement is empowered to render

within its own jurisdiction; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Mount Laurel (“Mount Laurel”) and
the Township of Evesham (“Evesham”) are public entities organized
under the laws of the State of New Jersey and located in the

County of Burlington; and

WHEREAS, Evesham has a temporary need for a Chief Financial
Officer while it undertakes a search for candidates to serve as
Evesham’s Chief Financial Officer on a full-time basis; and

WHEREAS, Mount Laurel and Evesham wish to enter into a
Shared Services Agreement (“Agreement”) pursuant to the Shared
Services Act whereby Mount Laurel would share the services of
its Chief Financial Officer with Evesham; and

WHEREAS, the Township Council of the Township of Evesham

(“Township Council”) has determined that entering into such




Agreement will be beneficial to Township and in the public
interest; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of
the Township of Evesham, County of Burlington, State of New
Jersey, that the Township Manager is hereby authorized and
directed to execute the attached Shared Services Agreement with
the Township of Mt. Laurel to contract for the temporary
provision of services by Mt. Laurel’s Chief Financial Officer
according to the terms of said Agreement until expiration of
said Agreement or its termination following Evesham Township’s
appointment of another qualified individual to fill the vacancy
in the office of Chief Financial Officer on a full-time basis.

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted
by the Township Council of the Township of Evesham, County of
Burlington, State of New Jersey at the meeting held in the
Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 984 Tuckerton Road,
Marlton, New Jersey on March 24, 2021. J

MARY_LOU( BERGH, Township Clerk

ROLL CALL VOTE

COMMITTEE INTRODUCED | SECONDED | AYE | NAY | ABSTAIN | ABSENT
MEMBER

ESPINOZA e

FREEMAN W -

HANSEN L

COOPER s o

MAYOR VEASY /




L L4 o
- \‘\4} TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

\\,‘jf:ﬂ* MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
& Resolution No. 21-R-81

REGULAR MEETING April 12,2021

GOVERNING BODY CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE UNITED STATES
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION’S “ENFORCEMENT GUIDANCE ON
THE CONSIDERATION OF ARREST AND CONVICTION RECORDS IN EMPLOYMENT
DECISIONS UNDER TITLE VII OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964”

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5 as amended by P.L. 2017, ¢.183 requires the governing body of each
municipality and county to certify that their local unit’s hiring practices comply with the United States
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission’s “Enforcement Guidance on the Consideration of Arrest and
Conviction Records in Employment Decisions Under Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,” as
amended, 42 U.S.C. 2000e et seq., (April 25, 2012) before submitting its approved annual budget to the
Division of Local Government Services in the New Jersey Department of Community Affairs; and

WHEREAS, the members of the governing body have familiarized themselves with the contents of
the above-referenced enforcement guidance and with their local unit’s hiring practices as they pertain to the
consideration of an individual’s criminal history, as evidenced by the group affidavit form of the governing
body attached hereto.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township Council of the Township of Mount
Laurel hereby states that it has complied with N.J.S.A. 40A:4-5, as amended by P.L. 2017, ¢.183, by
certifying that the local unit’s hiring practices comply with the above-referenced enforcement guidance and
hereby directs the Clerk to cause to be maintained and available for inspection a certified copy of this
resolution and the required affidavit to show evidence of said compliance.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12,2021 and shall take
effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS IS A TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED AT THE
MEETING HELD ON April 12, 2021.

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik




TOWNSHIP COUNCIL

Distribution

S Ly
Qe =i\
SEENE

. :,‘ :‘ﬁ?‘); MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
NG Resolution No. 21-R-82

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12, 2021

RESOLUTION TO ANTICIPATE MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES IN THE 2021
BUDGET USING THE THREE-YEAR AVERAGE OF REALIZED REVENUES FROM
THE PRIOR THREE YEARS

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic had an adverse effect on the anticipated municipal
revenues in the 2020 municipal current and utility fund budgets; and

WHEREAS, Section 1 of P.L. 2020, ¢.74 amended N.J.S.A 40A:4-26 authorized the Director of
the Division of Local Government Services (“Division”) to promulgate new standards for the
anticipation of COVID-19 affected revenues in the FY2021 budget, and, if necessary, in future
years; and

WHEREAS, for FY2021, the Director authorizes the use of a three-year average for the
calculation of affected revenues; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer of the Township of Mount Laurel, certifies that the
following revenues were affected in 2020 by the COVID-19 pandemic and that the three-year
average of the amounts realized in 2018-2020 be anticipated in the introduced budget for 2021;

Revenue Category 2018 2019 2020 Average
Municipal Court 694,982.76 752,903.01 385,545.82 611,143.86
Uniform Construction Code 1,463,811.00 | 1,775,279.15 1,251,098.00 | 1,496,729.38
Municipal Occupancy Tax 2,383,684.95 | 2,370,791.49 1,358,836.38 | 2,037,770.94
Emergency Medical Service
Billings 1,338,763.92 | 1,459,773.53 1,141,833.42 | 1,313,456.96

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Township of Mount Laurel in

the County of Burlington, State of New Je

rsey that the above referenced revenues be anticipated

using the three-year average as permitted by the amendments to 40A: 4-26, adopted by the P.1..

2020, c. 74
A CERTIFIED COPY
Meredith Tomczyk, Municipal Clerk
MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen
Janjua
Moustakas
Pritchett
Steglik




TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 21-R-83

REGULAR MEETING April 12,2021

2021 LOCAL MUNICIPAL BUDGET FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Council of the Township of Mount Laurel,
County of Burlington, State of New Jersey that the statement of appropriations and revenues as
submitted to the State of New Jersey, Department of Community Affairs will constitute the
Local Municipal Budget for the year 2021; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said budget be published in the official
newspaper of the Township of Mount Laurel, Burlington County, in the issue of April 15, 2021
and a public hearing on the budget to be held at the May 10, 2021 Council Meeting at 7:00
p.m. prevailing time; and

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that said publication and the public hearing on the
2021 budget shall include the Capital Budget as required by the Director of the Division of
Local Government Services of the State of New Jersey and that certified copies of the
Municipal Budget be forwarded to the Director of Local Government Services.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the Mayor and Council of Mount Laurel
Township, Burlington County hereby introduce the 2021 Municipal budget on April 12, 2021,

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12, 2021
and shall take effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik




v 994g

0¥e8-vez-958 # xed

#6080 I'N ‘]oneT junopw

PEOY [3JneT JUNOW 001

T3HNYT LNNOW 40 dIHSNMOL

fjedioiuny o ssaippy Buijiely 1eo10

Asusony (edisunpy

siopy ebiosn

‘ON 017 JUBIUNOYDY jedioluniy palajsibay
‘ON "H8D 1834440 (elouBUl JOIYD
8/91-N isbany ele|
‘ON "19) loyoepog xey
29¢8-1 BISMOUDIN Wiy
‘ON 'Hap 34819 (ediojunyy
¥20z/LelzL SEAEISNON XOIN 8LvLD S$AZoWo L unpeId
3ddy "BLO jo sjeq
fi Z
¥C0g/LETt enluer eizo4 T102/5L/8
yzoz/LerZL usyog ualey) Sle1djo lediounpy
Z2coz/Leret

neuyojug weasey

sazdxg uuay

auwleN saidxg wio | aweN s JoAepy

2¢0¢ L€ Jaquiadag Wba1g usydarg
siaquwiay Apog Buiuisaogn

dvO

NOLONITHNgG ‘ALNNOD TIANYT LNNOW 4O JIHSNMOL ALIVLIDINAIN

(1390aNg 120¢ ANYdNODIY 1SN

133HS V1va IVdIJINNIN 1202




1 i99yg

Ag 1zoz ‘pajeq

SID[AIBS JUSWILIBAOL) [BDOT JO LOISIAIQ BU3 O 10393410
slieyy fjunwiwod jo juswpedaq

AISHIC M3N 40 T1ViS

*Ajuo Bujofaloy

843 03 Joadsar yim payiuad si 1e6png pejdope sy apew uaag aAey |eaosdde yons o) uciipuos
e se paiinbay sabueys Aue pue aw Aq paynsad Aisnotaald 18bpng panoidde ayj yum pasedwos
ud3q sey sasodind 230] 10} uolexe} Aq pasies aq 0] SUNOWE ay} ey} paluaes Agaiay i

1176} UDJ3e3HIHaT 513 o8ilJ6APE JOU 0Q,

139ang G3IJ0OAV 40 NOILYDIJILYID
i
[ $30vdS 3S3HL 3SN LON o4 |

JaquinN auoyd sS3IppyY
1900 [eOURULS JOIUD 0029-5£v-968 £v080 'N 'S88yJoop
$saIppy JUBUNOIDY jeddunpy passisiBay

PeOY 9sI0H 3UUM L09

Lzoz jHdy jo Aep zL sy} ‘aw Ag payisal

rzoz! judy jo fep Zh sly} ‘s Aq payius)

bes 18 L-¥ivor V'S'T'N 'MeT JaBpng feoo

oy} ynm soueydwoo fing ui st 186png auj pue suopeudoidde jo (gj0] oy} S|ENbS sanUaAaL

pajedionue Jo [£]0} aY) '4001d Ul SIE UBISY PBUIBILOD SJUBWISIE]S |j€ ‘1081100 ale suonippe

e 3wy "Apog Buiuianon syy Jo ¥is|D oy} yym ajiy uo 1euIBLO sy jo AdoD 10EXS UE S| Jed e
apew AqaJsy pue ojasay paxsuue Jabpng panoidde sy} jey; payiues Aqaiay sty

‘suotielidosdde jo |ejo} ay) sjenba senusaal

pajediojue Jo (B30} ay) pue ‘Joosd Ul 818 Uialay PUIBILOD SJUBWIBIE]S |[B '1o81100 3JB SUojIppe

lle 1eys *Apog BuiuisAcs sul 4o Y1815 8ul Yim all uo jeuibo 3y} jo Adoo joexs ue sjued e
spew Agaiay pue ojasay paxauue j9bpng peacidde ayl 1ey} payipeo Agatay si Y

JBquINN SuoYyd

L000-v£2-858 Lzoz” 1Hdy jo Aep 41 sy} ‘s Ag payeg
5S2IpPY (PP #-0€:6 "DV I'N
$S080 IN 'l2IneT Junop PUB 9-7'W0¥ "V'SN JO SUOISIA0Id B YiiM S8OUBPIODDE Ul SPBUW B¢ |[IM JUSLBSIBAPE ayqnd jeuy) pue
S52.ppY Loz itidy jo fep zZL
peOY [BINET JUNOW Q01
NICTTe) ay) uo Apog Buiutenog auyy Jo uonniosai Aq panordde 186png eyded pue 3aBpng ay; jo Adoo sny & §) Josiay
Wed e apew Agalay pue ojaisy paxauue jebpng jenden pue 186png aus Jey; payao Ageuay st
'120C 1ea [easi4 ay) Jo) NOLONITMNG j0 Aunog T3HENYT LNNOW jo diHSNMOL 8y} Jo 1ebpng fedpuniy

139dng IvdIJINNIA
X4\ 14




¢ 199ysg

'suosiad pajsalsui

Jayjo 10 sishedxe} Aq psjuasaid aq Aew | z0z 18 ay; 105 uogn|osay Xej pue }obpng pies o} suooalqo aceid pue swi youm e Ng 320[9,0 00/

e lzoz! Ol Aepy uo T3ANYT LNNOW 40 dIHSNMOL 1e P2y aq {im uoynjosay xe | pue 1abpng ay) uo BuuesH v
‘tzog! cl ludy uo' NOLONITHENG 0 Aunog 13ENYT INNOW iy
dIHSNMOL ay; jo SHIGWIN TIDNNOD au} Aq panoudde sem uoynjosay xe | pue 19Bpng ayj jey; USAIB Aqalay si 910N
juasqy
sheN sofy
(aweu Jsej pasuy)
pauieisqy J10A Q3qH023Y
‘120t leak ay) Joy yebpng ay; se Buimojio} ayy anosdde Agaley seop IFUNYT LNNOW i0 dIHSNMOL 9y} Jo Apog Buiusenog ay .
Lzoz' Gl judy jo onssi sy} Ui
sauwll] Ajunog uojbuling 8y} ut paysijgnd aq jebpng pres jey} 'paajosay Jayund i ag
‘120z tead ayi oj 19bBpng |ediiunyy ay) o1nsuoo lieys suoljelidoldde pue sanusaal O SJUSLWISIELS Buimolio) ay} jey ‘panjosay jl ag
120 les jeosl ay} 104 NOLONITING 40 Ajunop 139NV LNNOW 0 dIHSNAMOL ayl jo jebpng jedoiunpy
‘I uondsg

d011LON 139ang TvdIDINNIN



€ 193ysg

8G'C69°LL1LC

xe] Areiqry wnwijuiy (2)

(11 193ys ‘(q)9 way)) xe] [ooyss 12143sIq [E20T O3 UCHIPPY (q)

L1°829'v8¥'0¢

(11 199ys ‘()9 Wayy) saxe] pajoajjooun Jo} aalasay Buipnjau| sesoding Jedioiunyy 1o} xe | jes207 (e)

XXX X

{smojjoy

se) 196png jedioiunyy jo poddng Joy saxe] Aq pasiey aq 0} Junouwly :9ouaiayi] ‘9

89'8/5'¥6G'81

(saxe, juanbuiiaq wioyy sidj90ay pue senusaay snoaueljaosyy ‘sniding o) (1 | 399YS 'G wayy) xey Ajadoid Jusiing ueyy JayiQ sanusAay pajedionuy isse g

€Y'668'9ST L $- 0202 plv 31B15-5|00Y2g 10} (6Z 193Us ‘6 wayy) suonendoiddy |eieuss) [ej0] b
T sz souemoly ply Buipiing
00°000'049'¢ suoRdsjjoD Xe] jo Juadiad| %6826 Pajewnis3 uo paseg (67 399US ‘W Wal)) Soxe] Pa}oa|jooun J0j OAIDSAY °§
92°09.'6v8'G (62 199ys ‘0 wayl) ,.SdV2,, woij papniaxa suonerdorddy [eseusn (ejoL
- (62 192 "y wayj) 3abpng jediotunyy ui sasoding jooyog 3o1IsIq (€907 (q)
92'09.'6¥8'G {{popuawe se g'¢5-p:v0y "v'S'T'N)(8Z 393US ‘2-H W)} sesoding [edidiuny (2)
XOOOXXXXXXKX » «SdV D, Wwoij papnioxs suonendoiddy -z

AN AL AN

{(z'sv-v:vor 'v'sT'N)61 398Us “L-H wisy)) sesoding [edioiunyy (2)

XOOOOXXXXX - «SdV2., uiyim suoneudoiddy |
XXOXXXXXXXX (38bpnq pasiuaape u; payiwo aq pinoys Jequnu 193Ys pue wa}i 0} 52ualdyAY) 1104 suonendosddy [esausn
1202 dv3A

1390N8 d3A0YddV 40 NOILO3S ANNd INIWMUND 40 AUVNNNS

INIWILVLS AYOLVYNYIdX3



eg Jooyg

« Sainypuadxaisn)

- - - [4:RATRZIN T4

pajeoue)) saoueleg
papuadxaup pue sainypuadxs [ejo |

- - - 000

ps|@oue) sadueleg papuadxaun

- - - 61'GLG'186'C

poAlassy

- - - £9°2€€°€9/2°0¢

(soxe | pejosjjooun
o} anissay Buipnjou|) pabieys 10 pied
‘SaInjipuadxg

- - - 28'¢S8 v O

suonelidoiddy [ejo |

suofedosddy Aousbiallg

6€°928'vZE L8-v'VO¥ "V'S'T'N Ad peppy suoieudoiddy jebpng

- - - £v'920'0ey oy 1ebpng paidopy - suoijeudoiddy 1ebpng
Annn Annn Ansn Aunn Aunn Ayan jabpng
felauag

G3T3ONVI ANV GIANTdXI SNOILYINDONddY 0202 40 AMVANNS

(penupuo?d) - INIFWIALVLS AMOLYNVIAXI



(‘Buipuejsiopun uazjyo jo sasodind Jof seinbyy

8y} sUIqUIOD ‘UONYBS ,,SdVD,, WOl Papnioxg uoiesad(,, Jopun osje pue Uol30as tenbal oyy ug sieadde pp 9 § 991j0d Ji 69)
INZLI INIT IVIDIA40 INO NVYHL SHOW ONOINY avIHdS JHY LVHL SNOILVINdOYddY IHL 40 NOILONNd A8 AMVININNS V 2
("sainbBy ayj moys pue uesw ,.SdyD., 33 JBYM SPIOM U] uieldx3) ‘AI1YIND TV SYM .dVO. THL MOH 'L

qe jesysg

‘40 AHVINIAINS V IANTONI LSAN IDVSSIN 139ang WNWININ AMOLYANYIN

‘310N

12'89¢'LSY'ee %S'€

€T LLL'G8L

¥0'L61'989'LE %01

SLLEO'ELL

10°€9€'96¢
96'¥52'S8T
8L'EL6'061L

68'651'€16'0¢

® 61 193y .SdVD, UM suolieudoiddy wnwixeyy

%SC
%St

"9|GBMO|[e 9SBRIOU] JO JUNoWY
"8j8l 0D O} 8SE8.10U| [ELORIPPY

@ 61 198US ,SdvD. Ulum suoheudorddy wnuwixepy

SUOBIPPY [Bjo L

yueg deg 0z0Z

sueq ded 6102

(uoneayiuay J0ssessy) UONINASUOD MmN
‘suolippy

(€°6¥-v'VOP V'S 'N) Jod suopndeox3 |euonippy
a10jeq suoneudoiddy Bugesad( sjgemoipy

NOILLVINOIVO dVo

68'651'CL6'0E (€'Sr-¥v0y "'v'S'T'N) 1ad suondaaxg jeuonppy

2J0j2q suoneudosddy Buielado sjgemoiy

dv0 %0'L
palddy st dYD UDIUAA UO Junowy

68'0£0'90€
00'680°209'0€

00°/€6°CL8'6 suondaox3 jejot
00°655'L29'¢ S8XE | PBIOs{oUN J0) DAIBSEY
ioysq ysed
sabiey) passjeq |e10)
suswabpnr
00°'259'9¥S sweisboid s1eAlLd 8 diqnd [ejo]
199Q |ooyds | adA L
uoneonp3 o pleod o} paliajsuel |
00°052'982'¢ 808G 198( ejo )
00'000'00¢ sjuswanoldw [eyde) jejoy
suoneudoiddy [euoRippy [eloL
00°000'62 JUslWaalby a2iAs8S {BI0IBIU| [B]OL
8pOD UOBONIISUOD WIOHUN [B10f
009.v'e8¥'2 suoyesadQ JauiQ 8o
1§87 suondeax3y
00°920'029'0p jelolang

‘Jusuwysnipy aseg den

00'920'02¥'0F 020z 104 suoyendolddy [elsuss ejo)

NOLLYINDTVD dvD

JOVSSIN 13oangd

(penupuog) - ININWILVLS AYOLVYNYIAXIT




(2) a¢ 398ys

H

sebep pue ssueeg
Ianepn siijausg yiesH

"Alsjesedas pajebpngq si
Junowe no-1do siyl 120z o) ino-jdo ue pajosia saey
soshojdwa ‘sjjeusg uyesH Buiaiaoal jo peaysy|

00'000°062'¢ TVi0L
dV¥D epIsing - ssueinsu; dnoig pajabpng

SN - sourinsuy dnoio) pajabpng
00°000'05¢'c dVvO 8pisuf - soueinsu| dnoi pajebpng

00°000'0S2'e

00'000'996 "dwa 9)qibija e woy uongIauoD

:saafojdw3 Aq peInguiucg a4 0] SJNOWY PajewRsy

00°000'9i2Y ¢ 1202 - siso) ssueinsuj dnoic) pajewysy

aoueunsut dnoig aafojdwa sAyedidunyy sy jo dess e s| Bumojjo4

NOILVI¥dO¥ddV FONVENSNI dNOYD 40 dvo3d

JOVSSIN 139ang

(panuuo)d) - INIFWILVIS AHOLYNYILX3




dv0 Are- ¢ jesys

(8L 6LL'ELE)

11°829'v81'0T

SeLvL'L6E' LT

8L'€16'061

£1'9€8'002°L2

00'85Z°LLY

11°9/5'682'0¢2

(uononpouul Joj Japun o |enba aq jsnw)
dVD AATT %2 (MIANN) HO H3A0

S3S0dANd TVIDINAN HO4 NOILYXVL A8 Q3SIvy 38 O1 INNOWY

NOILYXVL A8 Q3SIVY 38 OL LNNOWY ITaVMOTIV WNWIXVYA

paliddy sueg dvd Ane
wnpusisjey Ag pascidde sjunouwry
Ane 0} Juswsnipy sjqeiey meN
(001 ¢ iod) ajey x| BS0dINg 18207 S JBSA J0ld
UOIJOMNISUCO M8U 10} 95B3IIU| - SB|QEIRY MBN
‘suonippy
AAZT XYL @Iisnray

2se0
00.'9€2'pS

suoisnjoxg pspuadxsun 10 pajjaoue) ssa7

Sianep papuadxauf 10 pajjeouen sso

SUOISN|oXd ejo . ppyY
saiouablawy :sabieys paiisja(] Jesx Jusin)
papunjun uonexe] ainin4 o} abseyn patialag
uoneudoidde xe} Buyohosy
"oU| $95897 [ENde) pUB 90IAIBS 1q3(] 3|qBMO|lY
asealou] sjuswseacidwi jeude) sjgemoly
9SEBIU| dVYSOT 8lgemoly
sasealou| suonebiqo uolsuad ajgemo||y
258840U] S1S07) 92UBINSU| UJjBaH 3|qemojy
asealou] sjuswealby a01AIaG PaIBYS B|GEMO|lY

SUOISN|oX3

SNOISNTOXT OL ¥OIMd AAIT XVL a3isnray

00'8Ly'eee
00°0¥8'cZ

11'945'682'0¢2 SNOISN1OXH OL ¥OHd AATT XVL aaLsnrav

Uoloun 4/001A18g Jo uopdwnssy snid
AATT XVL d3Lsnrav
aseaIou| dvo %2 Snid
uonenoled dvo 10 Xe | 8soding fedisiuniy 1oj AneT xe | Jes A Jold 19N
'$897
1§89
xe| Buioosy Jeap ioud 5597
sapusblaw3y :sabieyn palsejac] Jeaj Jold 1ssa7
papunjun uolexe| aiming o} sabiey) paiiajag 1eaA lold [sse7
18597
uoexe | Aq pasiey oq 0} JUNOWY JesA Iolid

11'916'682'02
G1'9£9’' L0V
Zv'1e6'18E'0T

Ty Le6°18€°02

NOILLVINOTVD dV3 AATT

NOLLVINDTVO dv3 AATT AUVININNS

290 °2002 TT'd Ul %09 feulBlLIC ay) Wols peonpal s YdIym %0g AlUo jo ssaoxe
Ul B10A B $34iNhaJ MOU WINPUBIBjaI 18104 B[ "ISAIBM §47 BU} SBAOWSI OS[ }] "SUOISN|oX3
pue suojjdeoxs au} Jo SUWIOS S3YIPOU PUE %Z O} %} SU} SI0NPa. JUSWPUSWIE }S8| ay |
{14 62-S) ¥ 2 0L0Z T'd PUB 9 "2 800T “1'd Aq PapuswE sem 'z9 0 ‘100z “T'd

MVT dVO AATT LINM TVOO0T 0102 AISYHIr MAN

JOvssan L3Ioang

(panunuoDd) - INIWILVLS AMOLYNYIdXI




pe 198ys

6LL'ELB

BLL'ELB
8Z9'v8Y'0¢
Lyl'lBe'le

T

Yueg dvo Are eloL

(¥20T AD - 2202 AD) Bubjueg ioy sigejeay

asodingd (edioiunyy Joy uopexe | Aq pesiey aq o} junowy

uonexe| Aq pasiey aq o} JUNOLWY 3/qemojly WNWIXep
Leoz

{€20ZAD - 7202 AD) Piemioy Auer o} souejeg
120z ut pasn unowy
(€202 AD - 1202 AD) Bupjueg Joj aqefieay
mmOn::& _ma_omcz.z 10} uoijexe >n pasiey aq 0} Junowy
uonexe | Aq pasiey aq o} unowy 3|GeMO||y WnWIXen
0zoz

(zz0z AD) premiog Auen o} souejeg
120z ul pasn Junowy
(220Z AD - 120Z AD) Bunjueg 1o} sjgelieny
asoding |ediounpy Lof uogexe] Aq pasiey aq o} Junowty
uonexe| Aqg pasiey aq o} Junowy 3qemojly wnuwixey
6102

aiidx3 o} aoueleg
L20T ul pasn Junowy
{120z AD) Bupjueg oj ajgeeAY
ssoding ledioiunyy Joy uonexe] Aq pasiey aq o} unowy
uoexe] Aq pesiey 8q 0) JUNOWY 9|qeMmojly wnwixep
8L0¢

‘SHNVE dVO AATT .0L0Z.,

JOVSSIN 13oang

(penunuoDd) - INIWILVLIS AMOLYNYIdX3




v 199ys

00'629'e5¢E 00°000's¢e 00°000'00¢ 0z1-80 s9a4 uonesibay jeusy
81L1-80
P11-80 sniding bugelado Ann pajedionuy
W'12L'916 00°000'05¢ 00°000°05€ £L1-80 slisodaQ pue SjusWISaAUl Lo 1SaIa1U]|
L11-80 slalspy buniied
GL1-80 SJUBLUSSESSY UO S}S00) PUE 1Salaju]
€0 vOP'eYe 00°000'692 00°000'68¢ 2i1-80 S8Xe | U0 §1$0J pue isalsiuj
601-80 1BYIO
28'6¥5'68¢ 00°000'05S 00°000°009 otl-80 Hnoy |edioiungpy
XXX XXXXXXXXXXX XXOOOKXXXX I XXX '$)S07Q pue sauly
v1'8.2'LL 00°000'L. 00°000°L.L S01-80 sjiwied pue saa
00°G¥8'ZL1 00°000'00L 00°000°001 ¥01-80 18U10
00°09€'e8 00°000'08 00°000°08 £01-80 sabelanag [[0yod|y
XXOXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXX YOO || XXXXXXX R EEVERIR
XXX XOOKXXXXXX XX | XXXXXXX SONUBAY [eD07T Y UOIJD8G - SBNUBAdY SNODUE|BISIA '€
00°000'699'9 00°000°G99°9 00'000'0%¢"2 00L-80 pajedionuy snjding |ejo
Z01-80 S8JIAISG JUSWIUISAOD) [BI01T JO 1030311 JO JUISUOD USJLIAN JOLId UM pajediouy sniding -z
00°000'599'g 00°000'699'9 00°000'0v€’L L0L-80 peledionguy sniding -}
0207 ut ysed 0202 1202 V0o SINN3IATY TVHINID
ur pazijesy psjedionuy

SIANNIAZY A3LVIDOILNY - ANN4d LNIFHUND



ep 1o9ys

(penunuoo) sanuanay [€307 v UORDAG - SanNUBASY SNOBUE|SISIN 'C

020z ur ysed
ul pazijeay

0coc

lcoe

pajediojjuy

v02d

SINNIAIY TVHINID

(panunuod) - SANNIAIY Q3LVIDILNY - ANN4 LINIHHIND



qv 3seys

(penunuos) senusasy |e20 1y UoRdBg - S9NnuUaAay SNoBUR|[aISIN ‘¢

0Z0Z ui yseo
ui pazijeay

0coc

74114

pajedioyuy

vOOd

SIANNIATY TVHINTD

(penuyuod) - SINNIAIY AILVIDILNY - aNNd IN3YHNO



op josyg

0v'6£8'8/2'C 00°000'L99'L 00°000'98.'L 10080 9NUaA9Y [BJ07 Iy uolnoag [ejo)
(panuyuoo) senuanay (8207 iy uopdag - ssnuoasy snosue|a9siy ‘¢
020z ut yseo 0z0¢ XA T4 VY004 SANNIATY TVHINID
ul pazjjeay pajedionuy

(penuyuod) - SANNIAIY AILVCIDILNY - ANNd INIHAND



§ jodyg

00°195'528'¢ 00'195'628'2 00'195'628'2 100-60 suoneudolddy Buniasyo INoylM piy 91e1S g UoRdaS [Bj0]
00195'628'2 00196'628°¢ 00°186'528'¢ 20260 (291 8 zoL sieideyd “7661 1d) XeL sidiadey ABialg
002-60 Py jaliey xe| Auadold |edidiunpy pajeplosuon
21260 ply jeuonisuel |
suoyeridoiddy Bugiasyo 3noysina PiV 9}e}g g UOI}D9g - S8NUBA8Y Snosue||aISH '€
020z ul ysen 0202 Leoc vOo4 SANNIATY TVHINID
ui pazijeay pajedionuy

(penunuod) - SINNIAIY AILVLIDILNY - ANNA INIJHHND



9 l83yg

00'860°162'L 00'000'6/2'L 00°000°00%'L 200-80 suonendoiddy yiim jasyo $8984 9p0D UoiIdNASUOD WIOYIUM pajedIpag (9 uoi}oag jejo
091-80 $884 8p0J U0IONIISU0) WiIoun
XXXXXOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXOXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX (LL'v-€2'6 "0V I'N PUB UE SH-+V0F ¥ ST N)
suogendoiddy yim 19syo ssa4 apon uonoNAsSUOD WHOHUN pajedipa (euoliippy
XXXXXXXXXXX XXX X XXX XXXXXXX 1S3D[AIBG JUBUWILISACE [E007 JO 1039811(] 4O JUBSUOD
UBHUM J0Ld YIIM pajed|dnuy anuaAay [eJBuUan jo Wway| |eioadg
00'860'LGZ'L 00°000'6.2'L 00°000'00%'L 091-80 $984 8p0) UOIONIISUOD WIoHUA
OOOOXXXX XXXXXXXHXXX YOOXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX
(LL'¥-€2:S 'O’V "N pue 9€-¥:VOV 'V'S''N) suoneudoiddy yum 19sj0
$834 8po UolINsuUOD uLojiun psjesipag D UopRIag - SANUIAIY SNOBUR[DISIN 'C
020z Ul ysen 0202 120z Vo4 S3INNIAIY TVHINIO
uj pazijeay pajedionuy

(panunuod) - SINNIATY AILVCIDIINY - ANN4 ININAND



L I93yg

SOOOXXXXXX XOOOXXOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX :suopeudoiddy YlIp JoSHO Sjuswiaaliby aoiAlag paieyg
S80IAIBG JUBWILLIBAOD) [BD0T JO 1030841 9U3 JO Juasuo) UBIILIAA J0Lid YHIAA
pajedionuy snuanay jeioues jo Swsy| [e1oadg @ Uonoag - SsnUaAdY snoaue||sosiiy ‘¢
020Z Ui ysep 0z0Z 1202 V094 SINNIAIY TVHINIO
ul pazijeay pajedionuy

(PenuUiUO)) - SINNIAIY QILVIDILNY - ANN INIHYND



B/ J99yg

XXOOXXXXXX XXXXXXXHXXX XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX :suoperdoiddy ynpa 19syQ siuawealby adinieg paleys
S8JIAIaG JUBWUISACY |BDOT JO 10}2811(] DU} JO JUBSUOD USHLIA JOLE YA
pajediopuy anuaAsy jeisusg Jo sway| [e1vads :Q UOCi198g - SONUSAdY Shosue|[adsiiy "¢
020Z u1 yse) 0zoz 1202 VO94 SIANNIAIY TVHINID
ul pazijeay pajedionuy

(penunuod) - SINNIAIY AILVIOILNY - ANNd INIHNND



9. }9syg

- - - 100-L1 suoneldolddy YA 19SHO Sjuswoaiby asialag paieysg :g uonosg |ejo]
XXXXXXXXXXX JOOOXXXXXX XOOOOOXXX | XXXXXXX ‘suopeudolddy YA 38SHO SjUBWSaIBY 8diAIeS paleyg
SJIAI3S JUSWUIBAOY) (B30 JO 1039341 B} JO JUBSUOD USHIA 01 d UMM
pajedionuy snusasy [eisusg jo sway jeroedg g uoyoag - SaNUdA8Y Snosue|[adsiy ‘¢
0Z0Z uI yses 0202 120z Vo4 S3NNIAIY TVHINIO
u pazijeay pajedionuy

(penunuod) - SINNIAIY QILVIDILNY - ANNA INIJHEND



8 193yg

- - - £00-80 SONUBADY |BUOIIPPY - SBJIAISG JUSWIUISAOY [BD0T JO 40108lI(] JO juasuon
XXXXXXXXXXX SOOOCONNXXX XXOOXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX USHLIM 10Ld YHM pajedioiuy anuaAsy [elauac) Jo wWay jetoadg :3 uonoeg |gjo
XOOOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXX MOOXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX {Ue'sr-v:vor ‘'V'S'TN) suopendoiddy yum jasyo sanusasy
[BUOHIPPY - S8JIAI9G JUBWILIAACY |BD0T JO 10}281I(] BY] JO JUASUOD UIPLIA Jold YHm
pajedionuy anusAay [elauac) Jo swsy| [etoadg :3 uonoeg - sonusAay snosuej[adsiiy ‘¢
020z u1 ysed 020z 1202 V094 SINNIAIY TVHINID
uj pazijeay pajedionuy

(penuiuod) - SINNIATY QILVIDILNY - aNN4 INIHAND



6 }9ayg

000062 000052 188-zL el AUnwwo) JeWepA
00°000'G.L 00°000'S/.L 2/8-0L e vied Ajunod uoibuing
00°149'9 00°'1/99 £69-01 weJbold diysisuped 1SSA J00id 18)ng
6EP89'L8 6E¥83'L8 209-0L welbold jueisy safjiunwiitio uesy
¥0°L.2'8S v0°LL2'8S 16°680'6. 695-0L JueIS) ebeuuo] bulokosy
00'005 L ¥¥ 00°00§' LY 85501 wieiboid piv [edidiuniy 610z A4 UOTELIOdSUBIL JO JUSWIEdaq N
00°000'01 00°000'01 L8501 aouesissy juasuwiabeuepy Aousbiawsg
65°699'v 0150l JUBJD) JusLUB2I0JUT BUIALI Jumig
000009 00°000'9 605-01 JBAQ Pe|Ind 185) 1O 183408 aAli(
00°00S'S 00°00S'S 000006 804-04 JUBIS UMOPYORID apimalels Buinl( pajoensig
0012621 001621 90s-01 asnqy Bnug pue wsyoyod|y 15ureby soue|y fedioiunpy
Zy'sie's rGlE'S 81°888'y S06-01 pun4 jusweoe|day Jouwly Apog
0000009 00°000°09 00°000'09 £06-01 WeJibold SeNIUNIKIO) 81ndag puE ajeg
XXXOXXXXXXX XXXXXOXXKX XXOXOOXXXX H XXXXXXX ‘suoijendolddy yiim 1asyQ sanuansy ojealig
PUE JligNd - SBIIAISG JUBWUIIAOS) [BD07T JO 1030341 JO JUSSUOD USIILIA 1011d YHAA
pajedionuy anuaasy [eJausg Jo sway| [e1oadg 4 Uoydeg - SINUBABY SNOAUE|(SISIY '
0202 U1 yse 0202 120z VOod SINNIATY TVHINITO
ui pazijesy pajedisnuy

(Penuiuod) - SINNIAIY AILVLIDILNY - ANNA INIYNND



16 199ys

G8'8/¥'1/9 G8'8/%'1/8 89°/19'/G1 100-04 S9NUBADY aleAlid pue 3i[qnd - SadIAIeg JUBLLILLIBAOY) |BDO JO 103281 4O JUBSLOY
MOOXKXXXXKXX XXXXXXXXXXXK XXX | XXX USRHM Jolid yim pajedidiuy anuanay [elsuss jo way jeivadg 4 uonoeg [ejof
XXXXXXXXXXX OOUXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXX {(panuguoy) suonendoiddy yum jasyo SBNUBADY o)BALId

pue aliqnd - S93JAI9g JUBWUIBACY [BD0T JO 10328.1(] J0 JU9SUOD UBJMIAA 10LId YIIpA
pajediojuy snuansy jeisuag jo swsy| |eoadg 4 :o._uomw - S8NUAA3Y shoaue|[adsiy ‘¢
0Z0Z U1 ysey 0202 2oz V024 SINNIAIY TVHINTD
ul pazijeay pajedioluy

(penunuod) - sINN3ATY d3LVdIJOILNVY - ANNd LN3IYMND



0l l93ys

00'816'v8¢ 00°000°05¢ 00°000'G.¢E 2¥2-80 Awioyiny sammn jedidluny Wod) UoRNgUILOY
ZrEEs’LyL’L 00°000°002'} 00°000'00€"} +%2-80 sbuilig sadinieg [edips|y Aouabiawg
20250 Ly 00°000'0% 00°000'0¥ ovz-80 [eluay Jamo| enoadg
00°000'0s¢ 00°000'0G¢E 00°000'05¢ 122-80 |exded jelsuas~-spuog Jo juswhed 1o} aniesay
¥2'606'8.1 00°000°G.4 00°000'G/1L 211-80 S984 8SIyouel ]
8€'9€8'8GE"L 00°000'000'2 00°000°000°¢ £01-80 Xe| Aouednoog fedpiunpy
9L1-80 Jea dold o sniding Bugeiado Aun
SOOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXNKX XOOOXXXXXXX || XXXXXXX Iswiay|
fetoads 19U - S9JIAISG JUSWUIDAOSL) |EDOT JO 10328li( JO JUBSUOD UBNLIAA 1011d YHAA
pajedionuy anusAsy |eiauag jo sway |e1oadg 9 UOI}J8g - SBNUaBA3Y SNoaue||adSIN ‘¢
0202 ul yse3 0z02 Lzoz vO24 S3INNIATY TVHINID
ut pazijesy pajedionuy

(penunuod) - SINNIAIY A3LVIDILNY - ANN LNINHND



ugL jesyg

90'6YG'LOV'E 00°000'G}+ ¥ 00°000'0v2'% ©00-80 swigy| [e19adS JOYIO - S3DIAISS JUSWUISAOD [8D07] 40 40}DalI] JO JUBSUOD
XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXHX XXXXXXXXXXX | XXXXXHX USBLIM J0Hd ypm pajediouy anuaAsy [eJauso Jo swiay| [e1oadg 9 UoRIag [E}0]
h690.04 064644 XXX JOOOOOXAXXX OO .S}
le19adg Jayl0 - S8IIAISG JUBWIUISAOD [EI07 JO 1032311( JO JUSSUOT) USHILIAN Joud YUM
pajediouy anuaAsy |eJouss) JO SWa) e1oadg 9 UORDBS - SINUBADY Snoaue(|aosiy ¢
020z ui use 0202 120z vOod SANNIATY TVHIANIO
uj pazijesy pajedionuy

(penunuod) - SINNIAIY QILVCIDILNY - ANNA LNIHHND



L1 399yg

G82G6'EEY v 28'268'vvL'0F €v'668'95C LY 66Z-¢1 sanuaAay [elausy jejo] -}
GE'Z62'620'92 LBCLY'905'2e §/°02€'299'2e 661-L0 196png |edidiuniy jo poddng oy saxe] Aq pasiey aq o3 Junowy lelo}
XXXXXXXXXXX G5'GLY'vel'e 8G'269'//1°C 26120 xe| Ateigim wnwiuiy (0
XUXXXXXXXXX - 161-20 X2] |0040g Jo11SIJ |ED07 O} uolippy (g
XXX Zv.€6'L8¢8'02 11°829'v8v'0¢ 061-40 S8X2 | P8josjjooun oy saiasay Buipniou) sesoding [edioiuniy 10} XE [8o0T (8
XXXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXXX XOXOXXXXXXXX XXXXX :18bpng jedidtuniy jo Lioddng 1o} saxe] Aq pasiey aq 0] JuNowWwy ‘9
05°099'708'81L G8'BEY'RET'BL 89'8/G'v65'8l 66L-€L (v pue ¢ ‘z ‘| swayj) senuaAay [eiauan [BJ0IqNS '
6L PELLSTL 00°00t'5t8 00°00%'5¥8 66v-G1 saxe] juanbuijeg woJy sydiasey ‘b
1£°925'889'01 G8'6£0'82. 04 89'8/1'60%'0L 660t} S8nuaAdy snoauejjassiiy jejoL
90'6¥5'LOY'S 00°000'GLL'Y 00°000'0¥Z'y ¥00-80 SUIBI| [E10308 JSUIQ - SSOBS JUSWUIEAOS ) Loljoag |810.L
1BO0T JO J0199JIF §O JUBSUOD USHHAN Jolid Ylim pajedioyuy snusaay [e1ausy) jo swaj) jeadg
mwwNV_ er mww\.v. —.Nw WON _‘O.\;m_‘ 100-0) SINUBAIY deAlld pue 2lqnd - sadinesg TUBWUIBA0D) ”& CO_.«Omm amwo.._r
183077 JO 101031 JO JUBSUOD USJILAA JOUd Yiim Paledidiuy anuandy (BIaUag) O SWay| {eadg
- - z £00-80 S3NUBASY [EUOCIIPPY - S80IAISS JUSLIUIBASS g uonoag [eyo]
18907 JO JojoaX( JO JUBSUOD UBNHA JOU Uiim palediofuy snuaasy [B1auan) Jo swaj| jenadg
- - - 100-11 SjuswWasIby adIAISS pale(s - S83IAI8S WBWUIBACYH :q uoyoag 810 |
1BO07 JO 1010817 jO JUBSUOD USHIA JoUd Yim pajedioljuy anuansy (e1auag jo swa) [eadg ’
00'860°15¢2'L 00°000°6/2°L 00°000'00%'L 20080 suopendoiddy yim 1980 §894 8pOJ UOKONASUOD WIOHUN PRIEdpeq 0 UONISS [E10L
00°195'6¢8'e 00'195'6¢8'¢ 00°196'G28'¢ L00-60 suciielidoiddy BUNSSHO INOWIM PIV S181S g UoIj08g (8101
0v'6€8'8/2'C 00°000°LY9’L 00°000'98."L 100-80 SaNUBASY [BO0T [y UOII0SSG (B0
XOOOO0XXXXX XXX XXX XXXXX 1S3NUBABY SNOJUR|jRISIN "¢
- - - 201-80 (z# ¥ 1994S) S891AIDG JUSWLLIBACE) |BD0T JO 1030aJIQ JO JUISUOD USRI JolUd Ylim pajedisuy sniding  *Z
00°000'598'9 00°000'699'9 00°000'0¥E'L L0180 (1# ‘v 19ayg) pajedionuy sniding
XXXXXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXX
sanuaAsy jo Alewwing
0Z0Z ui yses 020z 1202 V024 SINN3IAIY TVHINIO
uj pazijeay pajediojuy

(penupuod) - SINNIATY AILVCIOIINY - ANNS LNINEND



¢l 1sayg

00°000'GL 00'000'59 00°000°08 00°000°08 00°000'6Z GE1-0Z SS0IBS UPNY
SL6Y0'LZ ST 0Sv'ee 00°005'¥S 00°005 ¥S 00°00S '+ 0E1-02 sesuadx3 1o4i0
56'688'C1 500117162 00°000 #0€ 00°000'70¢ 00°000'9.2 0€1-0g sabep pue saliees

- - aoueuUid jo 101084
29'818'v9 8£°181°0G 00°000'GL} 00000611 00°000°G}L 0Z1-0z sesuadx3 J8y10
LL'e6eTL 68058502 00050'8L¢ 00°050'8L 00°000'2€2 0zZ1-0¢ sabepA pue saliejes

- - }8[] diysumMo | Jo 8310
50'609'C ¥6°06¢€'Z 00°000°S 00°000'S 00°000'G 0L1-0¢] sesuadx3 JByiQ
890 25°020'0E 00°/22°0¢ 00°/2Z'08 00°/22'0€ 011-0Z sabepy pue sauejeg

- - [Isunoy pue ..0>m§
v1'6.£'89 98'0Z1'902 00°00§'v.2 00°005'v22 00°00S'v2Z 001-0¢ sasuadx3 Jayi0
ZL/6L'6 882652 00°0S€'¢S 00°05€'2S 00°000'8LZ 001-0Z sabep pue salejes

- - Jabeuepy diysumo

pabieyn silajsuel] ||y uoeudoiddy
poalasay o preg Ag payipoy sy || Aouebiowy 0zZ0zZ ‘o4 120z 104 «SdVO., Ulylim - suogesado (v)
0z0z Joyjeyol | Ag 0zoz 404 VOO
0202 papuadx3 pajendosddy SNOILVIHdOYddY TvHINTID '8

SNOILLVIYdO¥ddY - ANNd LNIHYND



€l I99ys

8z'glLe'se z.°189'091 00°000'061 00°000°0S1 00000051 G91-0T EEIE e NETS)
- - Jssuibug diysumo |
0000t 00001 00°001 00001 S51-02 sjuawbpnp
e v8Y'se 99'GLS'vS 00°000'08 0000009 0000009 GGL-0¢ sasuadx3y J8yio
- - S1S09 pue sadinteg |ebe] 1aui0
LEPPELS) 69'G59'261 00°000°06¢€ 00°000°05¢ 00°000'05¢ §61-0¢ sesuadx3 isYl0
. . Joyolios diysumo |
28'8€2'09 8L7199'LL 00°006°L. 00°006°LL 00°006'2. 051-0¢ sasuadx3] 1810
£€8'621'8 LL0eL'slL 00'058'¢€8l 00°058°e8L 00000981 0S51-02 sabepn pue sauejeg
- - Jossassy Xe |
Le7e8'ze 69292'12 0000} 'ty 00°001L'6E 00°001'6¢ SyL-02 sasuadxg 18410
z9'Ce8zl 8€°29C'8LL 00°00L°LEL 00°00L°LEL 00000724 S¥1-02 sabep pue sauejeg
- - 10)08)j|0)) Xe]
pabieyn sigjsuel] |1y uonendosddy
pansasay 1o pied Ag payipopt sy | AoueBiawg 020Z 10§ 1z0z 104 (penuguos) - ,gdvo,, ulyim - suopesadg (y)
0207 194 &30, Ag 0zoz 103 v0Ood
020z pepuadxy pajeudosddy SNOLLYIMdO¥ddVY TVHINTD ‘8

SNOILVIMdO¥ddY - ANNd IN3INH¥ND



vl 193yg

00°000'S 00°000'S 00000'G 00°000°G C | 961-2¢ sasuadxg 1Byl0
9g9Cl'e voeel'ey 00°068'GY 00°058'Sy 00°8€9'9F b | 961-2C sabep pue sauejes

- - juswaniojus buisnop
18°80€'6 6L LYE'S 00°059'84 00°059'8t 0005981 Z | g8L-ig sasuadx3 18410
1£'868'8Z £9°1.02'89 00°00L°.L6 00°00L°/6 00°000'09 L {S8L-1g sabep pue seuE[eS

- - sjusuysnlpy Jo pieog buiuoy
£8°65P've LLvYS'yL 00°000'6€ 00°000'6€ 00°000'6¢ ¢ 08L-ig] sasuadxy Jayio
6+'890°'8 1G7LE9'ps 0000429 0000429 00°000'¥9 L]08L-LZ sabep pue sauejeg

- - pieog buiuuejq

- - (1-ass ov) meT 88N pueT [edpunpy

- - LNIWDOTIAIA ALINNWNOD 4O INIWLEV4ad

pabieyn slajsuel] vy uonendoiddy
Panlasay 10 pied Agl payipoly sy Aouabiswg 020Z 104 b20Z 10} (panunuod) - ,sdvo., uiym - suonesado (v)
0202 19§ [Bj0L Ag 0zoz 104 vOo4d
0202 papuadxy pajeudosddy SNOILYIMdOYddY TVHINTIO '8

SNOILVIIdO¥ddY - ANNd INI¥NND



Sl jeayg

0v'Zv6'sE 09°.50°Ly 00°000°08 00°000'08 0000008 192-62 sasuadx3 bulng - sesuadx3 Jay10
19205709 6E26L°CL1 00°00€ v/} 00°00E¥LL 00'00€ vL1 19262 sasUadx3g 18yi0
¥5'9/5'202 9b'Eey LLET) 00°000°085°1 £0°000°05¥'L 00°000'S.¥'L 19z-6¢ sabepn pue sauejes

- - $30IAI9G |edipa|N Aouabialwy
€L°6/E°S 17079t 00°000'6 00'000'6 00°000'6 zsz-ge sasuadxd Jayi0
6L OpECL 18'65L°01 00°005°c2 00'005'€C 000052 752-62 sabep) pue salieles

- - $301A18G Juswebeuely Aouablauig
€809 L L9'LBE'G.E 00°000°06€ 00°000°06€ 00°000'06¢ ovez-6e sasuadx3 JByl0
6l ¥S¥ 95 18'S¥ZG6L L 00°00L°159°2 00°00L°169°2 000002082 ove-SZ sabep pue saliejeg

- - aoljod

- - AL3AVS 2178Nd 40 LNIWNLIV4Id
€0'791'692 16'1£80112 00°000'086'C 00'000'052°E 00°000°052°¢ 0zT-€e UiresH dnoig sskoidwig
0/°80£'921 0€ ¥59°009 00'€96'92. 00'€96'92. 00'6ZL ¥y. Glg-€2 uojesuadio] SISO
0E°6HS'28 0L2l1vee 008LLLLE 00'8LLLLE 00°000°162 0iz-€2 Angery [essuss

- - ((00)E"S¥-¥'YO¥ 'V'S'T'N) soueinsy]

pebieyn sigjsuely ||y uoneudoiddy
paAlasay 1o pred Ag paytpop sy | AousBiswy 0Z0Z 10} 1202 1o} (penuguod) - ,sdv9, uynm - suonesado (v)
0zoz 10j 18301 || Ag 020z 40} Y024
0Z0z papuadxg pajenidosddy SNOILVIMdO¥ddY TVH3NID '8

SNOILVIIdO¥ddY - ANNd INIHAND



egl Jeayg

0Z'759'65 08'/¥0'061 00°00/'stC 00°00.'stC 00'00.'6vZ Gle-92 sasuadx3 J8yio
¥8°/20'8 gi'cel'see 00°051'9¢2 00°051L°9€2 00°000L¥2 Gle9Z sabep pue ssueles

- - SBOIYSA JOIO 4O SoUBUSLIEYN
T L29°0L 8GC/C'6YT 00°000°0Z¢ 00°000°042 00°000°022 01£-92 sésuadxg 18410
GE9LLL8 G9'€80'cEL 00002712 00002712 00000212 01€-92 sebep pue saliefeg

- - spunoug) pue meU::m aljgnd
- 00°000°05€ 00°000°05€ 00°000°05¢ 00°000°05€ 00£-92 pund Jsni] moug
£.°265'79 [T'/G6'0. 00°055'GEL 00°065°GEL 00'0G5'SEL 06¢-92 sesuadx3 Jayi0
Z6'Lieze 80'880'2/v'L 00°00¥'709"L 00°00% 709’1 00°000'2€971 062-92 sabepn pue sauejes

z - aoueUdUE pue sileday pecy

- - SHYOM 21M9Nd 4O INIWLIVYdIa
- 00°000°G9 0000059 00°000G9 0000069 §/2-ST sosuadxy JBYI0

. z JOIN08S0. dIYSUMO |

- - AL34VS O178Nd 40 INIW.LHVEIA

pabieyn siajsued} ||y uonendoiddy
paalasay 1o pred Ag payipoy sy | Aousbiewzy 020z 404 120z 104 (penunuod) - ,sdvo, uiynm - suonesadg (y)
0Z0Z dojje301 || Ag 0zoz 40§ Y024
0Z0Z papuadxg pejendoiddy SNOLLVIMdOHddY TVYHINID '8

SNOILVIRIdO¥ddY - ANN4 INIYEND



45} 198yg

€9'LBE"LZ L8'809°SLL 00°000'G6. 00000052 00'000°05. Z | gze9e sasuadxd Jayi0

- - bas e Z'€2-/9'0F VSIN

- - 1oV ssoueg (Aiunwwo) [edidiunpy
y6'6€6'LZ1 90'¥90ZL. 00'000'006 00°000'006 00°000'001L "1 Z | §0e-9¢ sesuadxg 1ayi0

- - lenoway yseij pue abeqies

- - SHYOM D119Nd 4O LNIWLHVY4Ia

pabieysn slajsuel] ||y uonendosddy
pantasay 1o preg Ag paiyipoly sy | AousBisiug 020z 10} 120z 1oy (penuiuod) - ,sdvo,, uyum - suopessdg (y)
0202 494 [ejoL Ag 020z 10y vOood
0202 papuadx3 pajeudoiddy SNOLLVIMdO¥ddY TYHINID '8

SNOILVIYdOYddY - ANNd IN3IHYND



961 199yg

LZeve'zel £1'959'081 00°00£'69¢ 00'00€'69¢ 00°00£'69¢ ¢ | 6.e-82 sasusdx3 J8ylo

£7'600°9¢ 1G°061'cyE 00°00Z'69¢ 00°002'69¢ 00°00g'9.¢€ L1 §2¢-82 Sabep pue saliees

- " SxIed JO aouRUBIUIEY

08'2£8'09 0C'z9l'62 00°000'06 00°000°06 00°000°06 ¢ | 0.e-8¢ sasuadxy 1810

19°920'y 6EELE'LE 00°000'9€ 00°000°9€ 00°000°0L L | 0/g-82 sabep) pue salefeg

- - Uofieasday pue syleq

- - NOLLYIHOZY ANV SHYVYd 40 INFWLHVLId

9Lziv'e v2'/8G'E 00°000'9 00°000'9 00°000'9 ¢ | Ove-Lg sasuadx3 Jaylo

- - [oU0YD [euuy

00°001 00001 00°004 0000t Z | lee-Lg sasuadxz Jayi0

- - aoue)sISsyY 21qng

- - JHVATIM ANV HLTVEH 40 INFWLHVYdIa

pabieyn siajsuel] jiv uoneudoiddy
parsasay 4o pred Ad paylpopy sy | AouaBiswizy 020z 10} 120z 1o} (panunuod) - ,sdvo., UM - suonesadg (v)
0zoz 404 jejol | Ag 0zog 40} v0od
020z papuadxy pajendolddy SNOILLYINdONddY TVHINID '8

SNOILVIYdO¥ddVY - ANNd IN3INHAND



PSL 193ysg

0Evr0'slL 0L'6Gv'9L 00°00S'LE 00°00G°LE 00°00S°L€ Z | 06v-tY sssuadx3 JaYi0
9 vLS'0Y $5°6L1L'9/2 0005.'9te 00°05.'gLE 00°€0E'/1E L | 06-€h sabepn pue seliejeg

i N 06v-¢t Hnoy edpjunyy

- - iepusjs( dlignd pue 1noD

oL'Lev'szl 06'800'258'L 00°005'68.'} 00°005'68."L 0000L°028'L 2| s9v-¢¢ $1S0Q [esodsig 81SeAA PIOS/ijPUET
0s°0€z'ee 0G69.L°LS 00°000'G8 00'000'68 00°000's8 ¢ | 09v-LE Swybry oyyell
L1082 £8'6v.'6 00°000°LL 00°000'L1 00°000°L1 C | GSv-Lg iamsg
65°026'L9¢C ir'8.0'c12 00°000°G.y 00°000'G.y 00°000°G.Y 2| lvy-ig autjoseo
ZE950'61 89'EP6'TL 00°000°¢e 00°000°¢¢ 00°000°2¢ | Shv-ie 191 A
18°45¢'¢e €LZreeyl 00°000°0LL 00°000'04L 00°000'0/1L | Obp-Le auoydsel
9£'0ee'v8 9'699'G1LS 00°000'009 00°000°009 00°000'009 | GEP-LE bunuby 1eeng
09°99%'981 ob'ees'ele 00°000'09y 00°000°'09¥ 00°000'09% | oey-Le VS IEETE]

- - S9seydInd Ming pue sasuadx3g ANnn

pabieyn silajsuely ||y uonendosddy
panissay o preg Ag payipop sy || AouaBiewg 0207 10 L20T 104 (penunuod) - ,5dv9,, UM - suonesado (v)
0202 104§ (210 | Ag 0zgz o} V004
0202 papuadxy pajeidoiddy SNOLLVIYdOYddY TVYINID '8

SNOILLVIYdO¥ddY - ANNd INIHHND



9Gl J9vyg

pabieyn sigjsuel] ||y uonjeudoiddy
paniasay Jo pled Ag payipoy sy | AoueBiswg 0Z0Z 104 LZ0Z 10§ (ponunuod) - ,gdvo,, uyum - suopessdo ()
020z 104 jejol || Ag 0z0zZ 40} V024
020¢ papuadxy pajeudosddy SNOILVINdOYddY TVHINID '8

SNOLLVIYdO¥ddVY - ANNd LNINHND



8l 1@3yg

60°cl6'op 16'920°86 00°000'S01 007000501 00°000's01 Z | S6L-2¢ sasuadxz Jayio
Sy'/9L'6 G5'Ze0'208 00°00Z°L18 00°002°108 00'615'/58 L {66i-¢C sabep) pue sauejeg
[0 uonanysuo)
89P0 UOHONNSUOD ULIOHUN 818lg
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XOXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XOOOXXXXXX XXXXXX (LL'¥-22:5 "O'V'["N) sanuaiay patedipad Aq 19550
2O0000XXX XOOOXXXXX XXOOOOXXX XOUXOXXXXXXX XXUXXXXXXK XXXOOOXXX XXXXXX suojjerdolddy - apog uogoniysuoy unogun
pabieysn slajsued] ||y uopendosddy
panlasay 1o pred Ag payipoly sy || AousBiowg 020z 104 120z 404 (panunuo) - ,sdvo., unm - suogesadq (y)
0Z0Z 10} jej0L Ag 0zZ0Z 104 vOod
020z papuedxgy pajeudosddy SNOILVIMdOHddV TVHINID '8

SNOILVINdO¥YddY - aNNd LNIHHND



B9l ja3ys

XXXXXXXXXX MXOOKXXXNXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX (L1'+-€2:5 "3°'V'["N) Senuaaay patesipad Aq 13130
JOOOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXOXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX suogeldosddy - apog uononasuOY uLioyun
pabieyn siajsuei] Iy uonepdoiddy
paAlasay 10 pled Ag payipop sy Aousbiswy 0202 104 Lzoz 10} (panuyuod) -, sdvs,, uynm - suogesado (v)
020T 104 €30 Ag 0zoz 104 V024
020z papuadx3 pejeudosddy SNOILLYINdOXUddY TVYINIO '8

SNOILVIMdO¥ddV - aNNd INIH¥MND



Ll I99ysg

- 00001 00°00} 00°001L 00°001 L Sly-og $80UasqY PaleiNUNIdY
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXHXX XOOXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX 'a3idISSVIINN
pabieyn sigjsuel] ||y uonjeudoiddy
paAlasay 10 pieq Ag payipo sy || Aouabuswzg 0202 Jo} 1Z0Z 10} (Penunuod) - ,sdvo, ulyim - suogesado (v)
0zoz 204 B30 | Ag 0zZog 4o} Y024

0202 papuadxgy pajendolddy

SNOLLYIYdO¥ddY TVYINID '8

SNOILVIYdO¥ddY - ANN4 LNI¥HND



Bll 1939yg

20°€0.L'p05'2 86°..9'8€501 00°'L8E'ero'clL - 00'L8€'E0L'ElL | 00'6Z0'0EE'EL (2| Lozve (sueBuguog Buipniouy) sasuadxg Jayio
LE€°€G6'890°L 69'€/¥'668'CL 00°/Z¥'896°EL - 00°/2b'8z8'cl 00°/85'862'vi b | LoZ-ve sabep, g saliejeg
SOOXXXXXXX OOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XOOCXXXXXXX XXCXXXXX XXX XXXXXXXXXX HILIET ]
£€'969'e/5'¢ L9LG1'8e¥'ET 00'808'L10'/2 - 00'808°L£6'9Z 00'919'829'/¢ L0z-ve «SdVO., WYHMm - Juabupnuo)
Buipnjou; suogesado jejo1
- - XXXXXXAXXX ¢ | 0iv-GE jusbunuon g
£€'969'¢/5'¢ L9'LSL'8EY'EC | 00'808°LLOLL - 00'808'1€6'0Z |/ 00'919'829'/2 661-v¢ «8dV0. uiyum {(v)g weii} suogerado 1810
MXOOKXXXXX AXXXXXXXXX MXOOCXXXXXXX XXOXOXXNXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXOOXXXXXX XXXXXX :a3idiISSVYIONN
pabieyn slajsuel] |y uoneldoiddy
paAlasay 10 pied Ag psyipo sy Kouabiawg 020z 404 1eoeg 10} (panunuod) - ,sdvo., ulyim - suonessdg (y)
020¢ 10§ |BJ01 Ag ozoz 104 vOOo4
0Z0Z pepuadxy pajeldosddy

SNOLLVINdO¥ddY Tvd3INID '8

SNOILVIIdO¥ddY - ANNd INIHYND



81 3j9sys

200X - XOOXXXXXXX
XOXXXXXXX - XAOOOAAXX
DOOEXXXXXX - },0.0.6.6.6.6.¢¢.¢4
XXXXKXXXXXX - XXXXXXXXXX
SOOXXXXXXX - XXXXXXXXXX
XOOOXXXXXK - XXXXXXXXXX
XXEXXXXXX - 14.0.0.64.4¢.¢.¢4
XOOXXXXXXX - XOOXXXXXX
XOOOOXXXXX - AXOOOKXKX
1, 8.0,0.0.0¢.0¢44 - )8 0.4.0.4 09004
XXXXXXAXKX - XXXXXXAXXX
XXX XXNXKXX - P 9.0.0.640.6.4 04
OO - XHOXXXXXXX
XOOXXXXXX - XXOXOXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXX - XXXHXXXXNXKX
XOOXXXXXAX - XXX AKXXX
) 8,690,000 0.0 4 - HOOXXXXXXXX
XOOXXXXXXX - XOCOCXOXXNXXX 0/8-9% suonezuoyiny Asusbiaw3g
XXXXXXXXXK XXHXXUXXXXX XXHXUXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XOOOCNXX XXXXXX SADUVYHO aayy34Ia (1)
XXXXXXXXXX SO XXXXXXXXXX OO XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX .SdV¥D. ulpmedpiunpy
- saunyipuadxg Aioymess pue sebiey) passageq (3)
pabieysn siajsueld] [y uopneldoiddy
paAlasay 10 pied Ag payipon sy Kousbiawg 020z 10} 120z 4104
020¢ 104 je301 Ag 0zoz 104 Y0024
020z papuadxgz pajenrdoiddy

SNOILLVIHdOHddY TVHINID '8

SNOILVIYdO¥dddY - ANNd LN3IYHND



egl }93yg

XXXXXXXXXX - XXXXXXXXXX
XXXXXXXXXX - XXX
XOXXUXXXX - XXX
OOOXXXXXX - XXX
XOOOOXXXXX - XUXXXXXXXX
0 0.:0.0.6.6.6¢9¢¢ - XXX XXXX
XOOOOOXNXX - XXX
OO - XXX
XOOOXXXXXX - XXXXXXXXXX
XOXXXXXX - XOOOXXXXXX
XXX XX - XOOXXXXXX
P O0.0.6.0.0°0.60¢ - OO
OO0 - XXX
XXXXXXXXXX - XOOXXXXXXX
XXOOOXXUXX - KXOXXXXXAXX
XOXOOOOOXNX - OO
OOOOXNXXXX - XXX
XXXXXXXXXX - XXOOOXXKXX
XOOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXAXXXX XXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXNXX XXXXXX SIDUVHO gI¥uI43a (1)
1 8,69 064,604 XXX XX XXOOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXKX XXXXKXXXXX OOOEXXNNX XXXXXX +SdV2. uiyiim jedisiungy
- Sadnypuadx3 Asoinjesg pue sabieyn patsaeg (3)
pabieysn slgjsued} |y uonerdosddy
PaAlIasay 10 pied Ag payipoy sy Kouabrawzy 020T 104 120z 40}
020¢ 10§ |Bjol Ag 0zoz 104 VO34
020Z papuadxy pejerrdoiddy

SNOLLVINdOYddY TV¥INID '8

SNOILLVIYdO¥ddY - aNNd INIHYND



6l 193yg

61°GlS'LEQ'e §.'€15'6/6'0Z || ¥6'880'209'0€ - ¥6'880'209'0¢ |l ZL'6EL'/E2°1E 662-v¢ UIyim sasoding fedidiuniy 10§
suoneudoiddy (eiausg jeyoy  (L-H)
- - G68-9v lea ) Buipadaid jo Jiayaq yseo (o)
OO0 - 08t-L¢ sjuawbpnp (4)
98'868'/6 80°22Zv'l£S'E ¥6°082'G65' - ¥6°082'629'c L1°€25'80L'Y 60Z-v¢ rediouniy - sainypuadxa Loyners
pue sabieyo pauajaq jejo
SL°21Z'01 G8'Z8L'S 00°000'SL 00°000'0L 00°000°91 L19-9€ (d¥D0) weiBoid wswaiey uopnquuY pauyaq
00’00t 00°001 00001 00°00L 6zZ-£T (b3S 1 £-12:¢b "V'STN)
soueinsu; uoyesuadwo) yuawAhodwaun
- 00°0S¥'926'L 00°0sv'928'L 00°'05'926°L 00°086'¥5L'2 SLy-9¢ [N Jo wasAs Juswailay s,uswall] pue aoijog
- - Y.v-9¢ pun4 uoisusd s,uewslly g a3yod pajepijosuor
98'v0Y Ly ¥1'665'€86 00°000'sz20'} 00°000'620'} 00°000°'001") lr9g (rs'v'o) waisks Anoss (epog
GgocL'g 60'765°L29 ¥6°0€2'229 ¥6°0€4'10L LIEPY'IE8 Liv-9g waisAg Wwawsiney seskojdws algng
10} UolNQIUOD
XXXXXXXXXX XXX YOOOOXXX XXOXXXAXXXX XXXXXOOOXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX STUNLIAONIAXT AHOLNLYLS (2)
XXX XXOOXXXXXX P 0.066.0.96¢¢¢ OOXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXXXXXX XOOXXX (panunuoa) - «SdVD. UIYIMm fediounpy
- Sainjipuadxg Auojnjelg pue sebieyy peatasjeg (3)
pabieysn siajsuedy jiy uofjeuudosddy
paslasay 10 pled Ag payipol sy Kousbiawg 0zZ0cg 404 L20e 410}
020¢ 10} jejoL Ag ozoz 1o} vOOod
020z papuadxgy pajerdosddy SNOILVINJO¥ddY TVHINIO '8

SNOILVIYNdO¥ddY - ANNd ININYND



0¢ 393yg

00°000'00¢ 00°000'00¢€ 00°000'00¢ 00°000'0Z¢ gey-0¢e sieaddy xe] loj snlasay
- 00°9.t'vel 'z 00'9/v'veL'T 00'9.%'veL'E 86°¢69'LLL'T 06€-6¢ Aleiqiv oljang 8314 jo soUBUSIUIEY
- 00000'6 00°000'6 00°000'6 00'000'6 86¢-9¢ SouBUSUIBY JS]EMULIOIS
00°'000°0G 00°000'0S 00°000°05 00°000'05 982-5¢ we.boid spiemy solnieg jo yibue
pabieyn silajsueil |y uonjeudosddy
paAIosay 10 pied Ag PalipoON sy >o:0m._mEm 0202 10} 1202 10} wSdVD., Wolj papnjox3z - suoyesadp (y)
020z 40} |ejo ) Ag 020z 104 v0od
0202 papuadxy pajeudoiddy SNOILVIHdO¥ddY TVHINTD '8

SNOILVIIdO¥ddY - aANNd LNIHAIND



BQC 199yg

00°000°0S¢ 00°9/V'CELT 00'9.¥'c8t' - 00°9.v'c8p'e 85°269'959'C 00€-¥€ #SdV0,, Woljpapnjox3 - suoneladQ Jaylp [ejoL
pabieyn siajsued] ||y uonjendoaddy
paAlasay 10 pied Ag payipoly sy Aauabiawig 0Z0zZ {0} 1zoz 10} .SdVD. Woliy papnjoxg - suonelado (y)
0202 40} €30 Ag 0zoz 104 vOod
0202 papuadxg pajeudosddy SNOILVYIMdO¥ddVY TVHINIO '8

SNOILLYIMdO¥ddVY - ANNd LNIWUND



IZ 1o3yg

- - - - - 666-22 suoyenidoiddy apoy uoposnisuocy utopun [ejo
2O000XXX XXXXOXXXX OOOXXAXX HXXXNXXNXXX OOXXXX XXX XXUXAX (Ll p-€2:G DYTN) sanuanay
834 paseaiou| Aq 19slQ suoyeudosddy

XXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXX SOOXXXXX XXX XXX 9pP0Y UoHINSUOH Wolun

pabieyn siagjsuel] ||y uofjerdosddy
paatasay i0 pred Agl payipoly sy Aouabuawg 020z 40} 120z 10} «SdV0,, Woi} papnjox3 - suopessdq (v)
gzoz Jojjeyol | Ag 0zog 4oy V024
020z papuadxy pajeudosddy SNOILVINdOYddY TVHINIO 8

SNOILVIYdO¥ddY - aANNd LNINNND



ZZ 193yg

- 00°000'62 00°000'G¢ 00°000'Ge 00°000'6¢ RN AY sesuadx3 Jayjo
z - [0jU0D [eUIUY
XOOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXKXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXOXXXXXXX XXXXXX sjuswsalby aolaiag paleys
pabieyn siajsuel] |1y uonetdosddy
PoAlasay 40 pied Ag payipoy sy Kouabiawg 0Z0Z 404 L20Z 4104 «SdV., woy papnjox3 - suonessdo (y)
0202 194§ |30 Ag 0z0z 104 vOod
020z papuadx3y pajendoiddy SNOILVINJOYddY TVYINID 8

SNOLLVIdO¥ddY - ANN4 LNIYIND



BZZ 199ys

XOOOXXXX XOUXXXXXXX XUXXXXXXXX XAXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XOXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX sjuawaaiby sainieg paleys
pabieyn sisjsuel] ||y uonetidosddy
PaAlasay 10 pied Ag payipoiy sy >u:®m._mc._m 020¢ 10§ 120¢ ioj «SdVJ,, Wwoy papnioxg - suonessdp (vy)
0z0z 403 el | Ag 0zoz 404 VY024
0z0Z papuadx3 pajeudoiddy SNOLLYIMdO¥MddY TVHANID '8

SNOLLVI¥dO¥ddY - ANNd LN3I¥¥ND



qce 18’ys

- 00'000's2 00°000°62 - 00°000°sZ 00000'sZ 666-Z¢ sjuawaalby asiAleg [edidunyy [e20[is}uU] [E10 L
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX sjuawsaiby adiAlag paleys
pabieyn sigjsuei] |y uonerdosddy
paalasay 10 pred Ag payipoly sy Aouabiawig 020z {0} 1202 104 «SdV0,, Wwolj pepnjox3 - suogesado (v)
0Z0Z 104 |ejO L Ag 0zoz 10} vOOo4d
0202 papuadx3 pejendorddy SNOLLYIMdOMddVY TYH3INTD 8

SNOILYIMdO¥ddY - ANNd LNIHNND



€2 j9dyg

- . - - - - £0¢-v¢ (Ue'St-¥:v0oy 'v'S'TN) sanuaasy Aq
Jasyo suonjendorddy jeuonippy jel0L
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX YOOOXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX (US'SY-v:Yoy 'V'STN) Senuaasy
Aq 19sy0 suonedoiddy jeuonippy
pabieyn siajsued] [y uonendolsddy
pPaAlasay 10 pied Ag payipo sy Kouabiawg 0202 404 120T 10} «SdV0,, wolj papnjax3 - suopesedo (v)
020¢ 19} [Bj0L Ag 0z0Z 104 v02d
020z papuadx3 pajelidoiddy SNOILVINdO¥ddY TVHINID '8

SNOILVYIIdOYddY - ANNd LNIHHND



¥Z 393yg

- 00°005'C 00'005'2 00005z Ci 188-0p UeI9 AJUNWILLOY JEIBAA
- 00000641 00°000°G.¢ 00'000'G.I ¢l cogLy el iied Aunod uobuiung
- 001499 001499 00°L.9'g C | 6S5-Ly weiboid diysisuped JSaA Jooid i8ling
- 6E¥89°L8 6E¥89°L8 6E'¥89'L8 L 209-Ly weibold Juel9 SeRUNWWGY UES|)
- v0°2.2'8S v0°LL2'8S v0°L.2'8S 16'680'62 ¢ | 69G-L¥ Welig sbeuuo] Buipkoay

- 00°00S L vt 00°00S'L¥v 00°00S L b 2| 6551y weiboid piy fedidunpy
- - - uofjepiodsuel] Jjo Juswyedsq rN
- 00°000'0% 00°000'0L 00°0000L L] LES-LY soueisissy juswabeueyy Aousblaulg
- N - 65699t L OLS-LYy JuBl9) pun Juswaoioug BuiALq yumig
- 00°000'9 00°000'9 00°000'9 L | 60S-1¥] 18AQ PalInd 189 40 13908 oAl
- 00°005'G 00°00S'S 00°00S'S 00°000°'6 L | 805-ip iUl UMopXoeID spimalels BUIAL pajoelisig
- 00°LL6°LL 00'LL8'LL 0012621 Z | 90G-1¥ asnqy bnig pue wsijoyooy 1sureby souely ledpiuniy
- Zy'SLE'9 Zr'5le'9 Zr'sle'e 81868t ¢l G0G-Ly pun4 jueweseiday lowly Apog
- 00°000'09 0000008 00°000°09 00°000°09 L | £0G-L weibold SaplunWWo)) aindag pue 8jeg
- - - 6681 sjuelsy Joj spun4 buiyojepy
sanusAay Aq 1asyo sweibold sjeAllg pue olqngd

pabileysn sisjsuel] ||y uonendosddy
Paniasay 10 pied Ag payipoly sy Aouabisiug 020 104 120z 104 «SdVO., Woy pepnjoxg - suonelsdp (v)
0202 104 |ej0 Ag ozoz 104 V024
0202 papusdxy pajendoiddy SNOLLVINJOYddY TvHINID ‘8

SNOILLVIHYdO¥ddY - ANNd LNINHND



BpZ J90yg

sanuaAay Aq josyQ sweiboig sjeAlg PuB Slqng

pabieyn slajsued} |1y uoniendosddy
paAtasay io pied Ag psyipopy sy Aousbiawy 020z 4104 120¢ 4104 «SdVD.. Wolj papnjax3 - suopesadp (v)
0¢20Z 490§ |ejo ) Ag ozoz 101 vOood
0202 papuadxy pajerdosddy SNOILVINdO¥ddY TvHINTO '8

SNOILVI¥dO¥ddY - ANN4d 1NIHYND



§Z 193ys

00°000'05¢ 9v°'022'998'C gy0LL'9L2'e - ov0L.'9L2'e 19°0¥9'69.'C 2| soeve sasuadxzy J8y10
- B6E¥8L'EOL B8E¥8L'€ol - 6E V8L 'colL 65°699'¢/ b | soe-pe sabepp 3 sauejes
BL:2ET|
00°000'05¢€ S8v56'620'c S8'vG6'6.E'C - G8'¥56'6/E'C 9z°01£'6€8'¢ S0e-vE «SdVD, Wolj papniox3 - suonessdQ jejof
- G8'8.Y'L.8 G8'8/v'1/8 - S8'8/v'L/8 89°L19°/GL 666-0v sanuaney Aq 39540 sweiboud sjenid pue alqnd (=30
XOOCXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX OXOOOOXXXXX XOOOXXXXX XXX XOOOXXXXXX XXXXXX (1uo) sanusasy Aq 18O swelboid sjeAlld pue oygng
pabaeyn sisjsuedy ||y uonerdosddy
PaAIasSay 10 pied >m POUIPON SY >u:mm._mEm 0202 40} 120Z 104 {ponuyuos) ,sdvo,, woi papnjax3 - suonesado (v)
020C 104 |Bj01 Ag 0zoz 103 vOOod
0Z0Z papuadxy pajeudosddy SNOLLYINdOYddY TVvHINID '8

SNOILVIYdO¥ddY - ANNd IN3IYNND



9¢ 193yg

- 00°000°00€ 00°000°00€ XXXXXXXXXX  {| 00°000°00€ 00°000'00€ 106 tp pund juswiaaoiduy jeyde)
- - 206-vv sjuawianoidwi uo sjuswked umogqg
pafieys slajsueld] [IvY uonedosddy
paniasay 10 pred Ag payipol sy Aduabilawyg 020z 40} 120Z 104 «SdV0,, Wouy papnjox3 - sjuswaacidw) jepdes (o)
020¢ 104 jej0 ) Ag 0zoz 404 vOod
020z papuadxy pajeldosddy SNOLLVYIMdO¥ddY Tv¥INIO '8

SNOILVIRIdO¥ddVY - ANN4 LNIY¥YND



B9¢ Joayg

- 00°000°00¢ 00°000'00¢€ - 00°000°00€ 00°000'00€ 666-v¥ #S$dV0,, Wwoiy papn|ox3g sjuawaaoidu jejides jejo g
) - §98-i¥ 1oV Ajuouiny pund 1sni) uonepodsuel) Aesiaf MaN
YOOOXXXX XX XXUXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXXNXXXK SOOOXXNXXXX JOOOXXXXXXX XXXXXX isenuaAsy Aq jasyo sweifold sjealid pue olignd
pabieyn siajsueld] ||y uopnendoiddy
pPaAlasoy 10 pied Ag peyipoyy sy fouabiawig 0Z0¢ 404 120¢ 40} #SdV D, Woij papnioxg - spuswasclduy jeydes (D)
0207 104 |ejo) Ag 0zoz 1os vY0od
0z0z papuadxy pajendoiddy SNOILVIMdO¥ddY TVMINID '8

SNOILVIHIdO¥ddV - ANNd LNIHHND



L2 199yg

XOOXXXXXX

XOOOOXXXX

XXXXXXXXXX

2O00000XX

OO

XXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXX

XOOOXXXXX

XXXXXXXXXX

XXOOOXXXXX

XXOXXXXXXXX

OOOXNXXXX

OOOXXXXXX

XOOOXNXXXXX

p0.0.0.6.0.00.¢ ¢ ¢

XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX

XXXXXXXKXXX

XXX XXXXX

XXXXXXXXXX

£ 8. ¢.0.6049.¢.¢.4

XXXXXX

:weiboig UeoTisniL usaig

XXXXXXXXXX

S€6-5Y

S8JON U0 1Salaju|

XXXXXXXHXK 00°0GZ'9LL°L

00°052'9LL°}

00°0S2'9LL'L

00°057°0t0'L

€65

spuog uo jsaisju|

XXXXXXXXXX

§26-5%

sajON [elde)) pue ssjoN uonedpiuy pudg Jo Juslieq

XXX 00°000'0£9°L

00°000°0.9°}

00°000'029'L

00°000'048'L

0Z6-5¢

ledialilld puog JO JuSWAEH

pabieyn

panlasay io pred

siajsued] Iy
£g payipoly sy
0Z0Z 194 jejoL

uonerdosddy
Kouabiawy

Ag 0z0z 104

020z 1o}

XA ALY

02Z0¢ papuadx3y

pajeud

ouddy

vOO4d

«SdV3, WoJ4 papnjoxg - aviaIeg Jga( Jedioiunpy (q)

SNOILVINdO¥ddY TVHINID '8

SNOILVIIdO¥ddY - ANNd LNIHHND



/7 199yg

XOOXXXXXXK 00'052'982'2

00°052'98.°C

00052'98.°2

00°05¥'0LL'2

666-5Y

»SdV3. Woij papnioxg 931A18S 198 (ediatuniy [ejo 1

XXXXXXXXXX

XOOOXXXXXX

XOOXXXXXXXX

XOOOONXXXXX

P e00.0.09.¢ 064

XOCXXXXXXX

XOXXXXXXX

SOOOXXXXXX

p8.0.0.0.0.0.4.60¢

XUXXXXXXXX

XXX

XXXXXXXXXNX

XXXXXXXXXX

XOOOXXXX

OCOXNXXX

OO0

SOOXXXXXXX

XXOXXXXXXX

AXXXXXXXXX

pabieysn

paalasay io pied

sigjsuedy ||y
Ag payipop sy
0Z0Z 10} [B3OL

uonendosddy
Aouabiawg

Ag 0z0z 104

020z 404

L20Z 104

020z papuadxz

pajend

ouddy

vOOd

(3u09) ,5dvD,, wouy papnjoxy - edialeg 1gaq fedidunyy ()

SNOLLVIMdOYddY TYYINID '8

SNOLLVIYdO¥ddY - ANNd LINIH¥ND



8Z 19dyg

00°'000'05€ S8'¢0Z'9L1'9 $8'¥02'99%'9 - S8'+0C'99b'e 92'09.'6%8'S 60E-E woyy papnjox3 sasodind [ediolungy
404 suoijeridosddy jesauan) [ejo AN.IV
OOOCOCOXX OOOOXXXXX
OO XXXXXXXXXX §88-9Y 1ea buipasald jo jsyeqg
ysen :piEOg 83UBLIL {8907 JO JUASUOD Joud i (D)
AOOOAXXX 00O
XXOOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX S0v-62 -8¥:0v 'V'S'MN) Sjooyas [es0T jo asn (N)
JOoj uopednpy JO pieog O} pallajsued] N
MXOOXXXXXXXX - 08t-L8 (o3¢'sy-pivor "v'sTN) swswbpnr (4)
XXX AXAXX - - )6.6.0.0.66 490 ¢ - - 666-9% »SdVD, Woly papnjoxg
XXXXXXXXXX - XXXXXXXXXX
XXX - XOOOOOXXX
XXXXXXXXXX - OOONXX
OO X - OOCOOONK
OO - ) 9.6.60.4 446604
)0.0.0.04.0.6.¢ ¢4 - XUXXXXXXXX
XXX - IOOOCXXXXX
XOOXXXXXXX - OO
OO0 - KOO 148-9¢ ? L'SS-PVOV V'ST'N) SIEdA €
- _uonezyouiny Aousbiswzy jerosdg
OO0 - XOOOOOXXXX §.8-9¢v (SG-7'VO¥ "V'ST'N) SIBaA G
- _uonezuouyiny Aousbiawg jepadg
SOOOXXXXXX - SOXAAXXXX 0.8-9% suogezloyiny Aouablawg
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXKXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX SIADYUVHO aIUNI4IG (1)
pabieysn slajsued] |1V uonendosddy
paAlasay 10 pied Ag payipoly sy Aduabiawg 0Z0Z 10} 1202 404 «SdV2,, Wody papnjox3 - fediviunyy - ssbieys pausgag (3)
020¢ 10} [ej0] Ag 020z 10} Y024
020z papuadxgy pajendolddy SNOLLVINdOYddY TVHINIO ‘8
SNOILVIHdOYddY - ANN4d LNIYIND



62 }93yg

6L°GLG'L86'E £9°/€€'€9.'9¢ 28'2S8'vr.L'ov - 28'258'vv. 0F €b'668'952 Lt 66-vE suopendoliddy |eisuan [ejo] 6
XXX £0'666'129'¢ £0'655'1/9' XXXXXXXXXX €0'655'L/9'c 00'000'0/9'c 668-0S Soxel pajos|loaun Joj aatasay ()
6L°GLS'L86'E 09'8.°160'cE 6.'€62'€/0°/E - 6.'€62'€/0'.E €4'668'08G'/¢ oot-ve ({0} pue (1-H) swey} suopeudosddy jeteuag (ej03qng ()
00°000'05¢ G8'¥02'9LL'9 S8'v02'99%'9 - G8'¥0Z'99%'9 92°09.'6v8'G 56€-YE¢ +SdVD,, Woy papnjoxz - suopepdoiddy [el1ausD [e10) (O)
XXXXXXXXXX - - - - - 0Ly-62 «SdVv,, woyy papnioxg (M)
- {r) pue (1) susay|} sasoding jooysg jouisig
JOOOCOOOXK - - - - - 60V-6¢ - [00Y2§ |B207 - saunjipuadx3y
Aiojnjeig pue sabiey) pausjeq eloL
200X - L0¥-62 02-2Z'¥8L 'V'ST'N lawdinby
4o Buip|ing ‘pue Joj 1o9foid [eiden
YOCOOXXXXX - MOOXXXXXXXX 90162 S{o0Udg - suonezioyiny Aousbiswy
XOOOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX SOOXXXXXXXX XXOOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX OOXXXXXX XXXXXX - 1o0Yyag [e207] - saunypuadxg (1)
Aioyniels pue sebreypn patssjeq
X0 - - - - - 666-8 +SdVD,, WoJj papnioxy - aoaIag
igsq foousg youiysic] | ad£| jo jejoy
OO -
1 0.0.0.6.00.0¢ 64 -
XXOCXXXXXX - S£6-8p S9JON UO 1S3l
XOOOXXXXX - 0€6-8% spuog uo jsalsju|
XOOOXXXXXK - 526-8Y S3)ON Uonedidiuy puog o Juswhey
XOOOXXXXXX - 0z6-8v Jedidulld puog Jo juauikeg
OO0 XXXXXXXXXX XOOOXX XAXXXXXO XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXAXKX XXXXXX 821A198 Jg8( [00Y2S Jouysiq | adA) ()
XOOOXXXXX XOOXXXXXXXX XXX XOOOXXXXXX XXOXXXXXXXXX XXOXXXXXXX XXXXXX «SdVO. Wwoly papnjoxg
-_Sasoding jooyssg 3ouisig  [eso] o
pabieyn silajsuel] |Iv uoneudosddy
paniasay o pred Ag payipoly sy | AoueBiawgz 0Z0Z 40§ LZ0Z 104
0202 10} {e30]1 Ag 0z0z 408 YOOd
0Z0Z papuadxy pajerdoiddy SNOLLYIHdOYddY IVHINIO '8

SNOILVINdO¥ddY - ANNd LNIYHND



0€ 399ys
6LG15'186'C €9°/€€'€9.'0¢ 28'258'vil'0Y - 28'es8'vy. oY EY'668'052 L 66v-v¢ suoyendosddy eisus [ejo)
XOOXXXAXXX €0'655'L19'c €0'655'129'C XXXXXXXXXX £0'655°129'¢ 00°000'0.8'¢ 668-05 Saxe| pajasfjooun Joj aatesoy (i)
XOOOXXXXX - - XXX - - S0v-6Z uofjesnpy jo pleogy 0} paiiajsuel ) {N)
XXX - - - - - 0Lv-62 sasodingd jooyos 10u}siq |80 ()
XOOOXXNXX - - XOOXXXXXX - - 588-9% €47 J0 3uasu0) Joud YA - 3Iola YSeD (o)
OO0 - - - - - 08Y-L¢ (8z 199ys) syuawibpnr (4)
XXOOOONXXXX - - XXX XXX - - 666-9% (8Z 398ysg) sebieys pairejaq jei0 1 (3)
XXX 00°05z2'98L'¢ 00°052'98.'2 - 00'052'98.'2 00°05P'0LL'2 666-6v 93IAI9g 1q8( {edidtunpy  (Q)
- 00°000'00¢ 00°000°00E - 00°000'00¢ 00°000°00¢ 666-vv sjuswancidwy jendes ()
00°000'05¢ S8'vS6'620'C G8'vS6'6.E'E - S8'v56'6.€'C 9z0LE'BEB'T §0e-ve «SdVD., Wolj papnjax3g suojesadQ jejoy
- 58'8/v'1.8 68'8.¥'1/8 - S8'8.Y'L/8 89°L19'.61 666-0 sanuanay Aq 1980 swesbold ajeaud g olqng
- - - - - - £0e-ve sanuaaay Aq 9SO suonepdoiddy [euonippy
- 00°000'sZ 00°000'sZ - 00°000's2 00°000's2 666-2v sjuaweaiby adiatag paleys
- - - - - - 666-2Z 8pOJ UOHIONIISUOY WIoHIUN
00°000'05¢ 00'9.¥'€EL'T 00'9.¥'e8y'C - 00°9.¥'e8t'e 86'269'969'7 00E-ve suogesadQ Jayio
AXXXXXXXAX HXXXXXXXXX XOOOOXXXX XOOOXNXXXXX MOOCXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX «SdVJ, woiy papnjoxgy - suogesadp (v)
XXXXXX «SdVJ, Uiylim sasoding jediojuniy
6L°GlS'1€9' G/'€/5'5/6'92 #6'880'209'0¢ - ¥6'880°£09'0¢ LieglLiiel’ e 66Z-v¢ 4o} suonendoiddy [eieuag jejo] (-H)
pabieyn sigjsuel] jjy uonendosddy
panlasay 1o pied Ag payipop sy Asusbirawy 0202 40} 120z 104 suonjetidosddy jo Arewung
020¢ 19} 830 Ag 020z 104 vOOJ4d
020z papuadxy pajerdoiddy SNOILVINJO¥ddY TvHINID '8

SNOILVIIdOYddY - ANN4 LNINYND



L€ 393yg

- - - 665-30 sanuaAay AHjn |ejol
6v5-80 (1ebpng (eiausn) yoyaqg
XXX OO0 XXOOXXXXXX XXXXXX SIOIAIBG JUBIIBULIBADD
[£307 JO 1033811(] JO JUBSUOD UBNIIM SOl Yiim Pajedidiuy SanusAay [elaueg jo sway jeioadg
506-80 ERGENETERST
£05-80 sjusy
- - - 005-80 pajedidiuy sniding BuizessdQ je30]
205-80 SS0IAIDG JUILILIBAOY 1907 JO J0JDDIIQ JO JUISUOD USHLAN JOLH YIIM pajedioguy snijding Bujjesado
105-80 pajediopuy sniding Bunesado
0202 ul ysep 0coc 120e YOO ALFLA  WNO¥4 SINNIAIY a3ILvDIQIA 0l
u pazijeay pajedionguy

1394dng ALMiLN d3lvola3a



¢t 198ysg

- - Z05-6S sgsuedxy Jayi0
- - L05-65 sabepp 1§ saleeg
XXXXOXXXX XXXXXNXXXX XXXXXXXXXX MOOXXXXXXXX OO OOOXXXXX XXXXXX :Bugelado
pabieyn siajsuel] |y uonjendosddy
pasiasay 10 pled Ag payipon sy Aousbiswz 020C 10} 1202 404
020¢ 104 |€30, Ag ozoz 103 vY0OOod ALMIILN HOdA SNOILVINIJdO¥ddY “L}
020z pepuadx3y pajendosddy

(penunuod) - 139ang ALMILN @3lvoia3a



BZe 193yg

XXXXXXXXXK XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXAAXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX :Bunesadp
pabieyn sigjsuel] ||y uonjetidosddy
pantesay 1o pred Ag payipop sy || AoueBiswiy 0Z0Z ‘o4 120z 104
020Z 40} |ej0 L Ag 0z0z 10} V024 ALITLN  HO4 SNOILVIMdO¥ddVY ‘LI
020z papuadx3 pajerdosddy

(penunuod) - 139ang ALILN a3lvoiaaa



qee 8ayg

XOXXXOOXXKXX -

MXOOOXXXXXX -

XOOGOOXXX -

XXX - £25-65 SBJON UO 1salayj
MXXXXXXXXXX - 725-8S spuog Uo jsaialy|
OOXXXXX - 125-55 S8)ON leyde) g SSjoN uonedidnuy puog uo juawheg
XXXXXXXXXX - 025-55 tediduld puog uo jusiufey
XXXXXXXHXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX OO XXX XXXXUXAHXX XXXXXX 192IA19G 1qag
- - Z16-5 Renno jexden

- - OO L15-SS pungd juswsacidw] [eiden

- - 015-5S sjuswancidui} uo suswled umog
XXOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXHXXXXX OOOXXXXX XUXXXX 'sjuswoanoiduwy jejiden
XOOOXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXHXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX :bunesadp

pabieyn sisjsuel] ||y uonedoiddy
pPantasay 10 pied Ag payipon sy Aouabiawg 020¢ 104 1202 104
020¢ 404 j€j01 Ag o0zoz 104 vOod ALITILN  HOd SNOILVIMdO¥ddY ‘LL
0Z0Z papuadxgy pajerdoiddy

(penupuod) - 139ang ALMILN @3L1VIA3q



€€ j99yg

- - - - - - 665-95 SNOLLVI¥dO¥ddY ALIMILA IVLOL
XOONOOXXX - XIOOXXXXXX SPS-GS (3ebpng (esouso) sniding
XXXXXXXXXX - XXOOOOXXXX 26566 SiB3\ 10Lid Ul suonesadQ ul yoyaq
XXXXXXXXXX - 1£5-55 sjuawabpnp
- - (AR T] (bag 1o ¢-iz'e
V'ST'N) aoueinsuj uopesuadwoy) juswholdwaun
- - STRT] ('I'S'V'0) wesshg Ailinoag jenos
- - 0ps-6S WwaysAg Juswalney saskoldwia oiqng
101 uoingriuo)
XXX } 0000944 ¢6¢ O0000XXX XXX X D 0,:00.8.0.0.6.4.¢ ¢ XXX XXXXXX SUNLIANIIXT AYOLNLYILS
XXX - XXX
$0.6.0.60.6¢¢.6.4 - XXX
XXX - XXOOOAXX
XXX - XXXXOXXXXXX
OOOXXXXX - XOCXXXXXXX 0£5-5S suolieziioyinyy Aouasblrawg
OO XOO0OOIXXX 000X XXXOOIXXAXX XXXOXXXXXX XXOXXXXXXXX XXX SIDUVHD A3yEI43a
XXOOXXXX XXXOOXXXXHNX MOOOXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX JOOOXXXXX XOOOXXXXXX XXXXXX saimipuadxy Alojniels pue sabieys patiaieg
pabieyn sisjsuedy ny uonendosddy
paajasay 40 pied Ag payipop sy Kouabiawg 0202 404 1202 10}
020C 10§ [e30L Ag 0zoz 104 vOO4 ALFIILN ¥Od SNOILLVINdO¥ddV “Li
0202 papuadx3y pojeridosddy

(penunuod) - 13asang ALNILN a3lvolidaa



L€ 198yg

- - - 665-80 sanuaAay AN [ejoy
696-80 (19bpng |essusn) yoyeq
OOXXXXXXXX XXOXXXXXXXX XCOOXNXXXX AXXXXX S3VIAIAG JUDLUAUIBAOD
[B207 jo 10}28JI(] 4O JUBSHOD UBHLIM JOL UM pajedionuy SONuUaAdY [eJauas) Jo swayj [ejdads
$05-20 SNOBUB(IBoSIN
£05-80 sjuay
- - - 005-80 pajedidyuy snjding Bugesad fejo
206-80 S20iAIBG JUBLILIBACH [BD0] JO 1030011 O JUISUOD USRI 10ld yum pajedpyuy sniding Bujjesadg
106-80 pajedioguy sniding Buijeiedo
020Z ul yseo 0zoz Leoz V024 ALILA  INO¥d4 S3NNIAIY a3ILvolaaad ol
ut pazijeay pajedioiuy

139dng ALNiLn @3lvoia3aa



C€ l9dyg

- - 205-55 sesuadx3 Jayl0
- - 1L06-5 sabepp % sauejeg
XXXOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXNX XXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX :Bbuneradp
pabieyso silajsuei] iy uonendoiddy
PaAiasay 1o pied Ag payipop sy || Aousbiswz 020z 10} 120z 10§
020¢ 194 [e10L Ag 0zoz 104 vOO4 ALITILN  ¥Od SNOILVIMdOMddVY ‘il
0Z0Z papuadxg pajendosddy

(penunuod) - 139ang ALNILN @3lvola3a



BZE 399Ys

XXOOXXXXXX MXXXXXXXXXXK XXXXXXXXXX SOCXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX :bunjesado
pabieyn slajsuel] |1y uogendosddy
pantasay lo pled Ag payipo sy | AousBlawg 0Z0Z 10} 1207 1oy
0202 10§ jej0 ) A9 020z 104 V024 ALTLA HOd4 SNOLLYINdOYddY °'LL
020Z papuadxy pajendosddy

(panunuod) - 1395ang ALMILN 4d3lvoid3aa



qze 19dysg

XXXXXXXXXX -
XXXXXXXXXX -
XXXXXXXXXX -
XXXXXXXXXX - £25-56 SBJON UO }Saisiu]
XXXXXXXXXX - 225-55 spuog uo }salsju]
XXXXXXXXXX - 125-66 SSION [E}ideD ¥ $8joN Uopedionuy puog uo juswihed
XXXXXXXXXX - 0255 tediouig puog uo juswkeg
XXXXXXXXXX XXXXOOXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXOXOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXHXXX XXXXXX 199188 199
- - Z15-65 Kepno fepde)
- - XXX LbS-6S pun4 wawesosdw| eyden
- - 015-55 sjuswsAoidul| uo sjusWwAeyq Uumog
XXOXXXXXXXK XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXOOXXXXXXX XXX MXXOXXXXXXXX XOXXXX 'sjuawanoidwy [ejiden
- - Z05-55 sasuadxy Jayl0
- - 105-55 sabepy 3 sallejeg
XXHXXXHXXNK XOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXK XXXXXXXXXX MXOXXXXXX XXXXXX :Bunesadp
pabieyn slajsuel] ||y uoneudoiddy
pansasay 1o pred Ag paypopy sy || AsusBuswig 020z 104 120z Joy
0202 10} jejoL Ag gzogz 104 V04 ALITILA HOd SNOILVINAOHddY ‘L)
0202 papuadx3y pajendosddy

(pPenunuod) - 139ang ALIILN da3aivoia3aa



€€ Joayg

- - - - - - 665-59 SNOILVYIMdOYddY ALITILO VLOL
XOOOXXHNXK - MOOXOXXXXXX SYS-55 (39bpng jeisuen) snijding
XXXXOXXXXXX - XXXXXXXXXX 2£5-65 S1B3A Joid ul suonjesadQ Ui yayaqg
XXX - 1€5-GS sjuawabpnp
- - ZY5-5§ (b3g 18 ¢-lzier

YSTN) oue.nsu] uonesuadwo) juawhodwasupn
- - L95-G5 (I's'v'O) walshs Alunsag [eroog
- - 0v5-S§ walsAg Jualuemay s,8ako/dwig Jqng

0 uonnqLuoD
XXX XXXXXXXXXX XA X XXX XOOOXXXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXX ‘SSTANLIANIIXT AUOLNLYLS
MOXOXOXXXK - XXOOXXXXXX
OOOXXXXXX - XXXXXXXXXX
), 0.:6.0.6.66¢0 ¢4 - XXXXXAXXXX
XXX - XXX
XXXXXXXXXX - XXXOXXXXX 0£5-66 suoljezuouyiny Aouablewg
OO0 XXXXXXXXXX 200X OOEXXXXXXX XOOXXXXXX AXOANX XXX ‘STADUVHO aay¥3I43a
XOXOOOXXXXX XXXXXXXXXX XXXXXANXXX XXXXXXXHXX XXX XXX XXX XXXXXX :sainyipuadx3 Atonels pue sabieys paliajag
pebieyn sigjsued] ||y uonendosddy
poAlasay 1o pied Ag payipop sy || Aouabiowg 020z 404 120z 404
0202 104 [Bj0] Ag 020z 104 VY04 ALIMLN HOd4 SNOILVYINdO¥ddY ‘LI
020z papuadxy pajendosddy

(penunuod) - 1395ang ALNILN A3LlvIldag



1¢ 199y
- - 66625 suogendoiddy juswsssssy A [€10)
526-25 SSJON uoljedionuy puog Jo jualuhey
0Z6-25 jediouiig puog jo JuswAeq
pabiey 1o pred 0z02 (XA1r4 1930 INIWSSISSY HOd4 SNOILVINJONdAY 'Sl
0202 papuadxy pojendoiddy
- - 668-25 SeNUBASY Juswissassy Al 810
598-25 (1eBpng Amnn ) woyeqa
101-28 Use ) JuawWsSsassy
020z ul ysen 0202 Leoe V094 WO¥4 SINNIAIY Q31vold3a vl
uf pazijeay pajedionuy

ALILN 1390N9 ININSSISSY A3Lvoliaaa

- - 666-15 suonjendoiddy 1uswissassy |gj0]
SZ6-1§ S8JON uoliedidiuy puog Jo JusliAeq
026-1S iedioulid puog Jo Justiked
pabieys Jo pred 0coc YA rA 1830 INIWSSISSY ¥O0d SNOILVIMAONddY 'Sl
0202 papuadxy pajelidoiddy
- - 66815 SBNUBASY JUBISSISSY B0
588-15 (1ebpng |esausn) noeq
LOL-LS yseD JUSWSSaSSY
020¢C ul ysep 0202 Leoe vOO4 WO¥d SINNIAZY a3lvoia3aa vi
u pazijeay pajedionuy

139ang IN3WSS3ISSVY a3lvola3aa



8¢ 193ysg

« JUswWalInbai jefa) 10430 J0 sjnjelS Ag PajesIpap S| anuaAal pres yaiym o} asodind 9yj Joy pajelsdoidde Aqaiay aie pue anuaaal se pejedionue Agalay ale

BuisnoH sjgeployy ‘suojeus( - JUN 6-) ‘SUOHEUOT WIBS SAMYd [BINET TN Japusjeq Siand [edioluniy Isni] uoneaIoy 38Nl UoleAIasald

QUOISIH PUB pugjle ‘UoiEsIo8y ‘adedg Usd(QISUOREUCE - SBIAOY paJosuodS dIysUMO 'spunJ Jsni| PUISNOH -S54 5800/8Aa0 1oy uonedipnipy sasusyQ bupdied Se|oIUsA

J0JoW 40 Y3y 1 JeqUIOD 0} Welbold ‘weibold UCednp3 80uB)sISay asnqy bRiQ [SWelbold S0UBINSU| J|8g Pun- MOISST S 800/8A8q ‘weiboid Buokosy ‘Aisdold payepo Jo [esodsig

:awoou| weibold - asnqy Bnig pue wsioyosly uo aouel|jy [edidiunpy ‘suonnqLiuos weibold - 3oy sueouay I8p|0
‘I2Y 8po) uondNIIsuOD wioun - s824 Bujutel| sjels ‘saiqowolny ajelS 03 BUIOSED JO B[S JO juswiasinquiay ‘adueinsu| uopesuadwon Juswhojdwisun (SI9o10
ad1j0d [ediojuny fing-yo jo Juswhojdwz apisinQ ‘UOISSILILIOD JUBWO[aAS( SPUBIMOPESY ESUSYIBH ang ssa4 9p0OJ UOIIINIISUOD JeayISy ‘Jsanbag

S8lielq1T Jo sduBUSIUIEY 10} PIY [BISPDS 10 B1BYS [0U0D [eWIUY WY 0Z0Z Jeak syl Buuinp pajedionue sanuasal pajedipap (66-F :VOY “V'ST'N) - 13pry Aq uonesipag

- - - 666-€S suoljendolddy Juswissassy Ajlnn (810l
§26-€5 S9JON uonedionuy puog jo Juswied
0Z6-€5 ledidulid puog jo jusuwifed

pabieyy 4o pred 0c0z leoe 1930 LNIJWSSISSY ¥Od SNOLLVIMJO¥ddY "Gl

0202 pspuadx3y pojeridoiddy

- - - 668-€S S$BNUBABY JuBWSSaSSY AljiN [e10 L
§88-€S {1ebpng AN ) woueq
10}-€5 Ysen) JusWSsSassy

0202 ut ysep 0z0¢ Leoe VOO NOYd SINNIAZY a3Lvdia3aa vl

ur pezijeay pajedionuy

ALFIILA 1390N9 LNINSSISSY a3lvoia3a



6¢ 199ys

(186png j0 Juswasiuaape u) pepnioul 3q Jsnw xipuadde siy| :juepoduwy)

YO ¥bR'L952l 00LLLET Bujutewsy sdveleg sniding 92'68S'/07°'8 00£0222 «S3WIGEIT USED,, SA0qY U] PBPNISU] SouBled.
00°000°0E'L oosiiez || 18bpng L zog w patedidnuy sniding jusingy 26'168'0/¥'Gh 0020222 psliajeq Xe ] Joouog $sa
0 ¥¥8°106'61 00StieT 0202 "1 € Jequads( souefeq snjding 8l Lvy'e/8'es 0.10zzZ ptedun AneT xe L [00U2S
1ebpng Lzoz ut sniding pung juaiing jo os(] pasodoig
pasn aq Aew abejusdsed uana IsaseaN, 01'G91'G680'6E XXX snjding pue SoAIasay 'saijliqern (1o
€v'€6.'62061 YO v18'L06'6L ooviiee 1S1€ Jequads( - souejeg snjding YO b¥8'L06'61 00coLie sniding
LY’ LER'GS9'08L 90°G8Y'€50'¥8L 00ELLET sjuawainbay xe [ pue sanpusdx3 palsnipy (€101 Y2 +S8'vS0'y 00zoL iz $9|qBAI908Y JO} SaAIaSaY
- 00zZLLET saxe] aInnd Aq pasiey aq o} seimpusdxy :Sso] 28'99v¥'8zL 'Sl 0oLoLLz saniiqelT] yseo,
LP'1£8'659'08L 90°68'c50'v8L ooLilee sluswalinbay xe | pue sainyipuadxy fejo SNTdUNS ANV SIAYIASIY ‘S3ALLIgVIT
8 50265 LO'¥9L L2S 000L1E2 3Wodu| Wol suojonpag pue sainyipusdxy Jayjo
99'710'vE8 vl 80CLY9'¥9L'GL 006042 sexe] Jolsiq [eoeds 01°591'680'6€ 0060111 slossy [Bj0L
£6'Z6E'vLZ'ET gL'/16" Leg'ee 0080LE2 (syunowy xe | pappy buipniouy) saxe] 3::00 - 0080L1LL 120z o juanbasqng sjebipng ul aq o} paiinbey sebreys pausyeq
00°'110'020'90¢ 00'868'9G6.' 201 0oL0lL€e (feuoibsy pue (oo Bulpniour) sexe . [0oU3S - 00/0Li1 196png 120z Ul 8q o} paiinbay sebIe|) pellaed
86°L5E£'066'GE 6.°€62°€L0°L€ 00901€2 suogendoiddy jediounpy 99'812'6£8 00S0LLL S ENERENNENG)
XXXXXXXX XXX XXXXXX ‘SINIFWIHINOIY XYL ANV S3IYNLIANIIXI 00°'966'065 L 0050111 uonepinbl ualT oty xe L Aq painboy Auadoid
¥8'¥29'G89'661 01'62£'656'€02 0050L£2 spund jejoL 6Tie'le 00¥0LLL alqeAoay ualt sl xel
$6'9.6'¥00'9L 06'0v9'€98'v1 00¥0L£2 3WWODU| 0} SUORIPPY PUB SBNUBASY JBU}0 9992y 109"t 00€0LLL 8|qeAld8y saxe |
66'G.8'62C'L 6LveEL'LGT'L 00£0L£T sexe] juanbuyag XXXXXXXX XXXXXX 'SeAI5say DUMBSHO Yim Sa/qeneoey
88°080'v29'69| 86°092'018'891 00201€T || (%£0'66 6102 '%66'86 0Z0zZ P8I8|i0) ebejuadiad), (sexe] luaung) 0020LLL S|geAIB08Y SjuRic) 8]B)S pue [eieps
XXXXXXXX XXXXXXXX XXXXXX ‘SISVE HSYOD ¥ NO INNIAIY INIHMND £9'766'6¢ 000LLLL (1961 "Td '0Z )TN 40 91e)g Woyf ang
20'L69'9//'9L £'€6/'620'61 00L0LET 151 Klenuer ‘eouejeg sniding £2°91£'000'6E 00LOLLL SJUBWISaAU| PUE Use)
6102 ¥VIA 020Z ¥V3A e

SNTdYUNS LNIHHMND NI FONVHO
ANV SNOILVY3dO ONNd LNIHYND 40 INIWILVLIS IJAILVEVLINOD

020Z ‘L€ YIFWIDIA - LIIHS JONVIVE ANN4 LNIFFEND

ININILVIS 1390ang OL XIANIddV



ov I99yg

'dID Bundope 10u st pue 'siesh sauy) snoiaaid
Aleeipawwi u; sssodind (eyideo Joy Allenuue gog'sze ey a1ow papuadxa Jou sey ‘0po‘ol Jepun s; Ajedioiunu yi %0340 D

‘poliad swiy wnuwiuiw Buipasoxs siesk D
(syuswusenob Aunos e pue 000'0L 18AQ) 'sieah g D

(000'01 tepun ucpendod) ‘sieaf ¢ D

:1eah yusno Buipnjoul ‘palenoo sieak o Jaquinu Joj xoq ajeudoidde ¥oayy
1eah Juenno ay Buipniou; ‘s1osfoid [ejideo pauueid Jo is)| resh-jinw v - NVHO0Hd LNIWIAOHIINI AVLIdYD

1eaf sy psuueld ale seoueuIpIO puoq ON D

‘Spuswaoidul| uo sjuswAey umo( pue swisy sur feyden
‘pun4 Juswenosdu| leyde) 1o} suoneudoldde Bupnioul ‘000'Gzg peeaxa J0u op Jeaf siy) sanypuadxe [eydes jejo | D

“Aym uosesi auy} ¥o8yo ‘papnioul si j8bpng (elides ou
“1eaf [eosl) JUaLINO BU) Joy saunjipuadxe [eydeo e io; ued v - 139ang Iviidvo

‘Suealws |nymey Jayjo Jo ‘puny juswsaosduwy jeydes ayz wodsy Aauow 343 Bupyey soueuipio ue Aq Jebpnq

Siu} jo Uoiidag Juswasciduly [eyided ay) uy wayl auy| e o uoisniout Aq *aaueuIpIo puoq sjeiedas e Aq ‘aisymasia pajuesh 8Q Jsnw UoROIS Sy} Ul paquosap

sasodind Joj spuny puadxs o} uonezuoyne oydedg "wesboid Juswabeuew pue Butuueld sJiun [eso] ey jo jied se pasn juawunoop e st 3| Jayjey ‘spuny
puadxs 10 asies 0} uoyezioyne Aue Jayuod 43S} Ul Jou S30P ) 'P-0€:§ "O'V'I'N 03 juensind 3aBpng enuuy ay; yum papnjoul s1 uo3oas sy

WVYO0dd LNIWIAOHUdINI TVLIdVD ANV LIDANg Iviidvo
Leoe




B0y 109ysg

WVHO0dd LNIWIAOHdINI TVLIdVD HO4 FAILVHYVYN
134NV1 LINNOW 40 dIHSNMOL




qot 198ys

€-2
- 00°622'L08'Y - - 00'szL'ese - - 00°006'¥50'G XXXXX 39vd SIHL - TvLOL
00'005°22S 00008'L2 00°000'05S Buiuueds g ABojouyos |
- uofewlou; Jo uone|eisu| pue apelbdn
00°000'L¥C 00°000°cL 007000092 20110d 10y sjusuanodul|
- pue juawdinb3 jo uonisinboy
00°05¢'LL 00052’ 00°000'6. Apadoid oyand pue syied o} SjuswaAoidw|
00°000'66¢ 00°000°L2 00°000'02Yy SINT 10} sluawAoIdU|
- pue juawdinb3y jo uoyisinboy
00°006'.£C 000052t 00°000'05¢ sweibold peoy apisul
00'000'G.E'C 00°000'6Z1 00°000'005'2 swieiboid peoy apIsNg
00'625'6¥6 00'G.6'6Y 00°005'666 luswdinb pue sapRIYaA SHIOM dlidnd JO aseyaind
SUVIA pazuoyiny spund jaUi0 sniding pund juaweaosdwill suoneudosddy S¥VIA 1S0D
FHNLNA gaa pue piy Ul sjueln jeydeg leyded 196png Lzoz HOIMd NI vi0L ¥IBWNN
NI d3anNnd ag ps oG qg eg aaIAYISAY Aa1IVALLS 123rodd INLIL LD3rodd
39 oL 1202 - UVIA LINIHUND HOd4 SIADIAYAS ONIANNS TINNVId SINNOWY £ z 3

9

¥

T3ENYT LNNOW 40 dIHSNMOL

Hun feso

(uonoy Jeaj jusnng) 139ang VLAV

(A4



140y 183ysg

€-0
- - - - - - - XXXXX 3IOVd SIHL - TvliOol
SHVIA paziioyiny spund J1ayjo sniding pund juswanosduwi] suoneridoiddy SHVIA 180D
IUNLNL 199@ pue piy ui sjuers lende9 tendes 1ebpng 1zoz HOINd NI IvioL HIAWAN
NI g3anNnd g Pg 3G qg eg A3AY3STY GILVINLLST 103rodd FLIL L23r0ud
39 OL 1202 - YVIA LNIWHNO HOd4 SIDIAYIS ONIANNS GINNVd SINNoOwY € 4 I
w 14

I38NVT AINNOW 40 dIHSNAOL

Hun [e207

(uonoy Jesp Juaning) [39aAng IVLIAVD

leoe



Slejol - qoy 399ys

€-0
- 00°G2.'108'% - - 00'5zL'zs¢ - - 00°005'750'G XXXXX S123rodd T11v - V1oL
SHVIA pazuoyiny spung 1ayjo snjding pund juawanoidwill suonendoiddy SUVIA 180D
JéNLN 393g pue ply ui sjueln feyded leyiden 19Bpng 1202 HOId Ni TVLOL HIFWNN
NI g3annd g PS 25 qs g a3AY3SIY QaiviNILSE L03roNd ILIL LO3rodd
389 oL L20Z - ¥VIA LINIHUNO HO4 SIDIAHMIS ONIGNNL JINNVId SINNOWV € z i
9 v
T2UNVT LNNOW 4O dIHSNAMOL Hun jeoso0
Leoc

(uonoy tesj Jusuind) 139ang IVLIAVD



207 198ys

V-2
- 00'005'¥50'S XOOXXXXXXX || 00°00S'vS0'G XXXXX FOVd SIHL - Tv.iOL
00°000'055 00°000'05S buuuesg g ABojouyss |
- uoljeulojul Jo uone|ieisuj pue apelbdn
00°000'09¢2 00°000'092 a0ljod 40} SjusWaAcIdW|
- pue uswdinb3 jo ucyisinboy
00°000'S. 00'000'6. Auadoid dilgnd pue syled 0y sjuawaaosdul]
00°000'02Y 0000002y SWI Joj suswanoidull
- pue juswdinbd jo uouisinboy
00°000°05¢ 00°000'052 swelbold pecy apisu
00°000'005'C 00°000°008' swelboid pecy apisinG
00°005'666 00°005'666 juawdinb3 pue s8Iy SHIOAA Ol[ANd JO aSBYDdINg
swil
920¢ §20¢ veoe A ir4 [2Air4 1202 uogaidwoy LS00 VIOl  jjuIamnN
15 oG o] e [~ qe eg pajei}s3 Al LVWILST LO3roud FLLIL LD3roxdd
dvIA 1390NE ¥3d SINNOWY ONIANNA 4 £ ¢ ,
138NVT LNNOW 40 dIHSNMOL yun [eoo07

SININIHINOIA ONIANNd ANV FTNAIHOS LOIArodd AILVdIDILNY
920¢ 01 LZ20Z - NVHOO¥d TVLIdYD ¥VIA 9



120 199ys

- - - - - XOOOOOXXX - XXX 49Vd SIHL - TVv1OL
swif
9202 L rd YA 202 €202 2202 2oz uofadwo) 1S031v.i0oL HIGWNN
15 ag ps 26 qas eg pajewnsy Q3LvILST LO3ArOYd F1LL L23rodd
HVIA 13D0NT ¥3d SINNONY ONIANNAH 4 € ¢ b

T3¥NVT LNNOW 40 dIHSNMOL Hun jeo0T]
SLNIWIHYINOIY ONIANNS ANV 3TINAIHOS LOIrOodd QILVAIDILNY

920Z 03 120Z - INVHOO0Hd TVLIdVD ¥VIA 9



S|ejol - 20 Isaysg

-0
- 00°00S'v50'S ) 6.0.0.0.0.0.4.0'0°¢ 00°005'¥G0'S XUXXX SLO3rodd 11V - V.1ioL
awif
9202 LeTAi7A eoT £202 2eoe (4174 uoyiajdwogn 1802 V10l HILNNN
p 3] ag pPS 1} qag eg pajewysy a3 LviNILST LOTFrOoMd F7LIL 123r0Nd
dVIA 139009 ¥3d SINNOWY ONIANNS v £ ¢ _

13¥NVT LNNOW 4O dIHSNMOL 3un [ed07
SINIWIHINDIY ONIANND ANV ITNAIHOS LOIrONd AILVLIDILNY

9202 0} 1Z0C - NVHOOHd TVLIdVD ¥VIA 9



POV J98ysg

§-9
- - - - - - 00's24'25¢ - - 00'005'¥50'S 39Vd SIHL - VIOl
00°005'22 00°000'055 Buiuueag p ABojouyoa
- - uofjewlloju| Jo uonejleisu; pue apesbdn
00°000'¢ 00°000'09¢ 801104 10} SjUSWaA0IdW]|
- - pue juswdinb3 jo uolsinboy
00064 00°000'2 Aladoid oljqnd pue s)ied o} sjuswsaoidw|
0000012 00°000'0¢Y ST Joy sjuaLiaaoidiul
- - pue swdmb3g jo uonisinboy
000062t 00°000°052 swelbold peoy apisu|
00°000'sZ} 00°000'005'2 sweiboid peoy spising
00'G.6'6Y 00°005'666 wawdinb3 pue $3jo1yaA SHIOAA DliGNd JO 8SeUdINg
Bunepinbiy spuny punj 1202
{ooyog JuBUISSASSY FIEI |eJauan 1BYIO pue snjding juswaaosduy Siea ) aimng Jed) JusLINg S}S0D |ejo ]
pL 3L qL el PIY - Ui - sjuesn lenden lende qg eg pajewnsy oL 198foig
S3LON OGNV SanNodg 9 g v SNOILVIMdO¥ddY 139dng 4 i
TEANVT INNOW 40 dIHSNMOL Hun [edo7

SLINNOAV ANV S3OHUNOS ONIANNA A3LVdIDILNY 40 ANVINNS
9202 01 LZ0Z - INVHOO0Nd TVLIdYD ¥VIA 9



LPOY 198ys

§-2
- - - - - - - - - - 3OVd SIHL - VY101
bunepinbi spung punj 1202
_OOSUw aCNEmwwmméa lies _mum:mw 48y} pue mz_n‘.:m ucme>OLQE_ Siesj aining dea ) juadin) 8§]S09D |ejO1
pL 32 qz e/ pIV - Ul - sueIS lejided feyden qg eg pajewnsy 8311 109foid
S3LON ANV SaNOg 9 g 4 SNOILVI¥dOdddY 139ang 4 1
F™UNVT INNOW H40 diHSNMOL Hun [eoo7

SINNOWY ANV S3O0YUNOS ONIANNA AILVJIDILNY 40 AMVINANS
9202C 03 L20T - NVHOO0¥d TVLIdVD ¥VIA 9



SiEjol - povy 199ys

§-92
N ‘ N - - - 00'62L'252 - - 00°005'%50's SL1O3rodd TIv - VLol
Bunepinbi spuny puny 1z02
jooyog juswissassy el (2B ETS) Y10 pue sniding juswaaoiduy S1B3 A aunng BB A JU3LIND SISO [ejol
pL 27 qr e Py - Ul - sjuesn leyden lendey ag eg pajewsy apiL 199folg
S3LON ANV SANOd 9 S 4 SNOLLVIMdOYddY 139dng 4 L
TIENVT LNNOW 40 dIHSNMOL Hun feoo

SLINNOWY ANV S30¥NOS ONIANND AILVCIOILNY 40 AMVIWANS
9202 01 1202 - NWVHOO0¥d TVLIdVD HVIA 9



Ly 199yg

£V'668'95¢C Ly $ || e62€L SaNuUdA3Y [BJ0
86'269°L/1'Z S| zei-i0 XYL ASVHEIT WNWINIA NOLLYXVL A9 3SIvY 38 0L INAOWY G
L61-20 (F-v'¥0F 'V'ST'N) L1 198Us '(g)g Wway
ATNO S10141S1d TOOHIS 11 3dAL NI ST00HDS YOS NOILLYXVL A8 J3SIVY 39 OL INNOWY 3HL ¥O4 3LVOI4ILYIO FHL OL pappy 8g o) b
- $ ATINO S1O1d1SI0 TOOHOS | 3dAL NI STOOHDS d04 NOLLVYXV.L A8 d3sSIvy 39 OL INNOWY IVLOL
- s I se1-20 (P1-v'VO¥ V'ST'N) L1 1984S (q)9 wey
- ¢ 561-20 Zv 188uys 'g way
AINO SIDIMLISIA TOOHOS T 3dAL NI S100HDS HO4 NOILLYXVL A8 43Sivd 39 Ol INNOWVY €
L1°8e9'ver'oe S| osi-L0 {11 198yg ‘()9 Way) d3S0dynd IVdIDINAIN HO4 NOILYXVL A8 a3SIvy 3d8 OL INNOWVY 2
oo.oov.mvw $ 669-51 ’ saxe] wcmsvc:mo wicyy wa_momm
m@.mh_‘.mov.or ¢ 660-EL UQW&U::( sanusaay SNOBUE|[2ISIN
00°000'0%¢'2 $ || ooi-so pajedionuy sniding
SANNIAIY 40 AMVINANS Senuansy lelausy L
juasqy
sheN saly
(sweu yse| Lasu)
paulelsqy J1LOA d3ayoo3Y
xe | Aleiqr] wnwiuy (mofeg G Wel) 852697712 LIy
Ana pund ysnu g ainyng pue suy (py j19ayg) - $ (a)
AAe7 pund isniy uolieAlasald QLOISIH puE puejwley ‘uoliesiosy ‘soedg usd(Q (£p 198yg) 96'¢1/'659'y $ (p)
‘suonendosdde pue senuanai [eiaush jo Ajewwns Buimoijoy ayy
j0 Uofiexe] jo pleog AJuNos ey} o UOREDYILISD pue (£-6:v8| V'S'TN) AlUo spoinsiqg jooyog | adAL
ui sesodind jooyss (eo0] Joj uoexe; Aq pasiel aq 0} Junowe 10 31e2UI1I90 8y} 0} psppe aq 0] (Mojaq { wWe)|) - $ (9)
‘pue uollexey Aq pasiel 8q 0} (z-6:vg8L V'SP N) Ajuo SIoUISI( jooyos | adA L uj sesodind jooyos Jog (mojeq £ way) - $(q)
pue ‘sasodind jediojuniu 1o} (mojaq z way) /1829 785 02 $ (e)
-0 junolwe syj Jo uoliezlioyine pue ‘suoieudoidde se yuoy jos Ulaiayy swns ayj Jo pslels sesodind sy Jo} uonendoidde ue 9jnjisuoo ljeys pue paidope
Agaiay s Ypoy Jes siojequisiay Jabpng au; eyl NOLONITHNG 0 Aunoy’ 13HUNVT INNOW i0
dIHSNAAOL ayl jo SHIFINTW TIONNOD 8y} Aq panjosay Jl og
NOLLNT10S3y

1202 ¥VIA ¥Od4 NOILJOAVY NOdN -2 NOILD3S



[0 ¢

v 19/ys

‘tzoz jo Aep sIy} aw Aq payipen

"SAUNIBG JUBLIUIBAOY 8207 JO 10}2a11Q0 aY) Aq panoidde Asnofaaid uasq aney yoarym ‘Aue ji ‘ojalay; sjuawpuawe e pue jobpnq paaoidde Lzoz ay3 ui paseadde

SE a3} wes 8y} Aq pue Junowe SWeS 8y} Ul Y1104 J3s s| uoijeudoidde pue anuaal jo Wayl Yyaes Jey} payipia jayuny sty Lzoz

jo Aep ay} uo Apog Buiuisaon ayj jo uonnjosas Aq pajdope Ajjeuy 386pnqg ay3 jo Adoo anyj e s138Bpng ulylm ay3 Jeyl payiues Aqalsy sijj
£V'668'05Z'Ly $| eevve suonendosddy (eyoy
G61-20 (€L-v:¥0r 'V'ST™N) AINO LOIM1SIia TOOHOS [3dAL - SNOLLYIMdOYddVY TOOHDS 9

00°000'0£9'c ¢ 6680S SaXe| pajosljoour) 10} sAasay (W)

- $ 0162 $3s0dInd |00Y0S JoISI 8207 104 ()

- ¢l sssop noyaqg ysed (6)

- $| sovrec (€21 1 21-8¥'0% 'V'ST'N) SIOOUDS (B30T {0 880 10} UCIESRPT JO pIeog o) pausjsuel] (u)

- ¢l ospie sjuawBpnr Y

- $ 666-9% jediouniy - sabreys paiusjaq ()

00°0Sv'0LL'Z  $| eeesy ad1ueg 1aq {ediiunpy (p)

00°000'00¢ $ 66671 sjuswanoldwy eyder (o)

gzole'eeEB's $| soewe «SdVO, Woy; papnjox3] suoneradQ [ejo} - suohersdp (g)
OO0 XXXXXX «8dV¥D, Wol papnjaxg

- ¢ Il sss-ov Wayag ysen (b)

LLE258'80L'y $ 60Z-v¢ jediolunty - seunjipuadx3 Aloiniels pue sebieyn pasisiaq (8)

00'919'ge9'/z ¢l toze uabunuog Buipniour suolelado (q g €)
JOOOOXXXXXX XXXXXX «SdVO. Wyim

XCOOHXXXXKXX XXXXXX

‘SNOILYRIdOYddY TVHINID 'S

SNOILVI¥dOUddY 40 AMVINIANS



€Yy 199yg

€'66.8€8'Y 08°9Sv'e6/L7L €2°96CCE9 VL |96 ¥12GGO VL 66b-vS :suopendolddy pund isni| [ejol (sa10y)
10202 ul pansasaid puejuied
£€2°96£'68¢ £2°95£'68¢ 96'71G'ZLE 2-056-%S aSM 2IMing 10} dAI9saYy soroy)
'S8.0Y)
XXXXXXAXNX 2-GE6-vS SBION U0 Jsaiau| 10202 uf paniasald puej uonjeaisay
(saioy)
JOOXKANXX 00°006'26Y 00'006'26Y 00°002'8sY 2-0€6-¥S SpUog UO JSaIsju] 00S¥L/L :8jep 0} pamasaid abealoy |ejo)
£¥'690'8C1 '8V $ :8jep 0} popuadxg |ejo ]
AKAAXAOXNXX Z-526-7S SBION _Ngamo pUE S3I0N OVDN@.@NM.W@ w nwamﬁ 0} U@«UQ:OU XNL.. _N«OP
uoljedidnuy puog jo uswhed
XXAXXXXXXX 00°000'058 00°000'068 00°000'688 2-026-¥S fediouilg puog jo ustikeq 00800 $ :passassy ajey
(areq)
OO AXXXXXHXKX AOOCXXXXX XXX X ‘aoiales 1gqag 8661 AON "UGuCGEEQE:ﬂQWWNQ WNpuUalajdy 1ea
- Z2-206-S sjuawanodwl uc sjuswieg umog weiboud jo Areunung
- 2-916-b5 pueluLied jo uomsInbay § | |'ZZH'€20°GL || £2°9GZ'ZEQ'PL || 96'712'SS9'YL || 8625 {S3NUBASY pung isnuj [ejo
- - 00°000'000'8 || 00°000'000'8 261695 UOEBAI9SUOD pUE UOREaIoaY
10} spue] jo uoisinboy
; C-9LL-9S $asUadxXT Jaylo
- L-921-¥G sabepp g saueleg
AXXAAXXAXXXK 190066604064 20O XXX KHHXXAX UOHBAI2SAId J1IOISIH
) T-2LEYS Sosusdxg 18I0
- L-GLE-PS sabem g sauejes 00°000'000°04 || 00°000°000°0L | 00°000°0000L || LOLbS 1Spund anlasey
XXAANXXXXX XXX XXXXXXXXX XHOOXHXXXX UOHRAISSUOD pue UonesI3aY | C00LE'GEE PLI-bG SNOBUE||30SI)\
- Joj spueT Jo asueusjUIey
0z epy'6vS'y |l 08'965'0G 00°000'000's | 00°000'000'G 2-G8E-¥S sesuadx3 Jaylo eLL-bs BWwooU| }$319]U]
- L-G8E-¥S sabem g ssuejes
2OEXXXXNX AXXXXXXKNXX OOOOXNAX AXAAUXXXXXX {UOHBAISSUOD pue UoleaI2aYy 8021 r.NwO‘V MN.mmN_wa_v 96'v12'669'y 061-bG uonexe] >m
304 spueT jo juawdoaasg pasiey ag 0} Junowy
paslasay pabreys 020¢ 104 120z 40} 0202C ul ysep 0202 1202 dNN4d LsNdl INOoHd
10 pied V004 SNOILVIMdOHddY] ul pazijeay pajedionuy VY024 SINNIAIY Qlivola3aa
020z papusdxg pojeldosddy

aNN4d 1SNYL NOILVAYASAY OIYOLSIH ANV ANV TNRNYH ‘NOILYINOIYH ‘IOVdS NIdO

I13ENVT ANNOW 40 dIHSNMOL



vy 199yg

- = = = 661-9G ‘suoneidoiddy pung jsni] [8j0]
$ :ajep o} papuadxg [ejo}
- $ :a}ep 03 pajos|jon xel [e30L
- $ :possassy ajey
{3980}
- (pajuBWSduI|/PasSed WNPUDIB)Y JBS A
- weiboud jo Aiewwing
) - - 662-95 :sanuaaay pund isni| [ejo}f
_ 101-9G 1SpUn4 aalassy
AHAXAXXAXNX p2.09.4.66¢¢¢4 h 69944600644 p 9490909444 AAXAXX 2OOOCEXXAAXXXXAXXXXXX 061-9G uolexej >m
pasiey aq o} Junowy
panlasay pabieyd 02Z0¢ 104 1202 104 0Z0¢ ut ysep 0202 1202 ANN4d LSNYL WO
10 pled vO0o4 SNOILVIHdOYddV] ut pezijeay pajedionuy vOod SANNIAZY 431voia3da
020z popuadx3y pajendosddy

QNN LSNYL FHNLIND ANV SLYY

T3HNYT LNNOW 40 dIHSNAMOL



Sy j98yg

Apog Buiuisaog sy o Mia|D ajeq

818y %38y0 eseald ‘anoqe pajedipul Jeah ayj 1oj ploysaly} aniad gz sy Buipasoxs sepio abueyo e pey jou aney noA |
("sonou adedsmau ay jo Adoo e epnjour jsnw weply) (P)6'LL-0€:S TV TN Ag pausinbal sogou tadedsmau EH
404 uohiesliqnd Jo ireplyy Ue pue Japio abueyd ayy Sujzuoyine uonnjosas Apog Buiuseaob auj jo Ados e 19Bpnqg psonpoujul yym JiLans ‘aroge peisy tapio sbueyd yoes 104

‘Mmojag AiLso pue

yoafoud ayj jo sweu Aq Japio abueyd ysea Anuspl asesid 'basie |'11-08:S DV N Unsuod asesid
siieyap AiojeinBai Jo4 usosed gz uey) asow Aq papsaadxe aq o} asud JoRIUCD papieme Alleulblio sy pasnes yojym sispio abueys je Jo 181} 81e1dwoo e | Buimojjo) sy

0Z0Z 'L€ J8qwadag Buipug tes p TIHUNYT INNOW 40 dIHSNMOL  :jun Bugoenuon

L1-0€:G "O'V'I'N 0} juensing
paaociddy siapig abueys jo 3si jenuuy



TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 21-R-84

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12,2021

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
REFUND or CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
Block 1509 Lot 26

4 Eddystone Wa

[100% Totally & Permanently Disabled Veteran|

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30 permits the exemption from property taxes for any citizen and
resident of the State who is a 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled Veteran.

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Veteran Affairs has classified the veteran, Stanley
E. Gunn, as 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled.

WHEREAS, this status grants the veteran the right to be exempt from paying property taxes as
of the date of eligibility by application. (N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a)

WHEREAS, the 2021 taxes on the following property have been cancelled as of the date of
exemption and any taxes paid by the owner have been refunded.

Block Lot Owner Date of Exemption Amount
1509 26 Stanley E. Gunn April 5,2021 $1195.40

WHEREAS, the Burlington County Board of Taxation requires a resolution for the cancellation
of property taxes in order to credit to the Municipality in the Abstract of Ratables the amount of
County Taxes and County Open Space Taxes refunded or cancelled for this property. This
resolution will be submitted to the Burlington County Board of Taxation with the Application &
Approval of Assessment Debit and Credit for the property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Township Council of the
Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington that the 2021 taxes due on the above noted
property have been cancelled.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12, 2021
and shall take effect immediately.
A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik

I Calculation: 2021 Prelim Taxes $2536.88 / 182.5 days = $13.90 per day x 86 days exempt = $1195.40



TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 21-R-85

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12,2021

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
REFUND or CANCELLATION OF PROPERTY TAXES
Block 803.09 Lot 3

7 Clements Court

1100% Totally & Permanently Disabled Veteran|

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30 permits the exemption from property taxes for any citizen and
resident of the State who is a 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled Veteran.

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Veteran Affairs has classified the veteran, Robert
E. Bryant Sr., as 100% Totally and Permanently Disabled.

WHEREAS, this status grants the veteran the right to be exempt from paying property taxes as
of the date of eligibility by application. (N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a)

WHEREAS, the 2021 taxes on the following property have been cancelled as of the date of
exemption and any taxes paid by the owner have been refunded.

Block Lot Owner Date of Exemption Amount’

803.09 3 Robert E. Bryant, Sr. February 25,2021  $4450.00

WHEREAS, the Burlington County Board of Taxation requires a resolution for the cancellation
of property taxes in order to credit to the Municipality in the Abstract of Ratables the amount of
County Taxes and County Open Space Taxes refunded or cancelled for this property. This
resolution will be submitted to the Burlington County Board of Taxation with the Application &
Approval of Assessment Debit and Credit for the property.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Township Council of the
Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington that the 2021 taxes due on the above noted
property have been cancelled.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12, 2021
and shall take effect immediately.
A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomczyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik

' Calculation: 2021 Prelim Taxes $6496.77 / 182.5 days = $35.60 per day x 125 days exempt = $4450.00




TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 21-R-86

REGULAR MEETING Aprit 12, 2021

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE
2021 Click It or Ticket Seat Belt Mobilization
May 24 — June 6, 2021

WHEREAS, the safety and security of the citizens of Mount Laurel Township and the surrounding areas
are vitally important; and

WHEREAS, a large percentage of our citizens regularly drive or ride in motor vehicles on our roadways;
and

WHEREAS, in 2018, there were 3,500 crashes where an occupant was not wearing his or her seatbelt
and 126 of those occupants were killed in crashes on our New J ersey roads; and

WHEREAS, regular seat belt use is the single most effective way to reduce fatalities in motor vehicle
crashes; and

WHEREAS, the use of seat belts is supported by the laws of New Jersey; and

WHEREAS, May 24 through June 6, 2021, has been selected as the National Click It or Ticket

Mobilization enforcement period; and

WHEREAS, across the country law enforcement officers will actively be participating in the
mobilization to ensure all motor vehicle occupants are buckled up day and night to reduce the risk of
injury and death caused in traffic crashes; and

WHEREAS, increased enforcement of seat belt laws coupled with publicity has proven to be an effective
method to increase seat belt use rates and decrease fatal crashes;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Mount Laurel Council declares it’s support for the

Click It or Ticket Seat Belt Mobilization both locally and nationally from May 24 through June 6, 2021,
and pledges to increase awareness of the mobilization and the benefits of seat belt use.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held on April 12,2021
and shall take effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik




TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
ORDINANCE 2021-10

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL, COUNTY OF
BURLINGTON, STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING
'HAPTER 43, ARTICLE 1, SECTION 43-2 OF THE MOUNT LAUREL TOWNSHIP
CODE (“POLICE DEPARTMENT - QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT?”)

Voon )

BE|IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWNSHIP COUNCIL OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT
LAWREL, COUNTY OF BURLINGTON AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AS FOLLOWS:

SEQTION 1. Purpose and Intent. The amendment(s) set forth herein shall serve the purposes of
revizing and clarifying certain regulations relating to the hiring of a person, exempt from the
Civil Services Commission requirement to take an examination for an entry-level law
enfprcement position, pursuant to Title 11A of the New Jersey Statutes.

Seqtion 2. Amendment(s). Chapter 43, Article 1, Section 43-2 is hereby amended:
[Negw Section]

G. In addition to the foregoing requirements, and all other state and local regulations concerning
the | hiring of an entry-level law enforcement officer, the Township of Mount Laurel Police
Department may hire a person, who is exempt from the requirement to take an examination
admy|nistered by the Civil Services Commission for an entry-level law enforcement position and
who| has successfully completed a full Basic Course for Police Officers training course at a
schopl approved and authorized by the New Jersey Police Training commission.

Thel {Township of Mount Laurel previously adopted a conflict of interest policy (Chapter 4,
Artidle XV, Section 4-85) and nepotism (Chapter 4, Article XV, Section 4-87.4) policy in
accordance with P.L. 2021, ¢.7.

Section 3. Repealer. Any and all other ordinances inconsistent with any of the terms and
proyisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistencies.

Section 4. Severability. In the event that any section, paragraph, clause, phrase, term, provision
or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, such judgment shall not effect, impair or invalidate the remainder
thergof, but shall be confined in its operation to the section, paragraph, clause, term, provision or
part|thereof directly involved in the controversy in such judgment shall be rendered.

Sectipn 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon final passage and publication as
provided by law.

Introduction Date: April 12, 2021

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas
Pritchett

Steglik

Publication Date: April 15, 2021

Public Hearing Date: April 26, 2021




MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen
Janjua
Moustakds
Pritchett
Steglik
TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
BY:
Stephen Steglik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Megdith Tomezyk, Township Clerk
4830-5358-9080, v. 1

2-




TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL

ORDINANCE 2021-11

AUTTHORIZING A SHORT TERM LEASE WITH VOLUNTEERS FOR PAWS FARM,
INQ. TO ALLOW VOLUNTEERS TO CLEAN, MAINTAIN AND UPGRADE THE
FACILITIES AT BLOCK 402, LOT 2, FORMERLY KNOWN AS DISCOVERY
MUSEUM AT PAWS FARM

w

o

HEREAS, the Township is the owner of a certain parcel(s) of real property commonly known
as Paws Farm, which is located at Block 402, Lot 2 on the Tax Map of the Township of Mount
Laurel with a street address of 1105 Hainesport-Mount Laurel Rd, Mount Laurel Township, New
Jer| Ly 08054, and consists of approximately eight-plus acres, and is improved by various
buglﬁngs (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property contains an historic two-story farmhouse, circa 1736, known
as the “Darnell Family Farmhouse” (the “Farmhouse™) and historic accessory buildings, circa
170D, known as (the “Smokehouse™) and (the “Icehouse”) and a circa 1950 barn known as (the
“Dary Barn”) and various “Outdoor Accessory Structures” and a “Main Exhibits Building”; and
WHEREAS, the Property is bound by New Jersey Department of Environmental
Prgtection Green Acres restrictions as an “unfunded” property and its perpetual uses are limited

to agtive or passive recreation uses and historic preservation; and

o

WHEREAS, after the closure of the Discovery Museum at Paws Farm in January 2020,
thei Township conducted several rounds of proposals to determine the best and most appropriate

futyire use of the Property understaﬁding the confines of Green Acres restrictions; and

o
s

WHEREAS, Discovery Museum’s abrupt departure left numerous areas of the property

to be cleaned and renovated, including several capital improvement projects for the long-term

preservation of the historical portions of the property; and

WHEREAS, during the course of these proposal rounds members of the public have

expiessed interest to gain access to the Property in a uniform and regulated manner in order to
work on preserving the buildings, maintaining the Property and performing necessary upkeep;
and
WHEREAS, the New Jersey Local Lands and Buildings Law, at N.I.S.A. 40A:12-14(c)

perfhits a municipality to enter a lease with a not-for-profit after adoption of an ordinance

explaining the terms and conditions of a lease; and

WHEREAS, this lease would serve a public purpose as required by the statute; and
WHEREAS, Volunteers for Paws Farm, Inc., an organization formed as a potential
venjdor for operating the property, has come forward and expressed an interest in raising funds
and performing work on the site and has asked the municipality for a six month lease in order to
havig access to the site to clean, repair and maintain the property; and

WHEREAS, the Township desires to lease the property to the Volunteers for Paws

Farpm, Inc. and the volunteer organization desires to lease the property from the Township, upon




thy

0o

ferms and conditions as set forth herein for the purpose of maintenance and upkeep of the
Property; and
WHEREAS, the Parties recognize and acknowledge that this Lease does not establish or create

any|right to operate the facility in any fashion similar to activities that previously occurred on

and| within the Property and that members of the public shall not be granted access to the

Property unless organized and scheduled through the terms of this Lease;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED, by the Township
Council in the Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey and,
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:12-14(c) of the Local Lands and Buildings Law, the Township

au

o

Horizes a six month lease, with one month, renewal term, to Volunteers for Paws Farm, Inc., a
New Jersey nonprofit corporation, for the purpose of maintaining and improving the facilities on
tha property, according to the terms of the Lease which is attached hereto and incorporated
hetgin.
'] BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Mayor and Clerk are authorized to finalize

ne

Py

,Ptiations and execute the Lease upon review and approval by the Township Solicitor.

Introduction Date: April 12, 2021

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen
Janjua
Moustak
Pritchett
Steglik
Publication Date: April 15, 2021
Public Hearing Date: April 26, 2021
MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen
Janjua
Moustakas
Pritchett
Steglik
TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
BY:
Stephen Steglik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Maredith Tomezyk, Township Clerk
483)46356-9080, v. 1

-




TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
ORDINANCE 2021-7

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT
LAUREL, COUNTY OF BURLINGTON AND STATE
OF NEW JERSEY AMENDING THE CODE OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL TO DELETE IN
ITS ENTIRETY CHAPTER 22 ENVIRONMENTAL
COMMISSION AND TO REPLACE IT WITH A NEW
CHAPTER 22 ENVIRONMENTAL COMMISSION
AS SET FORTH HEREIN PURSUANT TO N.J.S.A.
40:56A-1 ET. SEQ.

WHEREAS, the Township of Mount Laurel (“Township”) is a municipal entity
organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Jersey and located in
Burlington County; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40:56A-1 et. seq. the governing body
of any municipality may by Ordinance establish an Environmental Commission; and

WHEREAS, the governing body now deems it to be in the best interest of the
Township to adopt an Ordinance amending the Township Code to delete Chapter 22
Environmental Commission and to replace it in its entirety with a new section Chapter 22
titled “Environmental Commission” as further set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Council of the
Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey that the Township
Code Chapter 22 Environmental Commission is hereby deleted and replaced with a new
Chapter 22 Environmental Commission as set forth herein,

SECTION 1

§22-1. Establishment; Purpose; Name

There is hereby established pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:56A-1 et. seq. an
Environmental Commission of the Township of Mount Laurel] (“Township™). For the
protection, development or use of natural resources, including water resources, located
within the territorial limits of Mount Laurel Township and which shall be known as the
Mount Laurel Environmental Commission (*Environmental Commission” or
“Commission”) and which shall be governed by the provisions of the aforementioned law
and this Chapter. -

The Commission shall consist of seven (7) members who shall be appointed by
the governing body; one (1) member shall also be a member of the Planning Board and
all members shall be residents of the Township of Mount Laurel. The governing body
shall appoint the representative of the Environmental Commission who serves on the
Planning Board. All members of the Environmental Commission shall serve without
compensation, but within budgetary limitations, they may seek reimbursement for actual
expenses necessarily incurred in the performance of their duties. The governing body
shall designate one (1) of the members to serve as Chairperson and Presiding Officer of
the Commission.

§22-3. Terms of Office

The terms of office for the first Commissioners shall be for one 1), two (2) or
three (3) years as shall be designated by the governing body in making the appointments,
so that the terms of approximately one-third of the members will expire each year. Their
successor shall be appointed for terms of three (3) years until the appointment and
qualification of their successors.

§22-4. Removal from Office




The governing body may remove any member of the Commission for cause on
written charges served upon the member and after a hearing thereon at which the member
shall be entitled to be heard in person or by counsel.

§22-5. Vacancies

A vacancy on the Commission occurring otherwise than by expiration of a term
shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as an original appointment.
Notwithstanding any other provisions of law to the contrary, the powers of appointment
and removal are hereby accorded to the governing body of the municipality.

§22-6. Alternates; Liaison

a. The governing body shall appoint not more than two (2) alternate members
who shall be residents of the Township of Mount Laurel. Alternate members
shall be designated at the time of the appointment by the governing body’s
Alternate # 1 and Alternate # 2. The terms of the alternate members shall be
for two (2) years except that the terms of the alternate members first appointed
shall be two (2) years for Alternate # 1 and one (1) year for Alternate # 2 so
that the term of not more than one (1) alternate member shall expire in any
one (1) year. A vacancy occurring other than by expiration of term shall be
filled in the same manner as an original appointment, for the unexpired term
only.

b. An alternate member shall not be permitted to act on any matter in which he
has either directly or indirectly any personal or financial interest. An alternate
member may, after public hearing, if he requests one, be removed by the
governing body for cause.

. An alternate member may participate in discussions of the proceedings but
may not vote except in the absence or disqualification of a regular member. A
vote shall not be delayed in order that a regular member may vote instead of
an alternate member. In the event that a choice must be made as to which
alternate member is to vote, Alternate # 1 shall vote first.

d. A governing body member may be designated as liaison to the Environmental
Commission. Such designee may attend meetings and participate in
deliberations of the Commission but shall not have the right to vote on matters
before the Commission.

§22-7. Powers and Duties Generally

a. The Environmental Commission shall have the power to study and make
recommendations and provide advice concerning open space preservation,
water resources and stormwater management, air pollution control,
sustainability building design and practices, alternative transportation,
recycling, composting, solid waste management, noise control, soil and
landscape protection, environmental appearance, aquatic resources and
protection of flora and fauna.

b. The Environmental Commission shall have the power to conduct research into
the use and possible use of the open land areas of the municipality and may
coordinate the activities of unofficial bodies organized for similar purposes.

¢. The Environmental Commission may advertise, prepare, print and distribute
books, maps, charts, plans and pamphlets which, in its judgment, it deems
necessary for its purposes, subject to appropriations made available to it for
such activities.

d. The Environmental Commission shall develop and maintain an inventory of
all open space areas publicly or privately owned, including sensitive




environmental features like streams, open marsh lands, swamps, wetlands and
flood plains as a resource for obtaining information on the proper use of such
areas. It may recommend to the Planning Board plans and programs for
inclusion in the Municipal Master Plan and for the development and use of
such areas.

e. All applications for development filed with the Mount Laurel Zoning Board of
Adjustment or the Moun Laurel Planning Board shall be referred to the
Environmental Commission. The Environmental Commission shall review the
application and may issue a report with recommendations to the appropriate
Land Use Board in order to alleviate or avoid negative environmental impacts.
All fees and costs, if any, incurred by the Environmental Commission’s
professionals shall be payable out of the Applicant’s escrow account.

f. The Environmental Commission may upon the governing body’s approval,
develop or participate in programs, activities, and projects aimed at supporting
and/or promoting the Environmental Commission’s goals and purposes,
including but not limited to fundraising efforts.

g The Environmental Commission may act as a coordinating agency in the
community with respect to conservation matters and as a liaison between local
conservation needs and the regional, state and federal agencies responsible for
administering to those needs.

h. The Environmental Commission shall identify all scenic, historic park and
recreation sites and make recommendations for their protection and
improvement.

i. The Environmental Commission shall promote good architectural landscape
design for all developments with adequate provisions for park and green areas
therein,

J- The Environmental Commission shall also have such other powers and duties
as shall from time-to-time be prescribed by the governing body.

§22-8. Acquisition and Administration of Property

The Environmental Commission may investigate and negotiate with the approval
of the governing body, the acquisition of property, both real and personal by gift,
purchase, grant, bequest, devise or lease, for any of its purposes. Such an acquisition
may be to acquire the fee or any lesser interest, development right, easement (including
conservation easement), covenant to other contractual right (including a conveyance on
conditions or with limitations or reversions), as may be necessary to acquire, maintain,
improve, protect, limit the future use of or otherwise conserve and properly utilize open
spaces and other land and water areas in the municipality. All such acquisition shall be in
the name of the municipality, and the governing body shall have the right finally to
approve or disapprove the Commission’s recommendations. The Commission may
recommend to the governing body policies, rules and regulations for the administration
of such acquisitions and, if so authorized by the governing body, administer such
acquisitions for the purposes for which they were obtained, subject to the terms of any
conveyance or gift thereof.

§22-9. Records; Reports and Meetings

The Environmental Commission shall meet a minimum of one (1) time per month
in accordance with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act pursuant to N.J.S.A.
10:4-6 et. seq. and shall meet at such other times as requested by the governing body or
as may be necessary to discharge its duties hereunder. The Environmental Commission
shall keep records of its meetings and activities and shall make an annual report to the
governing body and shall make a report to the governing body at such other times as the
governing body may request.

§22-10. Personnel




The Environmental Commission may appoint, in consultation with the Township
Manager, such clerical, technical or other assistance and incur such other expenses as it
may from time-to-time require and as shall be within the limits of funds appropriated to it
by the governing body.

§22-11. Budget: Appropriations

The governing body shall appropriate in the annual budget funds for the expenses
incurred by the Environmental Commission. The Environmental Commission shall
submit its proposed annual budget to the governing body at such time and in such form
and in accordance with such procedures as the governing body shall prescribe. Budget
review and approval shall be performed in the manner required under New Jersey law.

SECTION 2

All Ordinances and Resolutions or parts thereof inconsistent with this Ordinance
are repealed.

SECTION 3

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is
for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction,
such portion shall be deemed as separate, distinct and independent provision,.and such
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion thereof,

SECTION 4

This Ordinance shall take effect upon its final adoption and publication is
provided by law.

Introduction Date: March 22, 2021

MOTION AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen T Y

Janjug Vo

Mousthkas ’ W

Pritchett o/

Steglik o/

Publication Date: March 25, 2021

Public Hearing Date: April 12, 2021

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjug

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik

TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL

BY:

Stephen Steglik, Mayor




ATTEST:

Meredith Tomezyk, Township Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
ORDINANCE 2021-8

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2021-6, ARTICLE I11,
CONCERNING CONTINUING CERTFICATES OF OCCUPANCY

WHEREAS, the Township Council unanimously adopted Ordinance 2021-6
which amended Chapter 89 of the Municipal Code entitled “Housing Standards” and
established a process for requiring continuing certificates of occupancy for residential
properties to ensure the health and safety of housing units for the new occupants; and

WHEREAS, during the public hearing on Ordinance 2021-6, the Township
Council heard and accepted comments and recommendations for improving the process;
and

WHEREAS, the Council wishes to incorporate these recommendations to
improve this process and to specifically assist low and moderate income families and
elder residents with the cost of obtaining a continuing certificate of occupancy;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED, by the Township
Council of the Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington and State of New Jersey
that Ordinance 2021-6 and Chapter 89, Article IiI of the Township Code of the Township
of Mount Laurel be hereby amended to read as follows (amendments in Bold if added or

strikethrough if deleted.):

Article III, Certificate of Continuing Occupancy

§89-16 Certificate Requirement; Inspection

a. Prior to a change in ownership or occupancy of any commercial or residential
property within the Township of Mount Laurel, the owner or their authorized agent
must apply to the Construction Official for, and obtain, a Certificate of Continuing
Occupancy. Prior to issuing said Certificate, the Construction official or his or her
designee shall inspect the property pursuant to Article I and confirm it is in
compliance with the IPMC and the Township Code.

b.  Upon completion of the application and payment of the fee as provided for in §89-
18 of the Code of the Township of Mount Laurel, the Construction Official shall
schedule an inspection of the premises. It is the responsibility of the owner or their
authorized agent to insure that the Construction Official has access to the premises
for inspection.

¢. The housing inspection is a visual examination of all accessible physical
components of the structure to determine continued occupancy. This inspection
does not include a complete electrical, plumbing and heating equipment guarantee
by the Counstruction Official. : i i i i i

3 3 i1 3 1 that tha. heats
reagyired-hy.go nnnl,ﬁed techpician.—authar zed b}' the. TC‘v‘vﬂSul:, that the-heating

TCatiE

1ra
et aoyaquatiiea—techy ottt Sttt O A




t-Property-survev-is—raguired meiar fa tha jecuane. a.af
Y 'y }IAU‘J\-LLJ WY v\aJ £ xv\‘uxxvu FATIoTTne oot iice AV 3 e 4
certificate—of-aeeunancu . A survey—indiestas—all shuciaal 3 “aTam.
ARt OroTeRpanSy —A—survey—ihateates—all PhRYSteai—HRprove

—inehidine hut nat limited—to-—buildineo _ dwix ewavs—wallewnsc maalc
vRtTRtan s O RO Hmied T URRGIES— G VEWaYS; raovva y S5, poors;

S
tic curlagnaieen 3 o
\Sa

tha a ist-be-pa-maratha IUa. @gre o a P
THEEST R UIed-Mst-0e-ho-more-than—fHve years-ord-and-mus

d. New section — The certificate of continued occupancy must be obtained within
90_days of the closing date. If the closing date is delayed, the seller may
request an extension of the 90 day deadline from the Construction Code
Official, and, if good cause is shown, the Official shall authorize a reasonable
extension until the closing. The seller shall identify the new closing date in the
request for an extension.

e. If the property has received and passes its annual rental inspection and paid
that required fee, the property owner shall not be required to pass a second
inspection under this chapter, nor pay an additional fee and the construction
code official, upon request from the owner, shall issue the certificate of
continuing occupancy which shall be valid until the end of the calendar year.

§89-17 Violations

If the property does not comply with the requirements, no certificate of occupancy shall
be issued. Upon inspection, if the Construction Official or his or her designee identifies
any violations of the IPMC or the Township Code, the property owner shall have 90 days
to correct any deficiencies and to schedule a re-inspection of the property.

§89-18 Fees

a. Ifrequested eleven days prior to closing or longer, the fee for an initial inspection

shall be $75.00. If requested between four and ten days prior to closing, the fee
shall be $100; and if requested three or less days prior to closing, the fee for
inspection shall be $125. The fee for any required re-inspections shall be $25.00
per re-inspection. The Township will not guarantee scheduling availability if
scheduled within the ten days prior to closing. If the re-inspection occurs
within thirty (30) days of the initial inspection and all items originally found
deficient have been cured or corrected to the satisfaction of the Township
inspector, the $25.00 re-inspection fee shall be waived.

b. If the property is encumbered with a low or mederate income housing deed
restriction and/or the primary owner of the property is aged 65 or older, the
fees identified in paragraph (a) above shall be reduced by fifty percent

(80%).

It is the responsibility of the owner or their authorized agent to provide 24 hours’
notice to cancel or reschedule an inspection, or the initial fee will still be assessed
as if the inspection had taken place.

gl

§89-19 Violations and fines

Failure to apply for or obtain a Certificate of Continuing Occupancy shall constitute a
violation of this Chapter and shall be subject to the penalties provided for in §89-6.

Repealer, Severability and Effective Date.

A. Repealer. Any and all Ordinances inconsistent with the terms of this Ordinance
are hereby repealed to the extent of any such inconsistencies.

B. Severability. In the event that any clause, section, paragraph or sentence of this
Ordinance is deemed to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, then the Township




Council hereby declares its intent that the balance of the Ordinance not affected by said
invalidity shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that it allows the Township to
meet the goals of the Ordinance.

C. This Ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication according to law,
Article IIT shall become effective for all property closings scheduled after July 31,
2021.
Introduction Date: March 22, 2021
MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen i L
Janjuh
Moustakas
Pritchdtt o
Steglik
Publication Date; March 25, 2021
Public Hearing Date: April 12, 2021
MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen
Janjug
Moustakas
Pritchett
Steglik

TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL

BY:

Stephen Steglik, Mayor

ATTEST:

Meredith Tomczyk, Township Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
ORDINANCE 2021-9
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND ENACTED, by the Township

Coungil of the Township of Mount Laurel, County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as
follqyvs:

ion One: All ordinances or portions of ordinances including, without limitation, Ordinance
4, adopted April 17, 2006, as amended, that have been codified in Chapter 134, Article I,
water Management, of the Code of the Township of Mount Laurel be and they hereby are
ed and are replaced with the following:

Section I'. Scope and Purpose:

AL Policy Statement. Flood control, groundwater recharge, and pollutant reduction shall be
achieved through the use of stormwater management measures, including green
infrastructure Best Management Practices (GI BMPs) and nonstructural stormwater
management strategies. GI BMPs and low impact development (LID) should be utilized
to meet the goal of maintaining natural hydrology to reduce stormwater runoff volume,
reduce erosion, encourage infiltration and groundwater recharge, and reduce pollution.
GI BMPs and LID should be developed based upon physical site conditions and the
origin, nature and the anticipated quantity, or amount, of potential pollutants. Multiple
stormwater management BMPs may be necessary to achieve the established performance
standards for water quality, quantity, and groundwater recharge.

B! Purpose. The purpose of this Article is to establish minimum stormwater management
requirements and controls for “major development,” as defined below in Section 1I.

(| Applicability.
1. This Article shall be applicable to the following major developments:
a. Non-residential major developments; and
b. Aspects of residential major developments that are not pre-empted by the
Residential Site Improvement Standards at N.J.A.C. 5:21.
2. This Article shall also be applicable to all major developments undertaken by the
Township of Mount Laurel.

Dy Compatibility with Other Permit and Ordinance Requirements. Development
approvals issued pursuant to this Article are to be considered an integral part of
development approvals and do not relieve the applicant of the responsibility to secure
required permits or approvals for activities regulated by any other applicable code, rule,
act, or ordinance. In their interpretation and application, the provisions of this Article
shall be held to be the minimum requirements for the promotion of the public health,
safety, and general welfare.

This Article is not intended to interfere with, abrogate, or annul any other ordinances,
rule or regulation, statute, or other provision of law except that, where any provision of
this Article imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance,
rule or regulation, or other provision of law, the more restrictive provisions or higher
standards shall control.

Sectign II. Definitions: For the purpose of this Article, the following terms, phrases, words and
their derivations shall have the meanings stated herein unless their use in the text of this Article
clearly demonstrates a different meaning. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in

! The [ise of “Section I, Section 1, Section II1, etc.. within Section One of this Ordinance was for the sake of
consisf ney with the labeling of existing provisions of Chapter 134, Article | of the Code of the Township of Mount
Laure],

-1-




the present tense include the future, words used in the plural number include the singular

er, and words used in the singular number include the plural number. The word "shall" is

1ys mandatory and not merely directory. The definitions below are the same as or based on

the gprresponding definitions in the Stormwater Management Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:8-1.2.

\FRA Centers, Cores or Nodes” means those areas with boundaries incorporated by reference

ised by the Department in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:7-13.16.

FRA Planning Map” means the map used by the Department to identify the location of
al Planning Areas, CAFRA centers, CAFRA cores, and CAFRA nodes. The CAFRA

iming Map is available on the Department's Geographic Information System (GIS).

munity basin” means an infiltration system, sand filter designed to infiltrate, standard

siructed wetland, or wet pond, established in accordance with N.JLA.C. 7:8-4.2(c)14, that is

ed and constructed in accordance with the New J ersey Stormwater Best Management
ices Manual, or an alternate design, approved in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2(g), for an

“CO

itsel

“CO

ation system, sand filter designed to infiltrate, standard constructed wetland, or wet pond

that complies with the requirements of this Article.

mpaction” means the increase in soil bulk density.

ytributory drainage area” means the area from which stormwater runoff drains to a

storx&r. water management measure, not including the area of the stormwater management measure

2” means a pedestrian-oriented area of commercial and civic uses serving the surrounding

mur

“Co
revi
revi

— =

icipality, generally including housing and access to public transportation.

nty review agency” means an agency designated by the Board of County Commissioners to
W municipal stormwater management plans and implementing ordinance(s). The county
W agency may either be:

A county planning agency or

A county water resource association created under N.J S.A 58:16A-55.5, if the ordinance
or resolution delegates authority to approve, conditionally approve, or disapprove
municipal stormwater management plans and implementing ordinances.

partment” means the Department of Environmental Protection.

1gnated Center” means a State Development and Redevelopment Plan Center as designated
e State Planning Commission such as urban, regional, town, village, or hamlet,

gn engineer” means a person professionally qualified and duly licensed in New Jersey to

brm engineering services that may include, but not necessarily be limited to, development of

ject requirements, creation and development of project design and preparation of drawings
and Weciﬁca’tions.

9

n

1

¥

i

elopment” means the division of a parcel of land into two or more parcels, the construction,
struction, conversion, structural alteration, relocation or enlargement of any building or
ure, any mining excavation or landfill, and any use or change in the use of any building or
structure, or land or extension of use of land, for which permission is required under the
icipal Land Use Law, N.J.S.A. 40:55D-1 ef seq.

case of development of agricultural fand, “development means:” any activity reviewed by
ounty Agricultural Board (CAB) and the State Agricultural Development Committee

C), and municipal review of any activity not exempted by the Right to Farm Act, N.J.S.A
11 et seq.

“Disturbance” means the placement or reconstruction of impervious surface or motor vehicle

surfz
vege
defix

1¢e, or exposure and/or movement of soil or bedrock or clearing, cutting, or removing of
tation. Milling and repaving is not considered disturbance for the purposes of this
ition.

2-




“DI‘

inage area” means a geographic area within which stormwater, sediments, or dissolved

mat
wat

“En

prials drain to a particular receiving waterbody or to a particular point along a receiving
body.

vironmentally constrained area” means the following areas where the physical alteration of

the Jand is in some way restricted, either through regulation, easement, deed restriction or

own

arship such as: wetlands, floodplains, threatened and endangered species sites or designated

hab
usin

tats, and parks and preserves. Habitats of endangered or threatened species are identified
the Department's Landscape Project as approved by the Department's Endangered and

No

ame Species Program.

“Enpironmentally critical area” means an area or feature which is of significant environmental
valug, including but not limited to: stream corridors, natural heritage priority sites, habitats of
endgngered or threatened species, large areas of contiguous open space or upland forest, steep
slopgs, and well head protection and groundwater recharge areas. Habitats of endangered or

threatened species are identified using the Department’s Landscape Project as approved by the

Dep,

“EIT
Cou
pur:

ment’s Endangered and Nongame Species Program.

powerment Neighborhoods” means neighborhoods designated by the Urban Coordinating
ficil “in consultation and conjunction with” the New Jersey Redevelopment Authority
ant to N.J.S.A 55:19-69.

“Erg
gray

“Gr
to it

"HU
rece
hyds
Geo

ion” means the detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments by water, wind, ice, or
ity.

sen infrastructure” means a stormwater management measure that manages stormwater close
5|source by:

Treating stormwater runoff through infiltration into subsoil;
)| Treating stormwater runoff through filtration by vegetation or soil; or
Storing stormwater runoff for reuse.

U 14" or "hydrologic unit code 14" means an area within which water drains to a particular
IVing surface water body, also known as a subwatershed, which is identified by a 14-digit
ologic unit boundary designation, delineated within New Jersey by the United States

bgical Survey.

“Im

hig

pervious surface” means a surface that has been covered with a layer of material so that it is
ly resistant to infiltration by water.

&

“Inf

“Le
pl

tration” is the process by which water seeps into the soil from precipitation.

ad planning agency” means one or more public entities having stormwater management
ing authority designated by the regional stormwater management planning committee

pur.

ant to N.J.A.C. 7:8-3.2 that serves as the primary representative of the committee.

“Ma'

indi

sale

N

piy

or development” means an individual “development,” as well as multiple developments that
vidually or collectively result in:

The disturbance of one or more acres of land since February 2, 2004,

The creation of one-quarter acre or more of “regulated impervious surface” since
February 2, 2004,

3| The creation of one-quarter acre or more of “regulated motor vehicle surface” since
March 2, 2021 or the effective date of this ordinance, whichever is earlier; or

H A combination of 2 and 3 above that totals an area of one-quarter acre or more. The
same surface shall not be counted twice when determining if the combination area equals
one-quarter acre or more.

jpr development includes all developments that are part of a common plan of development or

for example, phased residential development) that collectively or individually meet any one

-3-




or 1
othg

dev

“M(
autq

ore of paragraphs 1, 2, 3, or 4 above. Projects undertaken by any government agency that
wise meet the definition of “major development” but which do not require approval under

)
1
the Municipal Land Use Law, N.J.S.A. 40:55D-1 et seq., are also considered “major

opment.”

or vehicle” means land vehicles propelled other than by muscular power, such as
mobiles, motorcycles, autocycles, and low speed vehicles. For the purposes of this

definition, motor vehicle does not include farm equipment, snowmobiles, all-terrain vehicles,

o+

mo
veh

‘CM(
(‘mo
limi

brized wheelchairs, go-carts, gas buggies, golf carts, ski-slope grooming machines, or

cles that run only on rails or tracks.

tor vehicle surface” means any pervious or impervious surface that is intended to be used by
tor vehicles” and/or aircraft, and is directly exposed to precipitation including, but not
ed to, driveways, parking areas, parking garages, roads, racetracks, and runways.

“hdl

“PJC

nicipality” means any city, borough, town, township, or village.

w Jersey Stormwater Best Management Practices (BMP) Manual” or “BMP Manual” means

the fanual maintained by the Department providing, in part, design specifications, removal

rate
caps
this
proy
alre
part.
prag
stor:
subj
the 1
the j

calculation methods, and soil testing procedures approved by the Department as being

bie of contributing to the achievement of the stormwater management standards specified in
rticle. The BMP Manual is periodically amended by the Department as necessary to

ide design specifications on additional best management practices and new information on
lly included practices reflecting the best available current information regarding the

¢ular practice and the Department’s determination as to the ability of that best management
tice to contribute to compliance with the standards contained in this Article. Alternative
nwater management measures, removal rates, or calculation methods may be utilized,

gct to any limitations specified in this Article, provided the design engineer demonstrates to
nunicipality, in accordance with Section IV.F. of this ordinance and N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2(g), that
roposed measure and its design will contribute to achievement of the design and

perf]

“IJO

mance standards established by this Article.

de” means an area designated by the State Planning Commission concentrating facilities and

acti

“PJU

ties which are not organized in a compact form.

Irient” means a chemical element or compound, such as nitrogen or phosphorus, which is

Co5C

tial to and promotes the development of organisms.

“Pe

gon” means any individual, corporation, company, partnership, firm, association, political

subdivision of this State and any state, interstate or Federal agency.

“Pollutant” means any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter backwash, sewage,
garbage, refuse, oil, grease, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials,

med!
1954
rock
othe;
Stat
poll

ital wastes, radioactive substance (except those regulated under the Atomic Energy Act of
H as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 2011 e seq.)), thermal waste, wrecked or discarded equipment
,|sand, cellar dirt, industrial, municipal, agricultural, and construction waste or runoff, or
riresidue discharged directly or indirectly to the land, ground waters or surface waters of the

or to a domestic treatment works. “Pollutant” includes both hazardous and nonhazardous
ants

>

“Re
not

“I{e

-harge” means the amount of water from precipitation that infiltrates into the ground and is
vapotranspired.

shlated impervious surface” means any of the following, alone or in combination:

A net increase of impervious surface;

The total area of impervious surface collected by a new stormwater conveyance system
(for the purpose of this definition, a “new stormwater conveyance system” is a
stormwater conveyance system that is constructed where one did not exist immediately
prior to its construction or an existing system for which a new discharge location is
created);

4




The total area of impervious surface proposed to be newly collected by an existing
stormwater conveyance system; and/or

The total area of impervious surface collected by an existing stormwater conveyance
system where the capacity of that conveyance system is increased.

“Reghlated motor vehicle surface” means any of the following, alone or in combination:

“Se

The total area of motor vehicle surface that is currently receiving water;

A net increase in motor vehicle surface; and/or quality treatment either by vegetation or
soil, by an existing stormwater management measure, or by treatment at a wastewater
treatment plant, where the water quality treatment will be modified or removed.

or ha

“Sitg

“Soti

“Sta
delin

ment” means solid material, mineral or organic, that is in suspension, is being transported,
been moved from its site of origin by air, water or gravity as a product of erosion.

" means the lot or lots upon which a major development is to occur or has occurred.
" means all unconsolidated mineral and organic material of any origin.

¢ Development and Redevelopment Plan Metropolitan Planning Area (PA1)” means an area

inten

“Sta
Redg
polig

ated on the State Plan Policy Map and adopted by the State Planning Commission that is
ded to be the focus for much of the State’s future redevelopment and revitalization efforts.

¢ Plan Policy Map” is defined as the geographic application of the State Development and

velopment Plan’s goals and statewide policies, and the official map of these goals and
ies.

“Stormwater” means water resulting from precipitation (including rain and snow) that runs off
the land’s surface, is transmitted to the subsurface, or is captured by separate storm sewers or

other

“Sto
desig

sewage or drainage facilities, or conveyed by snow removal equipment.

mwater management BMP” means an excavation or embankment and related areas
ned to retain stormwater runoff, A stormwater management BMP may either be normally

dry (that is, a detention basin or infiltration system), retain water in a permanent pool (a retention

basin

“Stox
meth

» or be planted mainly with wetland vegetation (most constructed stormwater wetlands).

mwater management measure” means any practice, technology, process, program, or other
qd intended to control or reduce stormwater runoff and associated pollutants, or to induce or

contyal the infiltration or groundwater recharge of stormwater or to eliminate illicit or illegal

non-

“Stoif
from

ormwater discharges into stormwater conveyances.

mwater runoff” means water flow on the surface of the ground or in storm sewers, resulting
precipitation,

“Stogmwater management planning agency” means a public body authorized by legislation to

prepd

“Sto.

e stormwater management plans.

nwater management planning area" means the geographic area for which a stormwater

mark

gement planning agency is authorized to prepare stormwater management plans, or a

speci

“Tidg
from
Ocea

Atla
upon
in the

“Urb
priori

fic portion of that area identified in a stormwater management plan prepared by that agency.

I Flood Hazard Area” means a flood hazard area in which the flood elevation resulting
the 2-, 10-, or 100-year storm, as applicable, is governed by tidal flooding from the Atlantic
. Flooding in a tidal flood hazard area may be contributed to, or influenced by, stormwater

runojf from inland areas, but the depth of flooding generated by the tidal rise and fall of the

¢ Ocean is greater than flooding from any fluvial sources. In some situations, depending
the extent of the storm surge from a particular storm event, a flood hazard area may be tidal
100-year storm, but fluvial in more frequent storm events.

in Coordinating Council Empowerment Neighborhood” means a neighborhood given
ty access to State resources through the New Jersey Redevelopment Authority.

-5-




“Urbh
Auth

n Enterprise Zones” means a zone designated by the New Jersey Enterprise Zone

rity pursuant to the New Jersey Urban Enterprise Zones Act, N.J.S.A. 52:27H-60 et. seq.

“Urban Redevelopment Area” is defined as previously developed portions of areas:

<

Delineated on the State Plan Policy Map (SPPM) as the Metropolitan Planning Area
(PA1), Designated Centers, Cores or Nodes;

Designated as CAFRA Centers, Cores or Nodes;

Designated as Urban Enterprise Zones; and

Designated as Urban Coordinating Council Empowerment Neighborhoods.

“Water control structure” means a structure within, or adjacent to, a water, which intentionally or

coingt

dentally alters the hydraulic capacity, the flood elevation resulting from the 2-, 10-, or 100-

year storm, flood hazard area limit, and/or floodway limit of the water. Examples of a water
contipl structure may include a bridge, culvert, dam, embankment, ford (if above grade),
retaining wall, and weir.

“Waters of the State” means the ocean and its estuaries, all springs, streams, wetlands, and
bodigs of surface or groundwater, whether natural or artificial, within the boundaries of the State
of Ngw Jersey or subject to its jurisdiction.

“Watlands” or “wetland” means an area that is inundated or saturated by surface water or ground

watgt

at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances

doeq support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil
condjtions, commonly known as hydrophytic vegetation.

Sectipn I1I. Design and Performance Standards for Stormwater Management
Medsures

A

.

Stormwater management measures for major development shall be designed to provide
erosion control, groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quantity control, and
stormwater runoff quality treatment as follows:

1. The minimum standards for erosion control are those established under the Soil and
Sediment Control Act, N.J.S.A. 4:24-39 et seq., and implementing rules at N.J.A.C.
2:90.

2. The minimum standards for groundwater recharge, stormwater quality, and
stormwater runoff quantity shall be met by incorporating green infrastructure.

The standards in this Article apply only to new major development and are intended to
minimize the impact of stormwater runoff on water quality and water quantity in
receiving water bodies and maintain groundwater recharge. The standards do not apply
to new major development to the extent that alternative design and performance standards
are applicable under a regional stormwater management plan or Water Quality
Management Plan adopted in accordance with Department rules.

Sectipn IV. Stormwater Management Requirements for Major Development

. The development shall incorporate a maintenance plan for the stormwater management

measures incorporated into the design of a major development in accordance with Section
X.

Stormwater management measures shall avoid adverse impacts of concentrated flow on
habitat for threatened and endangered species as documented in the Department’s
Landscape Project or Natural Heritage Database established under N.J.S.A. 13:1B-15.147
through 15.150, particularly Helonias bullata (swamp pink) and/or Clemmys muhinebergi
(bog turtle).

- The following linear development projects are exempt from the groundwater recharge,

stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff quantity requirements of Section IV,

paragraphs P, Q and R:

1. The construction of an underground utility line provided that the disturbed areas are
revegetated upon completion;

-6-




2. The construction of an aboveground utility line provided that the existing conditions
are maintained to the maximum extent practicable; and

3. The construction of a public pedestrian access, such as a sidewalk or trail with a
maximum width of 14 feet, provided that the access is made of permeable material.

D. A waiver from strict compliance from the green infrastructure, groundwater recharge,

stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff quantity requirements of Section IV.0O,
P, Q and R may be obtained for the enlargement of an existing public roadway or
railroad; or the construction or enlargement of a public pedestrian access, provided that
the following conditions are met:

1. The applicant demonstrates that there is a public need for the project that cannot be
accomplished by any other means;

2. The applicant demonstrates through an alternatives analysis, that through the use of
Stormwater management measures, the option selected complies with the
requirements of Section IV.0, P, Q and R to the maximum extent practicable;

3. The applicant demonstrates that, in order to meet the requirements of Section IV.0, P,
Q and R, existing structures currently in use, such as homes and buildings, would
need to be condemned; and

4. The applicant demonstrates that it does not own or have other rights to areas,
including the potential to obtain through condemnation lands not falling under IV.D.3
above within the upstream drainage area of the receiving stream that would provide
additional opportunities to mitigate the requirements of Section IV.0, P, Q and R that
were not achievable onsite.

. Tables 1 through 3 below summarize the ability of stormwater best management practices

identified and described in the New J ersey Stormwater Best Management Practices
Manual to satisfy the green infrastructure, groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff
quality and stormwater runoff quantity standards specified in Section IV.O, P, Q and R.
When designed in accordance with the most current version of the New Jersey
Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual, the stormwater management measures
found at N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2 (f) Tables 5-1, 5-2 and 5-3 and listed below in Tables 1, 2 and 3
are presumed to be capable of providing stormwater controls for the design and
performance standards as outlined in the tables below. Upon amendments of the New
Jersey Stormwater Best Management Practices to reflect additions or deletions of BMPs
meeting these standards, or changes in the presumed performance of BMPs designed in
accordance with the New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual, the Department shall publish
in the New Jersey Register a notice of administrative change revising the applicable table.
The most current version of the BMP Manual can be found on the Department’s website
at: https:/njstormwater.org/bmp_manual2.htm.

Where the BMP tables in the NJ Stormwater Management Rule are different due to
updates or amendments with the tables in this ordinance the BMP Tables in the
Stormwater Management rule at N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2(f) shall take precedence.

Table 1
Green Infrastructure BMPs for Groundwater Recharge, Stormwater
Runoff Quality, and/or Stormwater Runoff Quantity
Stormwater Minimum
Best Runoff Quality Stormwater Separation from
Management [TSS Removal [Runoff Groundwater Seasonal High
Practice Rate Quantity Recharge ‘Water Table
(percent) feet)
Cistern 0 Yes No --
Dry Well® 0 No Yes 2
Grass Swale | 50 or less No No 20
10
Green Roof 0 Yes No -




Manufactured Dependent
Treatment 50 or 80 No No upon the
Device(® () device
Pervious Paving Yes® 2®
System® 80 Yes No®© 1@
Small-Scale Yes® 20
Bioretention | 80 or 90 Yes No® 1)
Basin®
Small-Scale
Infiltration 80 Yes Yes 2
Basin®
Small-Scale 80 Yes Yes 2
Sand Filter
Vegetative 60-80 No No -
[Filter Strip

Table 2

Green Infrastructure BMPs for Stormwater Runoff Quantity
(or for Groundwater Recharge and/or Stormwater Runoff Quality
with a Waiver or Variance from N.J.A.C. 7 :8-5.3)

Stormwater Runoff Quantity

Best Stormwater Stormwater |Groundwater Minimum
Management [Runoff Runoff Recharge Separation from|
Practice Quality Quantity Seasonal High
TSS Removal '‘Water Table
Rate (feet)
Bioretention 80 or 90 Yes Yes® n®
System No®© 1@
Infiltration 80 Yes Yes 2
Basin
Sand Filter®  [80 Yes Yes 2
Standard 90 Yes No IN/A
Constructed
Wetland
Wet Pond®  [50-90 Yes No IN/A
Table 3

BMPs for Groundwater Recharge, Stormwater Runoff Quality, and/or

only with a Waiver or Variance from N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.3

Best Stormwater [Stormwater |Groundwater Minimum
Management |[Runoff Runoff Recharge Separation
Practice Quality Quantity from Seasonal
TSS Removal High
Rate ‘Water Table
Blue Roof 0 Yes INo IN/A
Extended 40-60 Yes No 1
Detention Basin




Manufactured |50 or 80 0 No Dependent
Treatment upon the
Device™ device
Sand Filter® 80 Yes No 1
Subsurface 90 No No 1

Gravel Wetland

'Wet Pond 50-90 Yes No IN/A

Notes to Tables 1, 2, and 3:

(a) subject to the applicable contributory drainage area limitation specified at Section
1V.0.2;

(b) designed to infiltrate into the subsoil;

(c) designed with underdrains;

(d) designed to maintain at least a 10-foot wide area of native vegetation along at least
50 percent of the shoreline and to include a stormwater runoff retention component
designed to capture stormwater runoff for beneficial reuse, such as irrigation;

(e) designed with a slope of less than two percent;

(f) designed with a slope of equal to or greater than two percent;

(g) manufactured treatment devices that meet the definition of green infrastructure at
Section II;

(h) manufactured treatment devices that do not meet the definition of green infrastructure
at Section IL.

. An alternative stormwater management measure, alternative removal rate, and/or

alternative method to calculate the removal rate may be used if the design engineer
demonstrates the capability of the proposed alternative stormwater management measure
and/or the validity of the alternative rate or method to the municipality. A copy of any
approved alternative stormwater management measure, alternative removal rate, and/or
alternative method to calculate the removal rate shall be provided to the Department in
accordance with Section VI.B. Alternative stormwater management measures may be
used to satisfy the requirements at Section IV.O only if the measures meet the definition
of green infrastructure at Section II. Alternative stormwater management measures that
function in a similar manner to a BMP listed at paragraph O.2 below are subject to the
contributory drainage area limitation specified at paragraph O.2 below for that similarly
functioning BMP. Alternative stormwater management measures approved in
accordance with this paragraph that do not function in a similar manner to any BMP
listed at paragraph O.2 below shall have a contributory drainage area less than or equal to
2.5 acres, except for alternative stormwater management measures that function similarly
to cisterns, grass swales, green roofs, standard constructed wetlands, vegetative filter
strips, and wet ponds, which are not subject to a contributory drainage area limitation.
Alternative measures that function similarly to standard constructed wetlands or wet
ponds shall not be used for compliance with the stormwater runoff quality standard
unless a variance in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:8-4.6 or a waiver from strict compliance
in accordance with Section IV.D is granted from Section IV.O.

Whenever the stormwater management design includes one or more BMPs that will
infiltrate stormwater into subsoil, the design engineer shall assess the hydraulic impact on
the groundwater table and design the site, so as to avoid adverse hydraulic impacts.
Potential adverse hydraulic impacts include, but are not limited to, exacerbating a
naturally or seasonally high water table, so as to cause surficial ponding, flooding of
basements, or interference with the proper operation of subsurface sewage disposal
systems or other subsurface structures within the zone of influence of the groundwater
mound, or interference with the proper functioning of the stormwater management
measure itself.

Design standards for stormwater management measures are as follows:




-
o

1. Stormwater management measures shall be designed to take into account the existing
site conditions, including, but not limited to, environmentally critical areas; wetlands;
flood-prone areas; slopes; depth to seasonal high water table; soil type, permeability,
and texture; drainage area and drainage patterns; and the presence of solution-prone
carbonate rocks (limestone);

2. Stormwater management measures shall be designed to minimize maintenance,
facilitate maintenance and repairs, and ensure proper functioning. Trash racks shall
be installed at the intake to the outlet structure, as appropriate, and shall have parallel
bars with one-inch spacing between the bars to the elevation of the water quality
design storm. For elevations higher than the water quality design storm, the parallel
bars at the outlet structure shall be spaced no greater than one-third the width of the
diameter of the orifice or one-third the width of the weir, with a minimum spacing
between bars of one inch and a maxinum spacing between bars of six inches. In
addition, the design of trash racks must comply with the requirements of Section
VII.C;

3. Stormwater management measures shall be designed, constructed, and installed to be
strong, durable, and corrosion resistant. Measures that are consistent with the
relevant portions of the Residential Site Improvement Standards at N.J.A.C. 5:21-7.3,
7.4, and 7.5 shall be deemed to meet this requirement;

4. Stormwater management BMPs shall be designed to meet the minimum safety
standards for stormwater management BMPs at Section VIII; and

5. The size of the orifice at the intake to the outlet from the stormwater management
BMP shall be a minimum of two and one-half inches in diameter.

Manufactured treatment devices may be used to meet the requirements of this Article,
provided the pollutant removal rates are verified by the New Jersey Corporation for
Advanced Technology and certified by the Department. Manufactured treatment devices
that do not meet the definition of green infrastructure at Section II may be used only
under the circumstances described at Section IV.0.4.

. Any application for a new agricultural development that meets the definition of major

development at Section I shall be submitted to the Soil Conservation District for review
and approval in accordance with the requirements at Section IV. Paragraphs O, P, Q and
R and any applicable Soil Conservation District guidelines for stormwater runoff quantity
and erosion control. For purposes of this paragraph, "agricultural development" means
land uses normally associated with the production of food, fiber, and livestock for sale.
Such uses do not include the development of land for the processing or sale of food and
the manufacture of agriculturally related products.

- If there is more than one drainage area, the groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff

quality, and stormwater runoff quantity standards at Section IV paragraphs P, Q and R
shall be met in each drainage area, unless the runoff from the drainage areas converge
onsite and no adverse environmental impact would occur as a result of compliance with
any one or more of the individual standards being determined utilizing a weighted
average of the results achieved for that individual standard across the affected drainage
areas.

. Any stormwater management measure authorized under the municipal stormwater

management plan or ordinance shall be reflected in a deed notice recorded in the Office
of the Burlington County Clerk. A form of deed notice shall be submitted to the
municipality for approval prior to filing. The deed notice shall contain a description of
the stormwater management measure(s) used to meet the green infrastructure,
groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff quantity
standards at Section IV paragraphs O, P, Q and R and shall identify the location of the
stormwater management measure(s) in NAD 1983 State Plane New Jersey FIPS 2900 US
Feet or Latitude and Longitude in decimal degrees. The deed notice shall also reference
the maintenance plan required to be recorded upon the deed pursuant to Section X.B.5.
Prior to the commencement of construction, proof that the above required deed notice has
been filed shall be submitted to the municipality. Proof that the required information has
been recorded on the deed shall be in the form of either a copy of the complete recorded
document or a receipt from the clerk or other proof of recordation provided by the
recording office. However, if the initial proof provided to the municipality is not a copy

-10-




of the complete recorded document, a copy of the complete recorded document shal] be
provided to the municipality within 180 calendar days of the authorization granted by the
municipality.

. A stormwater management measure approved under the municipal stormwater

management plan or ordinance may be altered or replaced with the approval of the
municipality, if the municipality determines that the proposed alteration or replacement
meets the design and performance standards pursuant to Section IV of this Article and
provides the same level of stormwater management as the previously approved
stormwater management measure that is being altered or replaced. If an alteration or
replacement is approved, a revised deed notice shall be submitted to the municipality for
approval and subsequently recorded with the Office of the Burlington County Clerk and
shall contain a description and location of the Stormwater management measure, as well
as reference to the maintenance plan, in accordance with M above. Prior to the
commencement of construction, proof that the above required deed notice has been filed
shall be submitted to the municipality in accordance with M above.

Green Infrastructure Standards

1. This paragraph specifies the types of green infrastructure BMPs that may be used to
satisfy the groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff
quantity standards.

2. To satisfy the groundwater recharge and stormwater runoff quality standards at
Section IV, paragraphs P and Q, the design engineer shall utilize green infrastructure
BMPs identified in Table 1 at Section IV.F. and/or an alternative stormwater
management measure approved in accordance with Section IV.G. The following
green infrastructure BMPs are subject to the following maximum contributory
drainage area limitations:

Best Management aximum Contributory
Practice Drainage Area
Dry Well 1 acre
Manufactured Treatment 2.5 acres
Device
Pervious Pavement Systems Area of additional inflow cannot
exceed three times the area
occupied by the BMP
Small-scale Bioretention 2.5 acres
Systems
Small-scale Infiltration Basin 2.5 acres
Small-scale Sand Filter 2.5 acres

3. To satisfy the stormwater runoff quantity standards at Section IV.R, the design
engineer shall utilize BMPs from Table 1 or from Table 2 and/or an alternative
stormwater management measure approved in accordance with Section IV G.

4. If a variance in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:8-4.6 or a waiver from strict compliance
in accordance with Section IV D is granted from the requirements of this paragraph,
then BMPs from Table 1, 2, or 3, and/or an alternative stormwater management
measure approved in accordance with Section IV G may be used to meet the
groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff quantity
standards at Section [V, paragraphs P, Q and R.

5. For separate or combined storm sewer improvement projects, such as sewer
separation, undertaken by a government agency or public utility (for example, a
sewerage company), the requirements of this paragraph shall only apply to areas
owned in fee simple by the government agency or utility, and areas within a right-of-
way or easement held or controlled by the government agency or utility; the entity
shall not be required to obtain additional property or property rights to fully satisfy
the requirements of this paragraph. Regardless of the amount of area of a separate or

-11-




",

-~

combined storm sewer improvement project subject to the green infrastructure
requirements of this paragraph, each project shall fully comply with the applicable
groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality control, and stormwater runoff
quantity standards at Section IV, paragraphs P, Q and R, unless the project is granted
a waiver from strict compliance in accordance with Section IV.D.

Groundwater Recharge Standards. This paragraph contains the minimum design and
performance standards for groundwater recharge as follows:

1. The design engineer shall, using the assumptions and factors for stormwater runoff
and groundwater recharge calculations at Section V, either:

a. Demonstrate through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that the site and its
stormwater management measures maintain 100 percent of the average annual
pre-construction groundwater recharge volume for the site; or

b. Demonstrate through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that the increase of
stormwater runoff volume from pre-construction to post-construction for the 2-
year storm is infiltrated.

2. This groundwater recharge requirement does not apply to projects within the “urban
redevelopment area,” or to projects subject to 3 below.
3. The following types of stormwater shall not be recharged:

a. Stormwater from areas of high pollutant loading. High pollutant loading areas are
areas in industrial and commercial developments where solvents and/or petroleum
products are loaded/unloaded, stored, or applied, areas where pesticides are
loaded/unloaded or stored; areas where hazardous materials are expected to be
present in greater than “reportable quantities” as defined by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 302.4; areas where recharge
would be inconsistent with Department approved remedial action work plan or
landfill closure plan and areas with high risks for spills of toxic materials, such as
gas stations and vehicle maintenance facilities: and

b. Industrial stormwater exposed to “source material.” “Source material” means any
material(s) or machinery, located at an industrial facility that is directly or
indirectly related to process, manufacturing or other industrial activities, which
could be a source of pollutants in any industrial stormwater discharge to
groundwater. Source materials include, but are not limited to, raw materials;
intermediate products; final products; waste materials; by-products; industrial
machinery and fuels, and lubricants, solvents, and detergents that are related to
process, manufacturing, or other industrial activities that are exposed to
stormwater.

. Stormwater Runoff Quality Standards

1. This paragraph contains the minimum design and performance standards to control
stormwater runoff quality impacts of major development. Stormwater runoff quality
standards are applicable when the major development results in an increase of one-
quarter acre or more of regulated motor vehicle surface.

2. Stormwater management measures shall be designed to reduce the post-construction
load of total suspended solids (TSS) in stormwater runoff generated from the water
quality design storm as follows:

a. Eighty percent TSS removal of the anticipated load, expressed as an annual
average shall be achieved for the stormwater runoff from the net increase of
motor vehicle surface.

b. If the surface is considered regulated motor vehicle surface because the water
quality treatment for an area of motor vehicle surface that is currently receiving
water quality treatment either by vegetation or soil, by an existing stormwater
management measure, or by treatment at a wastewater treatment plant is to be
modified or removed, the project shall maintain or increase the existing TSS
removal of the anticipated load expressed as an annual average.

3. The requirement to reduce TSS does not apply to any stormwater runoff in a
discharge regulated under a numeric effluent limitation for TSS imposed under the
New Jersey Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NJPDES) rules, N.J.A.C.
7:14A, or in a discharge specifically exempt under a NJPDES permit from this
requirement. Every major development, including any that discharge into a combined

-12-




sewer system, shall comply with 2 above, unless the major development is itseif
subject to a NJPDES permit with a numeric effluent limitation for TSS or the
NJPDES permit to which the major development is subject exempts the development
from a numeric effluent limitation for TSS.

. The water quality design storm is 1.25 inches of rainfall in two hours. Water quality
calculations shall take into account the distribution of rain from the water quality
design storm, as reflected in Table 4, below. The calculation of the volume of runoff
may take into account the implementation of stormwater management measures.

13-




Table 4 - Water Quality Design Storm

Distribution
Cumulative Cumulative Cumuiative
Time Rainfal Time Rainfall Time Rainfall
{Minutes) {Inches) {Minutes) {Inches) {Minutes) {Inches)

1 0.00166 41 0.1728 81 1.0906

2 0.00332 42 0.1796 82 1.0972

3 0.00498 43 0.1864 83 1.1038

4 0.00664 44 0.1932 84 1.1104

5 0.00830 45 0.2000 85 1.1170

6 0.00996 46 0.2117 86 1.1236

7 0.01162 47 0.2233 87 1.1302

8 0.01328 48 0.2350 88 1.1368

9 0.01494 49 0.2466 89 1.1434
10 0.01660 50 0.2583 90 1.1500
11 0.01828 51 0.2783 91 1.1550
12 0.01996 52 0.2983 92 1.1600
13 0.02164 53 0.3183 93 1.1650
14 0.02332 54 0.3383 94 1.1700
15 0.02500 55 0.3583 95 1.1750
16 0.03000 56 0.4116 96 1.1800
17 0.03500 57 0.4650 97 1.1850
18 0.04000 58 0.5183 98 1.1900
19 0.04500 59 0.5717 99 1.1950
20 0.05000 60 0.6250 100 1.2000
21 0.05500 61 0.6783 101 1.2050
22 0.06000 62 0.7317 102 1.2100
23 0.06500 63 0.7850 103 1.2150
24 0.07000 64 0.8384 104 1.2200
25 0.07500 65 0.8917 105 1.2250
26 0.08000 66 0.9117 106 1.2267
27 0.08500 67 0,9317 107 1.2284
28 0.09000 68 0.9517 108 1.2300
29 0.09500 69 0.9717 109 1.2317
30 0.10000 70 0.9917 110 1.2334
31 0.10660 71 1.0034 111 1.2351
32 0.11320 72 1,0150 112 1.2367
33 0.11980 73 1.0267 113 1.2384
34 0.12640 74 1.0383 114 1.2400
35 0.13300 75 1.0500 115 1.2417
36 0.13960 76 1.0568 116 1.2434
37 0.14620 77 1.0636 117 1.2450
38 0.15280 78 1.0704 118 1.2467
39 0.15940 79 1.0772 119 1.2483
40 0.16600 80 1.0840 120 1.2500

-14-




5. If more than one BMP in series is necessary to achieve the required 80 percent TSS
reduction for a site, the applicant shall utilize the following formula to calculate TSS
reduction:

R=A+B-(AxB)/100,
Where

R = total TSS Percent Load Removal from application of both BMPs, and
A = the TSS Percent Removal Rate applicable to the first BMP
B = the TSS Percent Removal Rate applicable to the second BMP.

6. Stormwater management measures shall also be designed to reduce, to the maximum
extent feasible, the post-construction nutrient load of the anticipated load from the
developed site in stormwater runoff generated from the water quality design storm.

In achieving reduction of nutrients to the maximum extent feasible, the design of the
site shall include green infrastructure BMPs that optimize nutrient removal while still
achieving the performance standards in Section IV, paragraphs P, Q and R.

7. Inaccordance with the definition of FW1 at N.J.A.C. 7:9B-1 .4, stormwater
management measures shall be designed to prevent any increase in stormwater runoff
to waters classified as FW1.

8. The Flood Hazard Area Control Act Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:13-4.1(c)1 establish 300-foot
riparian zones along Category One waters, as designated in the Surface Water Quality
Standards at N.J.A.C. 7:9B, and certain upstream tributaries to Category One waters.
A person shall not undertake a major development that is located within or discharges
into a 300-foot riparian zone without prior authorization from the Department under
NJA.C.7:13.

9. Pursuant to the Flood Hazard Area Control Act Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:13-1 1.2()3.4,
runoff from the water quality design storm that is discharged within a 300-foot
riparian zone shall be treated in accordance with this paragraph to reduce the post-
construction load of total suspended solids by 95 percent of the anticipated load from
the developed site, expressed as an annual average.

10. This stormwater runoff quality standards do not apply to the construction of one
individual single-family dwelling, provided that it is not part of a larger development
or subdivision that has received preliminary or final site plan approval prior to
December 3, 2018, and that the motor vehicle surfaces are made of permeable
material(s) such as gravel, dirt, and/or shells.

. Stormwater Runoff Quantity Standards

1. This paragraph contains the minimum design and performance standards to control
stormwater runoff quantity impacts of major development.

2, In order to control stormwater runoff quantity impacts, the design engineer shall,
using the assumptions and factors for stormwater runoff calculations at Section v,
complete one of the following:

a. Demonstrate through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that for stormwater
leaving the site, post-construction runoff hydrographs for the 2-, 10-, and 100-
year storm events do not exceed, at any point in time, the pre-construction runoff
hydrographs for the same storm events;

b. Demonstrate through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that there is no increase,
as compared to the pre-construction condition, in the peak runoff rates of
stormwater leaving the site for the 2-, 10- and 100-year storm events and that the
increased volume or change in timing of stormwater runoff will not increase flood
damage at or downstream of the site. This analysis shall include the analysis of
impacts of existing land uses and projected land uses assuming full development
under existing zoning and land use ordinances in the drainage area;

¢. Design stormwater management measures so that the post-construction peak
runoff rates for the 2-, 10- and 100-year storm events are 50, 75 and 80 percent,
respectively, of the pre-construction peak runoff rates. The percentages apply

-15-




only to the post-construction stormwater runoff that is attributable to the portion
of the site on which the proposed development or project is to be constructed; or

d. Intidal flood hazard areas, stormwater runoff quantity analysis in accordance with
2 a, b and c above is required unless the design engineer demonstrates through
hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that the increased volume, change in timing, or
increased rate of the stormwater runoff, or any combination of the three will not
result in additional flood damage below the point of discharge of the major
development. No analysis is required if the stormwater is discharged directly into
any ocean, bay, inlet, or the reach of any watercourse between its confluence with
an ocean, bay, or inlet and downstream of the first water control structure.

3. The stormwater runoff quantity standards shall be applied at the site’s boundary to
each abutting lot, roadway, watercourse, or receiving storm sewer system.

Section V. Calculation of Stormwater Runoff and Groundwater Recharge:

4. Stormwater runoff shall be calculated in accordance with the following:

1. The design engineer shall calculate runoff using one of the following methods:

a. The USDA Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) methodology,
including the NRCS Runoff Equation and Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph, as
described in Chapters 7, 9, 10, 15 and 16 Part 630, Hydrology National
Engineering Handbook, incorporated herein by reference as amended and
supplemented. This methodology is additionally described in Technical Release
35 - Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds (TR-55), dated June 1986,
incorporated herein by reference as amended and supplemented. Information
regarding the methodology is available from the Natural Resources Conservation
Service website at:
https://www.nres.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/stelprdb1044171.pdf
or at United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation
Service, 220 Davison Avenue, Somerset, New Jersey 08873; or

b. The Rational Method for peak flow and the Modified Rational Method for
hydrograph computations. The rational and modified rational methods are
described in "Appendix A-9 Modified Rational Method" in the Standards for Soil
Erosion and Sediment Control in New Jersey, January 2014. This document is
available from the State Soil Conservation Committee or any of the Soil
Conservation Districts listed at N.J.A.C. 2:90-1.3(a)3. The location, address, and
telephone number for each Soil Conservation District is available from the State
Soil Conservation Committee, PO Box 330, Trenton, New Jersey 08625. The
document is also available at:
hitp://www.nj.gov/agriculture/divisions/ant/pdf/2014NJSoilErosionControlStanda
rdsComplete.pdf. _

2. For the purpose of calculating runoff coefficients and groundwater recharge, there is a
presumption that the pre-construction condition of a site or portion thereof is a
wooded land use with good hydrologic condition. The term “runoff coefficient”
applies to both the NRCS methodology above at Section V.A.1.a. and the Rational
and Modified Rational Methods at Section V.A.1.b. A runoff coefficient or a
groundwater recharge land cover for an existing condition may be used on all or a
portion of the site if the design engineer verifies that the hydrologic condition has
existed on the site or portion of the site for at least five years without interruption
prior to the time of application. If more than one land cover have existed on the site
during the five years immediately prior to the time of application, the land cover with
the lowest runoff potential shall be used for the computations. In addition, there is
the presumption that the site is in good hydrologic condition (if the land use type is
pasture, lawn, or park), with good cover (if the land use type is woods), or with good
hydrologic condition and conservation treatment (if the land use type is cultivation).

3. In computing pre-construction stormwater runoff, the design engineer shall account
for all significant land features and structures, such as ponds, wetlands, depressions,
hedgerows, or culverts that may reduce pre-construction stormwater runoff rates and
volumes.

4. In computing stormwater runoff from all design storms, the design engineer shall
consider the relative stormwater runoff rates and/or volumes of pervious and
impervious surfaces separately to accurately compute the rates and volume of
stormwater runoff from the site. To calculate runoff from unconnected impervious

-16-




Sect}i

cover, urban impervious area modifications as described in the NRCS Technical
Release 55 — Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds or other methods may be
employed.

5. If the invert of the outlet structure of a stormwater management measure is below the
flood hazard design flood elevation as defined at N.J.A.C. 7:13, the design engineer
shall take into account the effects of tailwater in the design of structural stormwater
management measures.

Groundwater recharge may be calculated in accordance with the following: The New
Jersey Geological Survey Report GSR-32, A Method for Evaluating Groundwater-
Recharge Areas in New Jersey, incorporated herein by reference as amended and
supplemented. Information regarding the methodology is available from the New J ersey
Stormwater Beést Management Practices Manual; at the New J ersey Geological Survey
website at: hitps://www.nj.gov/dep/nips/pricelst/gsreport/gst32.pdf

or at New Jersey Geological and Water Survey, 29 Arctic Parkway, PO Box 420 Mail
Code 29-01, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0420.

pn VL. Sources for Technical Guidance:

- Technical guidance for stormwater management measures can be found in the documents

listed below, which are available to download from the Department’s website at:
http:/fwww.nj.gov/dep/stormwater/bmp manual?.hitm.

1. Guidelines for stormwater management measures are contained in the New J ersey
Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual, as amended and supplemented.
Information is provided on stormwater management measures such as, but not limited
to, those listed in Tables 1, 2, and 3.

2. Additional maintenance guidance is available on the Department’s website at:
https://www.njstormwater.org/maintenance_guidance. htm.

- Submissions required for review by the Department should be mailed to: The Division of

Water Quality, New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection, Mail Code 401-
02B, PO Box 420, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0420.

Secﬂibn VIIL. Solids and Floatable Materials Control Standards:

Al

Site design features identified under Section IV.F above, or alternative designs in
accordance with Section IV.G above, to prevent discharge of trash and debris from
drainage systems shall comply with the following standard to control passage of solid and
floatable materials through storm drain inlets. For purposes of this paragraph, “solid and
floatable materials” means sediment, debris, trash, and other floating, suspended, or
settleable solids. For exemptions to this standard see Section VIL.A.2 below.

1. Design engineers shall use one of the following grates whenever they use a grate in
pavement or another ground surface to collect stormwater from that surface into a
storm drain or surface water body under that grate:

a. The New Jersey Department of Transportation (NJDOT) bicycle safe grate, which
is described in Chapter 2.4 of the NJDOT Bicycle Compatible Roadways and
Bikeways Planning and Design Guidelines; or

b. A different grate, if each individual clear space in that grate has an area of no
more than seven (7.0) square inches, or is no greater than 0.5 inches across the
smallest dimension.

Examples of grates subject to this standard include grates in grate inlets, the grate
portion (non-curb-opening portion) of combination inlets, grates on storm sewer
manholes, ditch grates, trench grates, and grates of spacer bars in slotted drains.
Examples of ground surfaces include surfaces of roads (including bridges),
driveways, parking areas, bikeways, plazas, sidewalks, lawns, fields, open
channels, and stormwater system floors used to collect stormwater from the
surface into a storm drain or surface water body.

¢. For curb-opening inlets, including curb-opening inlets in combination inlets, the
clear space in that curb opening, or each individual clear space if the curb opening
has two or more clear spaces, shall have an area of no more than seven 7.0)

-17-




square inches, or be no greater than two (2.0) inches across the smallest
dimension.

2. The standard in A.1. above does not apply:

a.

b.

ii.

d.

Where each individual clear space in the curb opening in existing curb-opening
inlet does not have an area of more than nine (9.0) square inches;
Where the municipality agrees that the standards would cause inadequate
hydraulic performance that could not practicably be overcome by using additional
or larger storm drain inlets;
Where flows from the water quality design storm as specified in N.J.A.C. 7:8 are
conveyed through any device (e.g., end of pipe netting facility, manufactured
treatment device, or a catch basin hood) that is designed, at a minimum, to
prevent delivery of all solid and floatable materials that could not pass through
one of the following:
A rectangular space four and five-eighths (4.625) inches long and one and
one-half (1.5) inches wide (this option does not apply for outfall netting
facilities); or
A bar screen having a bar spacing of 0.5 inches.
Note that these exemptions do not authorize any infringement of requirements
in the Residential Site Improvement Standards for bicycle safe grates in new
residential development (N.J.A.C. 5:21-4.18(b)2 and 7.4(b)1).
Where flows are conveyed through a trash rack that has parallel bars with one-
inch (1 inch) spacing between the bars, to the elevation of the Water Quality
Design Storm as specified in N.J.A.C. 7:8; or
Where the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection determines,
pursuant to the New Jersey Register of Historic Places Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:4-
7.2(c), that action to meet this standard is an undertaking that constitutes an
encroachment or will damage or destroy the New Jersey Register listed historic
property.

Secﬁion VIII. Safety Standards for Stormwater Management Basins:

[}

AL

This paragraph sets forth requirements to protect public safety through the proper design
and operation of stormwater management BMPs. This paragraph applies to any new
stormwater management BMP.

- The provisions of this paragraph are not intended to preempt more stringent county safety

requirements for new or existing stormwater management BMPs. County stormwater
management plans and ordinances may, pursuant to their authority, require existing
stormwater management BMPs to be retrofitted to meet one or more of the safety
standards in Section VIII C.1, Section VIIL.C.2, and Section VIII.C.3 for trash racks,
overflow grates, and escape provisions at outlet structures.

- Requirements for Trash Racks, Overflow Grates and Escape Provisions

1. A trash rack is a device designed to catch trash and debris and prevent the clogging of
outlet structures. Trash racks shall be installed at the intake to the outlet from the
Stormwater management BMP to ensure proper functioning of the BMP outlets in
accordance with the following:

a.

b.

2. An

The trash rack shall have parallel bars, with no greater than six-inch spacing
between the bars;

The trash rack shall be designed so as not to adversely affect the hydraulic
performance of the outlet pipe or structure;

The average velocity of flow through a clean trash rack is not to exceed 2.5 feet
per second under the full range of stage and discharge. Velocity is to be
computed on the basis of the net area of opening through the rack; and

The trash rack shall be constructed of rigid, durable, and corrosion resistant
material and designed to withstand a perpendicular live loading of 300 pounds per
square foot.

overflow grate is designed to prevent obstruction of the overflow structure. If an

outlet structure has an overflow grate, such grate shall meet the following
requirements:

-18-




Sect

fesy

a.

b.

The overflow grate shall be secured to the outlet structure but removable for
emergencies and maintenance.

The overflow grate spacing shall be no less than two inches across the smallest
dimension.

The overflow grate shall be constructed and installed to be rigid, durable, and
corrosion resistant, and shall be designed to withstand a perpendicular live
loading of 300 pounds per square foot.

3. Stormwater management BMPs shall include escape provisions as follows:

a.

If a stormwater management BMP has an outlet structure, escape provisions shall
be incorporated in or on the structure. Escape provisions include the installation
of permanent ladders, steps, rungs, or other features that provide easily accessible
means of egress from stormwater management BMPs. With the prior approval of
the municipality pursuant to Section VIILC, a free-standing outlet structure may
be exempted from this requirement;

b. Safety ledges shall be constructed on the slopes of all new stormwater

management BMPs having a permanent pool of water deeper than two and one-
half feet. Safety ledges shall be comprised of two steps. Each step shall be four
to six feet in width. One step shall be located approximately two and one-half
feet below the permanent water surface, and the second step shali be located one
to one and one-half feet above the permanent water surface. See Section VIILE
for an illustration of safety ledges in a stormwater management BMP; and

¢. In new stormwater management BMPs, the maximum interior slope for an earthen

dam, embankment, or berm shall not be steeper than three horizontal to one
vertical.

» Variance or Exemption from Safety Standard. A variance or exemption from the safety

standards for stormwater management BMPs may be granted only upon a written finding
by the municipality that the variance or exemption will not constitute a threat to public

safety.

Safety Ledge Illustration

Elevation View —Basin Safety Ledge Configuration

Safety Ledge, 4 to 6 feet in Width,
Gently Sloped for Drainage\
Top of Ledge, —
Permanent 12to 1Binches }__
Water Level Above Water Surface L
Top of Ledge, . /
30inches i :
Below Safety Ledge,
Water 4 to 6 feet in Width,
Surface Gently Sloped for Drainage
x Stable Slope
NOTE:
Only For Basins with Permanent Pool of Water Not to Scale

ion IX. Requirements for a Site Development Stormwater Plan:

-19-




. Submission of Site Development Stormwater Plan

1. Whenever an applicant seeks municipal approval of a development subject to this
Article, the applicant shall submit all of the required components of the Checklist for
the Site Development Stormwater Plan at Section IX.C below as part of the
submission of the application for approval.

2. The applicant shall demonstrate that the project meets the standards set forth in this
ordinance.

3. The applicant shall submit five (5) copies of the materials listed in the checklist for
site development stormwater plans in accordance with Section IX.C of this ordinance.

- Site Development Stormwater Plan Approval. The applicant's Site Development project
shall be reviewed as a part of the review process by the municipal board or official from
which municipal approval is sought. That municipal board or official shall consult the
municipality’s review engineer to determine if all of the checklist requirements have been
satisfied and to determine if the project meets the standards set forth in this Article.

. Submission of Site Development Stormwater Plan. The following information shall be

required:

1. Topographic Base Map. The reviewing engineer may require upstream tributary
drainage system information as necessary. It is recommended that the topographic
base map of the site be submitted which extends a minimum of 200 feet beyond the
limits of the proposed development, at a scale of 1"=200' or greater, showing 2-foot
contour intervals. The map as appropriate may indicate the following: existing
surface water drainage, shorelines, steep slopes, soils, erodible soils, perennial or
intermittent streams that drain into or upstream of the Category One waters, wetlands
and flood plains along with their appropriate buffer strips, marshlands and other
wetlands, pervious or vegetative surfaces, existing man-made structures, roads,
bearing and distances of property lines, and significant natural and manmade features
not otherwise shown.

2. Environmental Site Analysis. A written and graphic description of the natural and
man-made features of the site and its surroundings should be submitted. This
description should include a discussion of soil conditions, slopes, wetlands,
waterways and vegetation on the site. Particular attention should be given to unique,
unusual, or environmentally sensitive features and to those that provide particular
opportunities or constraints for development.

3. Project Description and Site Plans. A map (or maps) at the scale of the topographical
base map indicating the location of existing and proposed buildings roads, parking
areas, utilities, structural facilities for stormwater management and sediment control,
and other permanent structures. The map(s) shall also clearly show areas where
alterations will occur in the natural terrain and cover, including lawns and other
landscaping, and seasonal high groundwater elevations. A written description of the
site plan and justification for proposed changes in natural conditions shall also be
provided.

4. Land Use Planning and Source Control Plan. This plan shall provide a demonstration
of how the goals and standards of Sections III through V are being met. The focus of
this plan shall be to describe how the site is being developed to meet the objective of
controlling groundwater recharge, stormwater quality and stormwater quantity
problems at the source by land management and source controls whenever possible.

5. Stormwater Management Facilities Map. The following information, illustrated on a
map of the same scale as the topographic base map, shall be included:

a. Total area to be disturbed, paved or built upon, proposed surface contours, land
area to be occupied by the stormwater management facilities and the type of
vegetation thereon, and details of the proposed plan to control and dispose of
stormwater.

b. Details of all stormwater management facility designs, during and after
construction, including discharge provisions, discharge capacity for each outlet at
different levels of detention and emergency spillway provisions with maximum
discharge capacity of each spillway.

6. Calculations

-20-




Secti

(¥

7.

8.

1.

2.

a. Comprehensive hydrologic and hydraulic design calculations for the pre-
development and post-development conditions for the design storms specified in
Section IV of this ordinance.

b. When the proposed stormwater management control measures depend on the
hydrologic properties of soils or require certain separation from the seasonal high
water table, then a soils report shall be submitted. The soils report shall be based
on onsite boring logs or soil pit profiles. The number and location of required soil
borings or soil pits shall be determined based on what is needed to determine the
suitability and distribution of soils present at the location of the control measure,

Maintenance and Repair Plan. The design and planning of the stormwater

management facility shall meet the maintenance requirements of Section X.

Waiver from Submission Requirements. The municipal official or board reviewing

an application under this ordinance may, in consultation with the municipality’s

review engineer, waive submission of any of the requirements in Section IX.C.1

through Section IX.C.6 of this ordinance when it can be demonstrated that the

information requested is impossible to obtain or it would create a hardship on the
applicant to obtain and its absence will not materially affect the review process.

1 X. Maintenance and Repair:

Applicability. Projects subject to review as in Section LC of this Article shall comply
with the requirements of Section X.B and X.C.
4 General Maintenance.

The design engineer shall prepare a maintenance plan for the stormwater management
measures incorporated into the design of a major development.
The maintenance plan shall contain specific preventative maintenance tasks and
schedules; cost estimates, including estimated cost of sediment, debris, or trash
removal; and the name, address, and telephone number of the person or persons
responsible for preventative and corrective maintenance (including replacement).
The plan shall contain information on BMP location, design, ownership, maintenance
tasks and frequencies, and other details as specified in Chapter § of the NJ BMP
Manual, as well as the tasks specific to the type of BMP, as described in the
applicable chapter containing design specifics.
If the maintenance plan identifies a person other than the property owner (for
example, a developer, a public agency or homeowners' association) as having the
responsibility for maintenance, the plan shall include documentation of such person's
or entity’s agreement to assume this responsibility, or of the owner's obligation to
dedicate a stormwater management facility to such person under an applicable
ordinance or regulation.
Responsibility for maintenance shall not be assigned or transferred to the owner or
tenant of an individual property in a residential development or project, unless such
owner or tenant owns or leases the entire residential development or project. The
individual property owner may be assigned incidental tasks, such as weeding of a
green infrastructure BMP, provided the individual agrees to assume these tasks;
however, the individual cannot be legally responsible for all of the maintenance
required.
If the party responsible for maintenance identified under Section X.B.3 above is not a
public agency, the maintenance plan and any future revisions based on Section X.B.7
below shall be recorded upon the deed of record for each property on which the
maintenance described in the maintenance plan must be undertaken.
Preventative and corrective maintenance shall be performed to maintain the
functional parameters (storage volume, infiltration rates, inflow/outflow capacity,
etc.) of the stormwater management measure, including, but not limited to, repairs or
replacement to the structure; removal of sediment, debris, or trash; restoration of
eroded areas; snow and ice removal; fence repair or replacement; restoration of
vegetation; and repair or replacement of non-vegetated linings.
The party responsible for maintenance identified under Section X.B.3 above shall
perform all of the following requirements:
a. maintain a detailed log of all preventative and corrective maintenance for the
structural stormwater management measures incorporated into the design of the

21-




development, including a record of all inspections and copies of all maintenance-
related work orders;

b. evaluate the effectiveness of the maintenance plan at least once per year and
adjust the plan and the deed as needed; and

¢. retain and make available, upon request by any public entity with administrative,
health, environmental, or safety authority over the site, the maintenance plan and
the documentation required by Section X.B.6 and B.7 above.

8. The requirements of Section X.B.3 and B.4 do not apply to stormwater management
facilities that are dedicated to and accepted by the municipality or another
governmental agency, subject to all applicable municipal stormwater general permit
conditions, as issued by the Department.

9. Inthe event that the stormwater management facility becomes a danger to public
safety or public health, or if it is in need of maintenance or repair, the municipality
shall so notify the responsible person in writing. Upon receipt of that notice, the
responsible person shall have fourteen (14) days to effect maintenance and repair of
the facility in a manner that is approved by the municipal engineer or his designee.
The municipality, in its discretion, may extend the time allowed for effecting
maintenance and repair for good cause. If the responsible person fails or refuses to
perform such maintenance and repair, the municipality or County may immediately
proceed to do so and shall bill the cost thereof to the responsible person.
Nonpayment of such bill may result in a lien on the property.

. Nothing in this Article shall preclude the municipality in which the major development is

located from requiring the posting of a performance or maintenance guarantee in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 40:55D-53.

. Maintenance Guarantee.

1. In accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40:55D-53(b), the developer shall post
with the municipality, upon the inspection and issuance of final approval of the
following private site improvements by the Municipal Engineer, a maintenance
guarantee in an amount not to exceed 15% of the cost of the installation of the
following private site improvements: stormwater management basins, inflow and
water quality structures within the basins, and the outflow pipes and structures of the
stormwater management system, which cost shall be determined according to the
method of calculation set forth in Section 15 of P.L.1991, ¢.256 (N.J.S.A. 40:55D-
53.4).

2. The term of the maintenance guarantee shall be for a period not to exceed two years
and shall automatically expire at the end of the established term.

3. The maintenance guarantee shall be made payable and deposited to Mount Laurel
Township and shall be in the form of cash, irrevocable letter of credit, certified check
or a surety bond in which the applicant shall be principal, the bond to be provided by
an acceptable surety company licensed to do business in the State of New Jersey.
Irrevocable letters of credit shall be accepted only pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:55D-53.5.
Maintenance bonds shall be in the standardize format established by the New Jersey
Department of Community Affairs pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40:55D-
53a.

£

Sectipn XI. Penalties: Any person(s) who erects, constructs, alters, repairs, converts,
maipains, or uses any building, structure or land in violation of this ordinance shall be subject to

a fine
that

Secti

of not more than $2000.00, imprisonment for not more than 90 days, or both. Each day
violation continues shall be considered a new and separate violation of this chapter.

n XII. Severability: Each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase of this

Ordinance is declared to be an independent section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase, and

the fi
ineffe

Secti

ding or holding of any such portion of this Ordinance to be unconstitutional, void, or

ctive for any cause, or reason, shall not affect any other portion of this Ordinance.

n Two. All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance, to the
extent of such inconsistencies only, be and the same hereby are repealed.

2.




Sectipn Three. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon final passage and publication
as provided by law.

Introduction Date: March 22, 2021

MOTION AYlé NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen 3 ¥ /
Janjua ) 4/
Moustakas| Vol
Pritchett 5/ /
Steglik W
Publication Date: March 25, 2021
Public Hearing Date: April 12, 2021
MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED
Cohen
Janjua
Moustakas!
Pritchett
Steglik
TOWNSHIP OF MOUNT LAUREL
BY:
Stephen Steglik, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mergdith Tomezyk, Township Clerk
4830-6358-9080, v. 1

23.




TOWNSHIP COUNCIL Distribution

MOUNT LAUREL MUNICIPAL CENTER
Resolution No. 21-R-87

REGULAR MEETING APRIL 12,2021

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CLOSED SESSION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
MOUNT LAUREL TO DISCUSS PENDING OR ANTICIPATED LITIGATION,
CONTRACT NEGOTIATIONS AND/OR PERSONNEL MATTERS

WHEREAS, the Township Council of the Township of Mount Laurel is subject to the
requirements of the Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 et. seq.; and

WHEREAS, the Open Public Meetings Act of the State of New Jersey generally requires
that all meetings of public bodies be open to the public; and

WHEREAS, the Open Public Meetings Act further provides that a public body may
exclude the public from a portion of a meeting at which the public body discusses items
enumerated in the Open Public Meetings Act at N.J.S.A 10:4-12b, which items are recognized as
requiring confidentiality; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and appropriate for the Township Council of the Township
of Mount Laurel to discuss certain matters in a meeting not open to the public consistent with
N.J.S.A 10:4-12b.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township
of Mount Laurel, Burlington County, pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act of the State of
New Jersey that:

1. The Township Council of the Township of Mount Laurel shall hold a closed
meeting, from which the public shall be excluded, on April 12, 2021;

2. The general nature of the subjects to be discussed at said closed meeting shall be
Executive Order Update/Attorney Client Privilege, MUA, Affordable Housing, Contract Trash

3. The minutes of said closed meeting shall be made available of disclosure to the
public, consistent with N.J.S.A. 10:4-13, when the items which are subject of the closed session
discussion are resolved and a reason for confidentiality no longer exists.

This resolution was adopted at a meeting of the Township Council held April 12,

2021 and shall take effect immediately.

A CERTIFIED COPY

Meredith Tomezyk, Municipal Clerk

MOTION | AYE NAY ABSTAINED | ABSENT TRANSMITTED

Cohen

Janjua

Moustakas

Pritchett

Steglik




